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The Vision

To remain at the forefront of quality, innovation and cost competitivenessin the
manufacturing and marketing of polyester fillament yarn, pet preforms and other
polyester related products.

To achieve corporate success while achieving this vision.

The Mission

To achieve the stated vision of company with dynamism business excellence with
challenging spirit and flexibility.

To serve the need of customers by providing high quality products as per their
requirement and to their ultimate satisfaction.

To be a good employer by creating a work environment which motivates the employ-
ees and promotes team work to encourage the employees to pursue the fulfillment of
the vision and mission of the company.

To seek long-term good relations with suppliers, banks and financial institutions with
fair and honest dealings.

To play our role as a good corporate citizen through socially responsible behavior and
through service of the community where we do business.

To achieve basic aim of benefiting shareholders and stake-holders while adhering to
the above vision and mission.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given to the members that the 45th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Gatron (Industries)
Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Monday, October 27, 2025, at 03:30 p.m., at Makran Hall, Serana
Hotel Quetta, Zarghun Road Quetta as well as through Video Conferencing facility to transact the following
business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To confirm the minutes of the last AGM held on October 28, 2024,

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2025, together with the Auditors’ and Directors’ Reports thereon and the Review
Report of the Chairman. As required under Section 223(7) of the Companies Act 2017, the Financial
Statements of the Company have been uploaded on the Website of the Company which can be
downloaded from the QR enabled code and Weblink in the Notes.

3. To appoint External Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year, and to fix their remuneration. The
Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Company, has proposed
re-appointment of M/s. Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Company, Chartered Accountants as external
auditors, for the year ending June 30, 2026.

4. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

Shameer
October 06, 2025 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1. Participation in the AGM via Video Conferencing Facility:

As per the directive issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP”), the Company
has made arrangements of video conference facility to ensure that members can also participate in the

AGM proceeding via video link.

The members and their proxies who intends to attend the AGM through video link must register their
particulars by sending an email at hanifkhatri@gatron-novatex.com. The members registering to connect
through video link facility are required to mention their name, folio number and number of shares held
in their name in the email with subject ‘Registration for Gatron (Industries) Limited AGM” along with
valid copy of their CNIC/Passport. Video link and login credential will be shared with the members whose
emails, containing all the required particulars, are received at the given email address at least 48 (forty
eight) hours before the time of the AGM.

. Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 21, 2025, to October 27, 2025
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the Shares Registrar, M/s F.D. Registrar
Services (Pvt.) Limited, Suit 1705 — A, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower, |.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi, before
the closure of business on October 20, 2025, will be considered in time for the purpose of attendance in

the AGM.

. Participation in the AGM:
A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to
attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the office

of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. Proxy form is annexed.

In the case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen

signature and attested copy of valid CNIC of the person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the

corporate entity, shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Company.

A member, who has deposied his/her shares in Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, must
bring his/her Participant ID number and account/sub account number along with original CNIC or NICOP

or Passport at the time of attending the meeting.
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4. SUBMISSION OF COMPUTERIZED NATIONAL IDENTITY CARD:
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or National Identity Card for Overseas Pakistanis (NICOP) of
the shareholders is mandatory requirement for payment of dividend. Shareholders are therefore,
requested to submit copies of their valid CNIC or NICOP to the Shares Registrar of the Company. In case
of non-receipt of valid CNIC or NICOP, the company will be constrained to withhold the payment of

dividends of such shareholders.

The shareholders, while sending copies of CNIC or NICOP, must quote their respective folio number, CDC

IAS and CDC Sub-Account numbers maintained with Stockbrokers.

5. PROVIDING INTERNATIONAL BANK ACCOUNT NUMBER (IBAN):
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its Circular Letter No. CL/CSD/Misc/2014-30
dated March 19, 2021, directed all the listed companies to pursue with their shareholders who have not
yet provided their IBAN. Therefore, all the shareholders are requested to provide their IBANs as soon as
possible to enable the Company to credit the cash dividend payment (if any), through electronic transfer

directly into their Bank Account.

Further, the cash dividend, if any, of the members who have not provided IBAN, will be withheld by the
Company under Clause (ii) of Regulation 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations,

2017 and being piled-up with the Company.

6. UNCLAIMED SHARES/DIVIDEND:

Shareholders of the company are once again requested to contact the office of the company or the
company's shares registrar for collection of their shares/dividends which they have not yet received due

to any reason after completing the required formalities.

/. DEPOSIT OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO CDC ACCOUNT:
The shareholders of the Company are hereby informed that as per provision of Section 72 of the
Companies Act, 2017, the companies are required to replace their physical shares with book-entry form
within a period not exceeding four years from the date of the promulgation of the Act. SECP, vide their
letter No. CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639- 640 dated 26th March 2021, has advised all listed companies to
pursue their such shareholders who still hold their shares in physical form for converting the same into

book-entry-form.
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In view of the above and as advised by SECP, the shareholders who hold physical shares are requested to
arrange to convert them into book-entry-form. For this purpose, the shareholder shall be required to

open an account with either Central Depository Company of Pakistan or any Trading Rights Entitlement

Certificate holder (Securities Broker) of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The benefits associated with the book-entry-form shares include “readily available for trading, whereas

trading of physical scrips is currently not permitted”, “no risk of damaged, lost, forged or duplicate certifi-

PP

cates’,

oo

reduced stamp duty on physical to book-entry-form transfers”, “no stamp duty on electronic

transfers in CDS”, “instantaneous transfer of ownership”, “instant receipt/credit of dividends and other

corporate entitlements (i.e. bonus, rights and new issues, etc.)”, and pledging of securities, etc.

8. Notify Change of Address:
The members are advised to notify the Company's Shares Registrar of any change in their addresses in
case of physical shares and, in case of shares held electronically, must be notify directly to broker/

participant/CDC account services.

9. Transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statements:
The SECP vide SRO N0.389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, has allowed listed companies to circulate their
Annual Audited Financial Statements (i.e. the Annual Balance Sheet and Profit or Loss Account, Auditors
Reports and Directors’ Report) to its members through QR enabled code and web-link, which is shared

below:

QR CODE
WEB-LINK Q_‘

https://gatron.com/investor-

info/

10. Prohibition of Gifts Distribution:
In accordance with company policy and regulatory guidelines, no gifts or incentives shall be distributed

at the AGM. Shareholders are requested to refrain from bringing or presenting any gifts during the meet-

ing.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

Dear Shareholders,

It is with my great pleasure to present the Chairman’s Review for the financial year ended June 30, 2025,

at our 45th Annual General Meeting.

In the face of a challenging economic landscape and operational hurdles, Gatron has exemplified remark-
able resilience, adaptability, and an unwavering commitment to excellence. Through careful strategic
planning and disciplined execution, we have not only safeguarded our market position but also in process

of metting our key objective.

Our Board of Directors is composed of ten distinguished members: two executives, five non-executives,
and three independent directors, including one female director. Over the course of the year, the Board
has convened six times, providing diligent oversight and strategic guidance to ensure the continued

success of the Company.

The exceptional efforts of our Audit and Human Resource & Remuneration Committees merit special
recognition. The Audit Committee carefully examined our financial statements and internal controls,
strengthening our dedication to transparency and adherence to regulatory requirements. Following a
comprehensive review, the Board confidently confirms that the Annual Report and Financial Statements

present a true and fair view of the Company’s performance.

Gatron’s achievements are the result of collective effort and dedication. | extend my heartfelt gratitude
to our loyal customers, our talented employees, our committed management team, our trusted partners,
the government stakeholders, and my fellow directors for their continued support and collaboration.

Looking to the future, we remain optimistic about Gatron'’s ability to drive sustainable growth and create

long-term value for all our stakeholders.
Thank you for your ongoing trust and support.

Sincerely,
October 6, 2025

Abdul Razak Dewan

Chiarman
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Directors’ Report

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present the Annual Report of Gatron (Industries)
Limited for the year ended June 30, 2025, along with the audited financial statements and the auditors’
report.

FINANCIAL REVIEW:

The financial synopsis for the year under review are as below:

(Rupees in millions)

2024-25 | AprtoJune | JantoMar | Octto Dec Jul to Sep
2025 2025 2024 2024

Net Sales 26,328 6.840 6,363 7.220 5,905
Operating profit/(loss) (101) 316 12 (169) (260)
Loss before levies and (1,641) (36) (266) (574) (765)
Income tax

Levies and income tax (330) (85) (79) (92) (74)
including minimum

Loss after income tax (1.971) (121) (345) (666) (839)
Paid up capital 1,087 1,087 1,087 1,087 1,087
Shareholders™ equity 11,373 11,373 11,466 11,782 12,448

The loss before levies and income tax for the year ended June 30, 2025, amounted to Rs.1.641 million
compared to a loss of Rs.94 million in the corresponding period last year. Including the results of our
captive power subsidiaries, the Company incurred a loss of Rs.1,674 million before levies and income
tax, and Rs.2.015 million after income tax, compared to losses of Rs.328 million and Rs.440 million,
respectively, in the previous period. Alhamdulillah an operating profit of Rs.316 million was recorded
in the last quarter (April to Jun 2025) of the current year, despite the imposition of gas levy.

Net revenue for the year was Rs.26,328 million, down 23% from Rs.34,014 million in the previous year.
This decline was driven by a 13% reduction in yarn sales quantities as well as fall in unit prices due to
lower raw material costs.

As communicated in previous reports, the Company was to facing significant challenges due to the
dumping of imported yarn at exceptionally low prices in the local market. However, in May 2025, the
National Tariff Commission (NTC) imposed final Anti-Dumping Duties (ADD) on Polyester Filament
Yarn (PFY) from major Chinese exporters, ranging from 5.35% to 20.78% with only 3 suppliers below
10% duty, while all other suppliers being above 13%. The focus of the Company now 1s effective
enforcement and collection of duties or 1n case of stay orders the collection of bank guarantees. In July
& Aug this was lacking at custom stage, however by end September there was proper enforcement of
collection of bank guarantees/pay orders in case of stay orders. This was necessary to get the impact of
Anti-Dumping Duty (ADD) in the market prices and to prevent large scale evasion of Anti-Dumping
Duty which happened in the previous ADD period of 2017 to 2023, on account of which over Rs.10
billion Anti-Dumping Duties still remain evaded/not paid in the case of PFY.

The persistent dumping and evasion of dumping duty have so far compelled the Company to operate at
substantially diminished capacity utilization, despite investments exceeding Rs.20 billion over the last
4-5 years to expand production capabilities from 65,000 tons in 2020 to approximately 99,000 tons. Since
2017, production capability of the Company has increased nearly 2.75 times. The said expansion
obviously placed a high burden on results through increased depreciation and finance cost which get
compounded at lower operating rates. The target is to increase operating rates without landing in a
situation of increased inventory and the resulting inventory carrying cost.

Additionally, misuse of duty-free imports under the Export Facilitation Scheme (EFS) for local sales 1s
pressurizing the market prices.

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
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COST SAVING AND OTHER INITIATIVES:
Management 1s actively pursuing several cost-saving projects to improve profitability, including:

e In-house production of POY/DTY bobbins to meet 100% of Company’s requirements, now
finally 1n full operation.

e Expansion of existing solar power capacities to reduce energy costs and evaluating Wind power
capacities as well as other initiatives to reduce power cost.

e Enhancing labor efficiency through time and motion studies.

e Procuring inputs from cheaper alternative sources without compromising quality.

¢ Promoting diversified products in the market.

EXPENSES AND FINANCING:

Distribution and selling expenses increased by 48% compared to last year, whereas administrative
expenses decreased by 13%. Finance costs rose by Rs.45 million. Efforts continue to reduce inventory
and receivables, though in view of expected dumping duty decision, the overhang of increased import
quantity in the market has complicated these efforts. A recent reduction in the discount rate to 11% 1s
expected to lower finance costs going forward.

On the balance sheet front, compared to June 30, 2024:

o Stocks decreased by Rs.190 million to Rs.7,313 million, with further reduction in 30 Sept
results.

o Debtors increased by Rs. 1,147 million to Rs.4,663 million, however, to be reduced in 30 Sept
results.

o Creditors decreased by Rs.972 million to Rs.4,551 million.

e Short-term borrowings rose by Rs.3,330 million to Rs.6,909 million, however, to be reduced in
30 Sept results.

CHALLENGES AND FUTURE OUTLOOK:

¢ [n May 2025, NTC has imposed final Anti-Dumping Duties on PFY on major Chinese exporters in
the range of 5.35% to 20.78%, % with only 3 suppliers below 10% duty, while all other suppliers
being above 13%. The focus of the Company now is effective enforcement and collection of duties
or in case of stay orders the collection of bank guarantees which is a continuous effort as noted
above. To put a perspective on the rate of 53.35% minimum ADD in Pakistan, noted below are ADD
imposed on Chinese exporters of Polyester Filament Yarn in other countries:

¢ by Turkey of minimum 16% or §250/ton

® by India of minimum 23%

® by the USA ranging from 76% to 77%

¢ by Vietnam of minimum one producer at but all others above 10% (and max 21.2%)
® by Brazil §57.85 — 585.70/ton (4.35% - 44%)

by Mexico $532/ton (40%)

So, 7 major countries including Korea have imposed Anti-Dumping or Countervailing Duties on
PFY from China, while Indonesia is restricting imports of PFY by not allowing the same to traders
and intends to increase mmport duties on the same. So, this covers most of the PFY producing
countries. Bangladesh protects its PFY industry by way of 25% import duty on competing imported
yarn.

Since October 2023, India has imposed the non-tariff barrier removing the BIS (Bureau of Indian
standard) exemption for imports of PFY into India. Because of which the import of PFY from China
into India have reduced from 50,000 tons per month (annualized 600,000 MT) to less than 10,000
tons per month (annualized 120,000 MT) at present. The Chinese producers have been trying for
long to call the BIS team for inspection and approval but while other countries like Korea. Taiwan
etc. have got the BIS approval, the BIS visit/approval of China is not happening. However, India
allows Chinese PFY to be imported under Export Bond Scheme for processing and export. So
effectively 1its not for quality/standards but to prevent the injury to the local PFY industry by the
excess Chinese dumping.
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¢ On the back of effective implementation of Anti-Dumping Duty for 5 years on the levels on
competing imported yarn would allow Pakistan PFY producers to fully utilize their capacity which
can meet nearly 50% of the Pakistan’s domestic use PFY demand and encourage these producers
to further expand to meet over 75% of Pakistan in the next 3 years since polymer capacity for the
same 1s already available. In fact, if we consider only DTY product variety of PFY the domestic
producers can meet over 60% of the domestic demand 1f they are allowed to fully utilize their
capacity through effective Anti-Dumping measures.

e PFY i1s among the top imports, so it needs to be produced locally, particularly when 1ts raw material
PTA is also produced locally. It should also be kept in mind that in the year 2003 over 90% of local
demand of Filament Yarn was met by indigenous production, Moreover, the downstream industry
and demand has also grown over the years and the total demand of PFY stood over 350,000 tons
compared to 260,000 tons in year 2017-18 so increasing domestic production of the same is also
essential to reduce this pressure on the current account deficit of the country.

OTHER MATTERS:

e  Our wholly owned subsidiaries, Gatro Power (Private) Limited and G-Pac Energy (Private)
Limited, continue normal operations generating and selling electric power.

* Global Synthetics Limited, another wholly owned subsidiary, has yet to commence operations.
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT:

The Board of Directors, in its meeting on February 10, 20235, had authorized the Company to enter into
a Scheme of Arrangement with Nova Frontiers Limited (NFL) and Ghani & Tayub (Private) Limited
(G&T), subject to necessary approvals. However, due to recent developments, NFL and G&T have
withdrawn from the proposed Scheme. Consequently, the Company has also withdrawn its approval as
per the circular resolution dated August 12, 2025. We wish to clarify that this withdrawal will not impact
the Company’s shareholders’ business.

APPROPRIATION

The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended any dividend for the year ended June 30,
2025.

EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE
The loss per share of the Company for the year ended on June 30, 2025, 1s Rs18.13.
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have been no material changes or commitments affecting the Company’s financial position from
the date of the balance sheet to the date of this report.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

The Chairman's review of the performance of the Company 1s annexed to this report.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The retiring auditors M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, offered
themselves for re-appointment. The Audit Committee has recommended their re-appointment as the

Company's auditors for the financial year 2025-26.

The Auditors of the Company M/s. Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co., Chartered Accountants, have 1ssued
an unqualified audit report to the members of the Company.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding of the Company is annexed to this report.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report includes the consolidated financial statements of the Group, complete with
accompanying notes and the auditors' report. These documents provide a comprehensive overview of the
Group’s financial performance and position.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Board confirms the compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Code of Corporate Governance for the following:

The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025, prepared by the management of the Company.
present its overall affairs fairly, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

e Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent business judgments.

e [nternational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been disclosed and explained.

¢ The system of internal control 1s sound in design: it has been effectively implemented and monitored.

e Significant deviations from last year in the operating results of the Company, if any, are disclosed
in this report.

e There is no significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

e There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as per
regulations.

e Key operating and financial data of the last six years in summarized form 1s annexed.
¢ The fair value of the provident funds investments as of June 30, 2025 was Rs.157 million.

e During the vear, 6 Board meetings, 4 Audit committee meetings and 1 HR & remuneration
committee meetings were held.

e The names of the persons, who at any time during the financial year ended June 30,2025, were
Members of the Board and its Committees along with their attendance as follows:

Name of Director Board of Audit HR &
Directors Committee Remuneration
Meetings Meetings Committee
Meetings
Mr. Abdul Razak Diwan 5 - -
Mr. Shabbir Diwan 5 - -
Mr. Zakaria Bilwani - - -
Mr. Muhammad Igbal Bilwani 0 - I
Mr. Saqib Haroon Bilwani 5 - -
Mr. Muhammad Taufiq Bilwani 5 - -
Mr. Muhammad Altaf Bilwani - - -
Mr. Talat Igbal 5 4 l
Mr. Muhammad Tufail Igbal 5 4 i
Ms. Huma Rafique 3 - -

(Leaves of absence were granted to the directors for not attending the Board meetings)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The total numbers of Directors are ten (10) as per the following:
a. Male: Nine (09)

b. Female: One (01)

The composition of the Board 1s as follows:

Category Names
Independent Directors Mr. Talat Igbal

Mr. Muhammad Tufail Igbal
Non-executive Directors Mr. Abdul Razak Diwan

Mr. Zakaria Bilwanm

Mr. Muhammad Igbal Bilwani
Mr. Saqib Haroon Bilwani
Mr. Muhammad Altaf Bilwani

Executive Directors Mr. Shabbir Diwan
Mr. Muhammad Taufiq Bilwani
Female Independent Director Ms. Huma Rafique
DIRECTOR’S TRAINING

All ten Directors have either obtained Certificate of Director’s Training Program or are exempted from
the requirement of Director’s Training Program as per the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019,

BOARD PERFORMANCE REVIEW

We have established a strong system for the self-assessment of the Board’s performance, enabling us to
consistently evaluate and improve our governance practices. Over the past year, the Board of Directors
has played a critical role, offering invaluable guidance that has strengthened our governance and strategic
oversight. Their continued dedication has been vital in driving the Company toward its goals and
maintaining high standards of accountability.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is dedicated to fostering open and transparent communication with our shareholders. We
keep our shareholders up to date on the Company’s activities and developments through our website at
www.gatron.com, which is regularly updated to ensure access to the most current information. We deeply
appreciate your continued support and are committed to providing you with the most relevant and timely
updates about our Company.

SUSTAINABILITY-RELATED RISKS

Gatron (Industries) Limited understands that sustainability-related risks are essential for assessing the
long-term value and viability of our investments. The management 1s actively working to establish clear,
measurable ESG targets that align with the Company’s strategic goals, aiming to enhance sustainable
resilience and create a positive social impact. To achieve these objectives, we will focus on the three
*C"s: Conservation, Community, and Circular Economy.

DIVERSITY, EQUITY, AND INCLUSION (DE&I)

With a diverse workforce and community base, the Company is a strong advocate for diversity, equity,
and inclusion (DE&I). The Group also supports DE&I initiatives through cost-sharing efforts, ensuring
that resources are strategically allocated to foster meaningful and lasting impact. Promoting DE&I
remains a core priority and is deeply embedded in the Company’s commitment to sustainable and ethical
business practices.

To further this commitment, the Company has implemented a comprehensive DE&I policy that guides
its approach to enhancing gender and ethnic diversity across the organization. This includes adopting
inclusive recruitment practices—such as leveraging diverse job boards and ensuring representation on
interview panels—to create a more equitable and inclusive workplace.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s operations are subject to a range of financial risks arising from the current
macroeconomic environment, including market risk (such as interest rate, currency, and price
fluctuations), credit risk, and liquidity risk. To address these challenges, the Company has implemented
a risk management strategy aimed at mitigating market volatility and reducing potential adverse effects
on 1ts financial performance.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
The Board of Directors extends its sincere appreciation to all stakeholders for their continued trust and
confidence in the Company. We are truly grateful for the ongoing cooperation and support received over

the years and remain confident that this strong partnership will endure.

We also wish to thank every member of the Company for their dedication, innovation, and commitment.
Your contributions are vital to our continued success.

In addition, we extend our gratitude to Government Institutions, Auditors, SECP, PSX, and our Banking
partners for their valuable guidance and support, which have played a key role in the Company’s growth

and development.

Thank you for your steadfast partnership and support.

SHABBIR DIWAN MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR

Dated: October 4, 2025
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Gender Pay Gap Statement

As part of our ongoing commitment to Diversity, equity, and inclusion in the workplace, we have conducted a
detailed review of gender pay differences across key employee categories. The figures below reflect comparisons

of average (mean) and middle (median) hourly earnings between men and women in equivalent Levels.

Gender Pay Gap by Grade
Women Men
Mean Gap Median Gap
Mean Median Mean Median
Junior
Management 87,000 89,000 76,939 76,289 (13.08) (16.66)
Line
Management 180,000 180,000 133,993 122,065 (34.34) (47.46)
MTs 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 - -

These figures highlight positive progress in promoting gender balance and pay equity across management levels.
Notably, gender parity has been achieved at the MT Grade, and women in Junior and Line Management are

earning more than their male counterparts — an encouraging reflection of merit-based advancement and inclusive
practices.

We remain committed to maintaining a fair, performance-driven culture, grounded in equal opportunity, where
all employees are rewarded equitably for their contributions. Ongoing monitoring and analysis will ensure
we continue to identify and address any underlying structural factors.
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Introduction

At Gatron, sustainability continues to be the foundation of our business strategy, guiding our
efforts to create long-term value for the environment, society, and economy. As a leading
industrial organization, we acknowledge our responsibility to contribute to sustainable
development and remain committed to aligning our initiatives with the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs).

This year’s Sustainability report (2024-25) reflects our progress and renewed commitment across
critical areas such as renewable energy adoption, water stewardship, responsible production
practices, circular economy solutions, and employee well-being. Our focus is not only on meeting
today’s needs but also on safeguarding resources for future generations.

By harnessing innovation, enhancing operational efficiency, and empowering our people, we
continue to implement initiatives that minimize our environmental footprint, promote workplace
health and safety, support community development, and encourage sustainable growth across
our value chain.

Gatron remains dedicated to creating measurable impact through actions that advance global
sustainability priorities, reinforcing our vision of building a resilient, responsible, and inclusive
future for all.

Our Sustainability Journey

Gatron began its formal sustainability reporting journey in 2020 with a clear vision to integrate
the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs) into our business practices. Our
initial focus was on five priority goals, aimed at reducing our environmental footprint, improving
resource efficiency, and enhancing the well-being of our employees and the communities we
serve. Over the past years, we have achieved meaningful progress, implementing projects that
delivered tangible environmental and social impact.

Building on this foundation, we are now broadening our scope by incorporating additional SDGs
into our long-term strategy. For 2024-25, we have set ambitious new targets supported by
defined action plans. Our priorities include expanding renewable energy adoption, strengthening
water stewardship, advancing responsible production, and integrating circular economy solutions
across our operations.

As we continue this journey, Gatron remains committed to driving sustainable growth, creating
long-term value for stakeholders, and contributing to a resilient and inclusive future for all.
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UNSDG 7: AFFORDABLE & CLEAN ENERGY

At Gatron, we are committed to sustainable operations by leveraging
advanced energy monitoring systems to optimize a diversified energy
portfolio. This approach enhances operational efficiency, ensures energy
security, and reduces our environmental footprint.

Our energy mix includes:

« Gas, Heavy Fuel Oil (HFO), Gas and Steam Turbines, and Solar Power: A balanced and
diversified portfolio that supports our sustainability goals while maintaining a reliable
energy supply.

o Electricity from K-Electric (KE): In addition to self-generation, electricity is purchased from
the national grid to support operations during natural gas shortages for our gas engines.
However, this supply remains inconsistent and unreliable,

« Heating from Biomass: We are actively developing a project to transition heating
requirements from Gas and HFO to biomass-based solutions, reducing reliance on fossil
fuels.

 Future Wind Power Facility: Feasibility studies are underway for establishing a wind
power facility in the Hub district, further strengthening our renewable energy initiatives.
Through these initiatives, Gatron is progressively transitioning toward cleaner energy
sources, aligning with global sustainability practices, and contributing to climate action
goals

Commitment to Renewable Energy

Gatron currently operates 2.8 MW of solar power capacity, resulting in annual savings of
1,435 tons of CO, emissions and 1,059,181 cubic meters of natural gas. This investment
significantly contributes to our renewable energy portfolio and demonstrates our
commitment to reducing our environmental footprint.

Expansion Plans

To further enhance efficiency and sustainability, we are in the process of installing an
additional 5.72 MW of solar capacity and exploring the feasibility of an additional 3 MW
within this year. These projects will substantially increase our renewable energy
contribution and reduce reliance on fossil fuels.
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Current and Future Renewable Energy Usage

At present, Gatron’s total energy consumption is sourced from renewables is 2.8 MW, with
solar power generating 3.5 million units annually. Looking ahead, we are committed to
increasing the renewable share to at least 11.52 MW by tripling our solar generation
capacity. This expansion is projected to generate approximately 9.62 million units of clean
energy annually, reinforcing our long-term sustainability goals and accelerating our

transition to a low-carbon future.

kWh Units Produced Through CO, Emission Saved
Reneweable Energy (Millions) (Tons)
9.62 3,943
230 3.50 1,200 1,435
p— - — -
2023-24 2024-25 Forecast 2023-24 2024-25 Forecast
(2025-26) (2025-26)
Natural Gas Saved (m?)
2,885,458
1,059,181
625,000 .
2023-24 2024-25 Forecast (2025-26)

Energy Efficiency Projects

At Gatron, we are committed to advancing responsible energy management in alighment with
UN SDG 7 (Affordable & Clean Energy), SDG 12 (Responsible Consumption & Production), and
SDG 13 (Climate Action). Through targeted energy-efficient projects and fuel conservation
initiatives, we are significantly reducing our environmental footprint while enhancing operational
efficiency.

In 2024-25, we implemented multiple CSR-driven energy and resource efficiency initiatives that
delivered measurable environmental and operational benefits:
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e Staff Transport Optimization: Saved 26,472 liters of diesel annually, cutting costs by PKR
12.94 million and reducing emissions, alighed with SDGs 7, 11, and 13.

e Pump Optimization: Achieved ~155,868 kWh annual energy savings, avoiding ~418 tons
of CO, emissions, contributing to SDGs 7, 9, 12, and 13.

e Lifter Operations Optimization: Reduced diesel consumption by 9,840 liters, avoiding
~26.3 tons of CO, emissions, supporting SDGs 7, 11, 12, and 13.

e Energy & Resource Optimization: Lowered electricity demand and chemical usage
through catalyst and TiO; reduction, enhancing efficiency and supporting SDGs 7, 9, 12,
and 13.

Overall Impact

e Diesel Saved: 36,312 liters (26,472 + 9,840).
e Energy Saved: ~155,868 kWh annually.
e (O, Avoided: ~444 tons (418 + 26.3).

Financial Saving: PKR 12.94 million annually (from transport alone, with further cost benefits
from energy optimization).

These initiatives collectively strengthened our climate responsibility, operational efficiency,
and contribution to global sustainability goals, embedding CSR into our core operations.

UNSDG 6: CLEAN WATER AND SANITATION

At Gatron, water conservation remains a core pillar of our sustainability
strategy, reflecting our commitment to preserving one of the planet’s most
vital resources. Recognizing the critical role of water for both our
operations and the communities we serve, we have adopted a
comprehensive water management approach centered on efficiency,
recycling, and sustainable practices.

« Effluent Treatment Plant (ETP): Through advanced treatment technologies, we treat 8.3
million gallons of wastewater annually, ensuring discharged water meets strict
environmental standards to protect local ecosystems.

« Reverse Osmosis (RO) and Ultrafiltration Plant: Our RO system treats blowdown
wastewater from cooling towers, conserving 8.93 million gallons of freshwater each year.

« High-Efficiency Water Nozzles: The installation of 165 water-saving nozzles has enabled
annual savings of 9.6 million gallons. An additional 20 sites have been identified for future
installations, further strengthening our conservation efforts.

« Dissolved Air Flotation (DAF) System: This system recovers and reuses 1.57 million
gallons of backwash water from the Ultrafiltration (UF) plant, improving water recycling
efficiency.
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Through these initiatives, Gatron now recycles 8.3 million gallons of its total water consumption,
directly supporting UN Sustainable Development Goal (SDG) 6: Clean Water and Sanitation. By
championing innovative water practices, we continue to set benchmarks for responsible water
management in the industrial sector, reinforcing our commitment to future generations.

Nozzles Installed (No.) Water Saved (M. Gallons)
165 185
135 96 10.7
I l 5 | l
2023-24 2024-25 Forecast 2023-24 2024-25 Forecast
(2025-26) (2025-26)

UNSDG 12: RESPONSIBLE CONSUMPTION & PRODUCTION

Gatron remains committed to advancing responsible consumption and
production by optimizing resource utilization and embedding sustainable
practices across operations.

Key initiatives include:
¢ Waste Minimization: In FY 2024-25, we recycled over 94.6 million PET bottles into high-
quality recycled polyester yarn under our brand Ecoron. This initiative not only diverts

plastic from landfills and oceans but also contributes to reducing our overall carbon
footprint by extending the life cycle of plastics

PET Bottles Recycled (Millions)

155.00

l 94.60 95.00

2023-24 2024-25 Forecast (2025-26)
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« Resource Efficiency: Through strategic investments in high COP chillers, advanced air
compressors, and heat recovery systems, we achieved measurable reductions in energy
demand and natural gas consumption. These efforts directly support lower greenhouse
gas emissions while driving more sustainable production processes.

« Sustainable Product Innovation: By embedding circular economy principles, Gatron
continues to develop environmentally responsible products. The use of recycled inputs in
manufacturing strengthens supply chain sustainability and reduces dependency on virgin
raw materials.

« Community Engagement & Education: We actively engage employees and surrounding
communities to raise awareness on responsible consumption, waste reduction, and
environmental stewardship.

« Tree Plantation Drive: Demonstrating our #
environmental commitment, Gatron planted -
300 trees and plants within our premises

during the year. Looking ahead, we aim to
collaborate with local authorities for a large-
scale plantation initiative along Hub River
Road, contributing to carbon sequestration,
biodiversity enhancement, and improved
community well-being.

By continuously innovating in resource management, product sustainability, and community
engagement, Gatron aligns its practices with the UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDG 12)
and global sustainability benchmarks, ensuring a responsible and resilient future.
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UNSDG 8: DECENT WORK & ECONOMIC GROWTH

At Gatron, we are committed to fostering inclusive and sustainable DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

economic growth while ensuring decent work opportunities for all
employees. In alignment with UN SDG 8 (Decent Work and Economic
Growth), we continue to invest in initiatives that strengthen employee
well-being, professional development, and community engagement.

e Employee Welfare:

o Subsidized Meals: This year, we provided over 762,427 subsidized meals through
our in-house catering facilities, which operate under strict hygiene standards.
These meals ensure that employees have access to affordable and nutritious food
every day.

o Transportation Facilities: We provided approximately 792,415 free rides through
our employee transportation program, covering the entire Hub region and Karachi.
By offering reliable and cost-free commuting, we improve accessibility while
enhancing both well-being and job satisfaction.

o Employee Engagement: We actively foster a culture of inclusivity and belonging
by organizing a variety of events and initiatives, including Eid celebrations,
Independence Day festivities, picnics, dinners, farewell gatherings, town hall

Galronova

meetings, retirement acknowledgments, and the annual Hajj balloting, which
enables 4 employees to perform Hajj each year.

o Training and Development: This year, our employees
completed 676 LinkedIn Learning courses, equipping them
with new skills and knowledge to advance their careers.
Such investments in professional growth not only empower
individuals but also build long-term organizational
resilience.
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o Talent Management: We continue to strengthen our talent management systems
through the implementation of SAP SuccessFactors, structured KPls, and a robust
performance management system. To safeguard health and safety, we also
conduct regular health risk assessments for workers in our polymer plant,
ensuring a safe and secure work environment.

o Through these initiatives, Gatron is creating a supportive and empowering
workplace where employees can thrive. Our efforts demonstrate a clear
commitment to sustainable economic growth, decent work, and community
well-being, reinforcing our role as a responsible employer and industry leader.

UNSDG 3: GOOD HEALTH & WELL-BEING

At Gatron, we remain committed to safeguarding the health and well-being
of our employees and the communities we serve. In line with UN SDG 3
(Good Health and Well-Being), we continue to expand access to quality
healthcare, promote workplace safety, and strengthen community health
support systems.

e Sina Clinic Inauguration Ceremony: In early 2024, the Gatron Foundation, a welfare arm of the
group, partnered with Sina Clinic to establish a new healthcare facility in Baldia, Karachi, which
officially opened during the 2024-25 period. With the capacity to treat more than 3,500 patients,
the clinic is dedicated to delivering high-quality healthcare to underserved communities.
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The inaugurahnn ceremony— marked by a r:bbnn -cutting led by Mr. F'lr Muhammad Diwan,
Founder of Gatron (Industries) Limited and Gatron Foundation, alongside the company’s CEO

and senior dignitaries—symbolized Gatron’s long-term commitment to accessible and
compassionate healthcare for all.

Patients Treated
60,000
37,385
2024-25 Forecast (2025-26)

* In-house Clinic Facilities: Gatron continues to operate an in-house clinic, ensuring immediate

and accessible healthcare services for employees. This on-site facility minimizes downtime and
helps maintain a healthier workforce.
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EVE CARE UNIT

e Sponsorship of Eye Care Unit at Uthal and Hub, Baluchistan: We sponsor an Eye Care Unit in
Baluchistan, providing essential eye health services to the local community. In 2024-25, the unit
conducted 19,500 outpatient consultations and performed 1,455 eye surgeries, making a
significant impact on the prevention of blindness and the promotion of healthy vision.

Health Care Outreach (Individual)
25,210
2023-24 2024-25 Forecast (2025-26)

e Distribution of Rations and Suits: To support
employee welfare beyond the workplace, Gatron
distributed over 4,819 ration bags to more than 1,200
families and provided suits to over 2,500 workers this
year. These initiatives promote nutritional security
and enhance the overall living standards of our
workforce.
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9,800
7,314

2023-24

2024-25

Distribution of Rations & Suits

7,374

Forecast (2025-26)

e Health and Safety Training: We significantly scaled |

up our training initiatives, conducting 361 in-house
and external health & safety sessions, covering areas
such as PSM, LOTOTO, Risk Analysis, Permit to Work
System, and Gas Testing. These sessions, supported by
industry experts from K-Electric and NILAT, reinforced
a strong safety culture and prepared employees to
proactively manage workplace risks.

* Personal Protective Equipment (PPE): The mandatory use of PPE—including helmets and safety
shoes—remains a cornerstone of our workplace safety standards, preventing injuries and

protecting employees on-site.

¢ Safety Performance: Our continued focus on safety has resulted in zero fatalities this year.
Recordable incidents showed measurable improvement, with 4 Lost Time Injuries (LTI) and 9
Medical Treatment Injuries (MTI) reported, reflecting a 24% reduction in total recordable
incidents compared to last year. These results underscore the effectiveness of our safety systems

and our commitment to continuous improvement.

Occupational Health & Safety

9 9
8
7
4
3
n Il o ll o Il
2023-24 2024-25 Forecast (2025-26)

B Fatalities ®m LTI = MTI
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Through these initiatives, Gatron demonstrates its commitment to creating a safe, healthy, and
resilient work environment while extending healthcare access to surrounding communities. By
prioritizing well-being at every level, we continue to strengthen our role as a responsible, people-
focused organization.

Life Below Water - Protecting Marine Ecosystems

We recognize the critical importance of safeguarding marine ecosystems as an integral part of
our sustainability vision and our alignment with UN SDG 14: Life Below Water.

o Beach Cleanup and PET Bottle Collection Initiative

Gatron Industries Ltd., in partnership with the Pakistan Navy, organized a large-scale Beach
Cleanup and PET Bottle Collection drive. This initiative not only removed significant volumes of
plastic waste from coastal areas but also raised public awareness on the urgent need to reduce
marine pollution. By actively engaging employees, partners, and members of the wider
community, the campaign fostered collective responsibility for environmental stewardship and
reinforced the value of recycling.

@ Commitment to Biodiversity Protection

Through this and other sustainability-driven actions, Gatron continues to advance its commitment
to protecting biodiversity, reducing plastic leakage into oceans, and building resilient ecosystems.
Our efforts reflect a broader responsibility to create cleaner coastlines, healthier marine
environments, and a more sustainable future for generations to come.
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Commitment to International Standards and Responsible Production

At Gatron, our sustainability journey is underpinned by a strong foundation of globally recognized
certifications and brand approvals. These achievements reflect our commitment to quality, safety,
environmental responsibility, and ethical business practices.
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o Certified Excellence: Our facilities are certified to international benchmarks, including ISO
9001:2015 (Quality Management), ISO 14001:2015 (Environmental Management), FSSC 22000

(Food Safety), and HALAL (PS 3733:2022) standards. These certifications demonstrate our
dedication to delivering products that are safe, sustainable, and consistently reliable.

o Sustainable and Ethical Production: Through certifications such as Oeko-Tex®, Global Recycled
Standard (GRS), and participation in the Social & Labor Convergence Program (SLCP), we ensure
that our operations adhere to sustainable material use, circular economy principles, and fair
labor practices.

« Global Brand Trust: Our colaboration from leading global brands including IKEA, Target, C&A,
Inditex, PepsiCo, and Coca-Cola are a testament to our ability to meet the highest international
standards for quality, sustainability, and compliance.

Together, these certifications and partnerships reinforce Gatron’s role as a responsible global partner—
committed to reducing environmental impact, protecting human rights, and driving continuous
improvement across our value chain.
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

At Gatron (Industries) Limited (as part of Gatronova), we remain committed
to our vision of becoming the employer of choice, providing opportunities-

through a structured framework for employees to be hired, developed, and

managed in ways that support the achievement of long-term organizational

goals while creating maximum stakeholder value. Our Human Resource func-

tion continues to build and sustain a highperformance culture where individ-
ual aspirations are aligned with organizational objectives under an enabling

environment of digitalization, innovation, inclusivity, and employee well-be-

INg.

The HR function operates through a robust framework of HR Business Partnership, Centers of Excellence
(CoE), Talent Acquisition, and HR Operations. The CoE continues to identify emerging HR challenges and
design programs that provide future-ready solutions based on global best practices, while the HR Busi-

ness Partners act as strategic enablers and change agents, working with business leaders to drive perfor-

mance and transformation.

Under the broader Digital Transformation Agenda, significant progress was made in 2025 with the imple-
mentation of a 360-degree feedback system, further strengthening our talent management and leader-
ship development frameworks. This complements our earlier deployment of SAP SuccessFactors, which
continues to enable end-to-end digitalization of HR processes across Human Capital Management,
Recruitment, Performance Management, Compensation & Benefits, and Payroll Administration, also
moving towards live dashboards for HR Analytics, enabling real-time insights and data driven deci-

sion-making across the HR value chain.

In the area of Talent Management and Development, the company introduced innovative learning
formats by evolving our LinkedIn Learning programs and knowledgesharing book clubs into a hybrid
learning model, offering employees both virtual and in person opportunities for professional growth.
This approach not only enhanced participation but also ensured the practical application of knowledge

in day-to-day roles.

On the Talent Acquisition and Employer Branding front, the company has strengthened its presence by
increasing its visibility across social media platforms, showcasing our culture, opportunities, and achieve-
ments to a wider talent pool. Alongside this, a corporate rebranding initiative, including a redesigned
logo, has reinforced the company’s modern and forward-looking identity in the market. In addition, the
company has taken deliberate steps toward enhancing diversity in hiring, ensuring opportunities for

talent across different backgrounds while promoting an inclusive workplace.
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Our Leadership & Trainee Programs were further expanded in 2025, with continued focus on nurturing
future leaders through structured development journeys for Management Trainees, SAP Trainees, CA,
ACCA, ICMA Trainees, and Graduate Trainee Engineers. These programs ensure a steady pipeline of
young professionals equipped with both technical expertise and organizational values to support the

company’s longterm growth.

Strengthening Employee Engagement and Culture, we placed emphasis on building a connected and
inclusive workplace by celebrating cultural events such as Eid and Independence Day, which not only
brought employees together but also reinforced a sense of unity, belonging, and pride. The company also
introduced a defined framework of Core Competencies, embedding the principles of being Adaptable to
Change, a Collaborative Team Player, and Thinking & Acting Like an Owner. These competencies now
serve as the foundation for employee development, performance management, and leadership
behaviors, ensuring strong alignment between people practices and the long-term vision.

Through these initiatives, the company continues to invest in its people, strengthen its organizational
culture, and position itself as an employer of choice in the industry, aligning with its long-term vision of
sustainable success.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is an unavoidable element of business, but effective management ‘i
determines whether it becomes a setback or an opportunity. The Insurance |

ﬁ

Management Department plays a key role in transferring exposures away
from the Group’s balance sheet, maintaining financial stability, and

supporting continuity of operations. LJ-
Financial risks are addressed through structured risk transfer mechanisms covering property damage,
machinery breakdown, and business interruption. Business interruption protection is particularly critical,
as it safeguards cash flow and profitability in the event of operational disruptions. In addition, trade

credit risks are also being transferred diligently, in international markets, strengthening the Group’s
position in global trade.

Operational and hazard risks are managed through regular surveys carried out across our sites in Pakistan
and abroad, supported by leading international consultants, reputed local consultants as well as in-house
expertise that keep us abreast to identify vulnerabilities, enhance controls, and strengthen resilience
across production and supply chains, in close coordination with our specialized HSE function. In
recognition of those improvements, we leveraged wider coverages and discounts.

Strategic risks are also considered at the planning stage of new projects. By aligning risk transfer
requirements with long-term investment objectives, we ensure that future growth is built on a solid
foundation of 360-degree protection and resilience.

Ultimately, our approach is not limited to purchasing insurance. It is about building a framework that
allows the Group to withstand disruptions, preserve stability, and continue to grow with confidence.
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HSE & FIRE SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Health and safety are of highest value to Gatron (Industries) Ltd. Our

approach towards health and safety is primarily preventive in nature

Rules and

Communication SA FETY Procedures
CULIU RE

culture across the company. Call verthication s | i ;

This includes all our operational sites and manufacturing facilities. This

and focused on enhancement of the occupational health and safety

health and safety structure is designed for minimizing occupational
incidents, illnesses and major adverse effects.

The Safety Operation/HSE Committee, consisting of senior management, has been formed for this
purpose. They conduct safety operation committee meetings on monthly/ quarterly basis. They also
convene monthly to review accidents or incidents through HSE department via root cause analysis
reports and advice as well as provide resource mitigation.

All critical activities are followed by safe system (Work Permits) and joint Job Safety Analysis by the
process, maintenance and HSE Department representatives to complete the tasks safely in all regards. In
fact, for safe operation planned preventive as well as corrective maintenance schedules are being
prepared on SAP PM Module and implemented accordingly.

In addition, all spark potential activities and other critical activities are being followed by the Work Clear-
ance Management System (new launched SAP Module) The company has inducted a fire tender to tackle
fire emergency situations at any corner of the plant. Furthermore, one ambulance is always available
and ready at our operational facility with adequate equipment/accessories for shifting injured people to
the hospital after giving first aid at First Aid Room by the Para Medical Staff.

In addition to Fire Safety Men in each shift, Emergency Response Team is also established developed for
the support to tackle any type of emergency.

Emergency cabinets are placed at different critical locations of plants and at office premises with maxi-
mum stock of personal protective equipment and rescue items. Health Safety Environment Depart-
ment's Representatives conduct Fire Safety Risk Assessment Surveys to identify fire safety hazards on
regular basis for reduction of workplace hazards and also issue stop cards through email to the
concerned department for corrective action.

Additionally, we conduct comprehensive Occupational Health and Safety Training sessions including
practical live firefighting mock drills, so as in case of any emergency available staff could handle the situa-
tion through their skills. Furthermore, annual refresher training courses are also being conducted of all
employees, including top management and contractor's workforce.

Emergency evacuation drills conducted on biannual basis to make the occupants know how to escape
out in case of any natural or other technological disaster.

Health Safety Environment Department has developed HSE Policy, specific procedures as and following
manuals/booklets as well:
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o Emergency Response Manual

° Business Continuity Plan

0 Small pocket size Fire Safety Guidebook in Urdu provided to all employees for study and review
v Project Fire & Safety (Passive and Active Management System) Guidelines

° HSE Management System Code of Practices

° Contractor Fire & Safety Management System

. Permit To Work/Maintenance Order Standard Procedure

We have implemented procedures based on nationally and internationally recognized laws and
customers' code of conduct, covering environment, occupational safety and health.

In fact, crucial focus is being given on Process Safety Management System through consultation with
relevant departments and implementing relevant elements accordingly for example, Safety Data Sheets,

Management of Change /Change of Management Job Safety Analysis, Pre- Box up checks, Pre-start
checks etc. In addition, arranging fire watch /safety watch for spark potential and critical activities.

Enhancement of skills of areas employees, either dedicated HSE staff, emergency response team,
operation, maintenance teams and establishing safety champions from each department. After training,

analysis training is also conducted periodically for employees and refreshers as well.

Advancement of fire safety management system through new technologies and according to
international certified bodies guidelines, furthermore, inducting new fire pumps 1250 GPM 14 Bar for
high rise building and connecting with existing fire water line circuit.

Fire Safety equipment preventive plan (inspection, testing and maintenance) is being carried out on
periodical basis to keep these ready all the time.

By the Grace of Almighty Allah, since the beginning of its operation, there has been no fatality at Gatron
(Industries) limited and we take every precaution to keep it at "Zero".

Our aim for the years to come is "Zero". We have set our objective to reduce our Lost Time Injury cases
by "75%" in the years 2024-25 and "80%" by June 2025. Which means that there were 5 injuries in the
year 2024 and 2 injuries by the year 2025.

We have HSE & Security Control Room at Head Office; it is being manned round the clock. And connected
with factory team to update status as well as to provide them with relevant resources as required or in

emergency as well.

Head office building is also equipped with adequate fire safety equipments and is being maintained
accordingly.

Head office building has been provided with proper first aid room with relevant equipment and
managed by HSE department /Medic on daily basis.

Emergency Evacuation Drills are being conducted on a bi-annual basis, furthermore, Emergency
Response Team (ERT) mock drills are also being conducted on monthly basis.

Head office building is also green certified and energy saving techniques / tactics are being maintained
accordingly.

Safety is Gainful & Accident is Painful
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Gatron continues its digital transformation journey by adopting next-generation
technologies and aligning IT initiatives with long-term business objectives. The
focus has progressed from process automation to building an intelligent enter-
prise, ensuring agility, resilience, and innovation.

As part of this vision, Gatron is in the process of migrating to SAP RISE Cloud

through a “Lift and Shift” approach. This initiative is aimed at transitioning the
existing SAP landscape into a scalable and secure private cloud environment while ensuring business
continuity. In parallel, the SAP S/4HANA system has been upgraded from 2020 to the 2023 release,
enabling smoother operations, minimal downtime, and enhanced functionality.

On the Human Capital side, Gatron is preparing to activate Joule, an Al-driven innovation within SAP
uccess Factors. Joule will bring conversational Al for self-services into HR processes, supporting
personalized learning, intelligent workforce planning, and enhanced productivity.

Gatron has embarked on strengthening data management through Enterprise Master Data
Governance (MDG). Phase 1 covers the Materials Management (MM) domain, while Phase 2 extends
MDG to Production Planning (PP), Finance (Fl), and Business Partner domains. This enterprise-wide
framework establishes a single source of truth, ensuring accuracy, compliance, and informed decision
making.

In Governance, Risk, and Compliance, Gatron upgraded to the Identity Access Governance (IAG)
platform. IAG provides real-time risk analysis, Intelligent segregation of duties (SOD) Management, and
secure provisioning across hybrid environments, ensuring stronger compliance and audit readiness.

On the integration side, Gatron transitioned from PI/PO to the SAP Integration Suite, a modern
cloud-based platform that enables secure, flexible, and real-time connectivity across SAP, nonSAP, and
partner systems. Its APl management, event-driven architecture, and monitoring capabilities improve
agility, collaboration, and scalability.

For analytics, Gatron replaced its traditional Data Warehouse with SAP Datasphere. This platform enables
federated access to multiple data sources without duplication, ensuring realtime, business-ready data for
planning, reporting, and advanced analytics. By laying the foundation for Al-driven insights, Datasphere
enhances both operational efficiency and strategic foresight.

Beyond SAP, Gatron continues to evolve its IT infrastructure. Enhancements to the Network
Operations Center (NOC), Security Operations Center (SOC), and datacenter have further strengthened
resilience against emerging cyber threats while supporting scalability, agility, and high availability.

Alongside core systems, Gatron has embraced Microsoft Office 365 to enhance workplace
productivity and collaboration. The integration of Microsoft Teams, SharePoint, and OneDrive
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has streamlined communication, enabled secure document management, and facilitated realtime
coordination across departments. These cloud-driven capabilities support mobility, scalability, and
seamless teamwork, ensuring business continuity and operational efficiency.

To ensure uninterrupted access to cloud platforms, Gatron has strengthened its connectivity
operations through a strategic partnership with Tier-1 provider Cybernet. This enables reliable,
high-speed, and secure network connectivity, ensuring seamless performance of cloud-hosted
applications and services. By leveraging Cybernet’s robust infrastructure, Gatron maintains
consistent uptime, optimized bandwidth, and smooth day-to-day operations for its business critical

cloud products.

Looking ahead, Gatron aims to embed Artificial Intelligence (Al) and Machine Learning (ML) across its
operations. The focus will include predictive analytics, intelligent automation, and
sustainability-driven insights to elevate decision-making and operational performance. Initiatives such
as Al-enabled demand forecasting, smart production scheduling, and intelligent customer engagement

are planned, ensuring the company remains future-ready, efficient, and sustainable.

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2025



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Particulars 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
: i Baii
Pak Rupees in Thousands
Sales 34,013,581 27,383,780 23,959,654 16,557,561 12,938,377 17,707,325
Gross Profit/(loss) 2,086,859 1,453,630 3,176,386 1,866,775 945,052 1,655,654
Operating Profit/{loss) 1,392,502 553,468 2,646,192 1,316,094 451,250 1,001,225
Profit{loss) after taxation -204,358 205,300 1,827,244 1,065,724 1,060,633 1,794,735
Percentage
Dividend - Final 0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 125.00 265.00
i | Positi
Pak Rupees in Thousands
Paid up Capital 1,087,290 767,290 383,645 383,645 383,645 383,645
Reserves & unappropriated profit 12,199,873 7,002,777 7,387,797 5,571,507 4.949.ﬂﬂ4i 4,920,353
Property, Plant & Equipment 18,778,042 16,938,295 9,769,076 5,949,200 3577722, 2359404
Current Assets 14,828,818 19,999,229 13,366,480 8,272,998 5,699,899 5,184 987
Current Liabilities 11,346,019 19,864,692 9,407 985 5,562,385 3,362,395 2,946,343
Net Current Assets 3,482,799 134,537 3,958,495 2,710.613 2,337,504 2,838,644
Long Term Liabilites 8,614,876 8,179,328 5,696,304 2,840,439 1'1?4'?33. 126,540
Deferred Liabilities 1,340,828 1,672,727 795,533 502,344 415372 373,162
Percentages
Gross Profit{Loss) Ratio 6.14 5.31 13.26 11.27 7.30 9.35
Retun on Capital Employed 5.99 9.62 20.86 16.05 25.53 39.03
Return on Equity (1.54) 2.61 23.51 17.90 19.89 33.84
Number of Times
Inventory Tumover 3.38 293 4.09 4.7 4,58 5.76
Deblors Tumaover 9.08 6.60 6.64 6.46 6.88 | 13.33
Total Assets Tumover 0.94 0.89 1.24 1,32 1.35; 2.18
Fixed Assels Tumover 1.90 2,05 3.05 3.48 4,36 8.43
Interest Cover 0.93 1.52 9.30 11.48 8.15| 137.63
Ratio
Debt-Equity 43 : 57 53:47 43: 57 32 : 68 18: 82 2:98
Current Ratio 1.31:1 1.01:1 142:1 1461 1.70:1 1.96: 1
Per Share Results and Returns
Pak Rupees |
Break-up Value 122.20 102.44 202.54 155.23 139.01]; 138.25
Eamings per Share - Basic and diluted” (2.36) 261 23.81 27.78 2?.55; 46.78
Dividend per Share 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 12.50 26.50
Percentages
Dividend Yield 0.00 1.33 0.00 0,00 2.1?| 9.37
Divdend Pay Out 0.00 114.94 0.00 0.00 4521 56.65
Number of Times
Price Eaming Ratio - Year end price” (89.11) 84.35 17.51 1711 20.80 6.04
Share Performance
Pak Rupees
Highest 299.00 489.99 450.00 619.99 57512 360.00
Lowest 180.00 225.70 399.00 412.00 282.28| 211.00
At year end 210.00 225.70 417.00 475.20| 57512 282.78
*Restated
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report
To the members of Gatron (Industries) Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“"the Regulations”) prepared by the Board of Directors of Gatron
(Industries) Limited ("the Company”) for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks,

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with
the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30,
2025.

Kreston Hyder Bhimiji & Co
Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Date: October 06, 2025

UDIN: CR202510729]MzbwKgFN

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

Suite No. 1601, 16th Floor, Kashif Centre, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Phone: 92-21-33640050 - 52
Website: www.krestonhb.com E-mail: hyderbhimjii@krestonhbeo.com info(akrestonhbeo.com

OIHER OFFICES LAHORE - FAISALABAD - ISLAMABAD
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Statement Of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code Of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: Gatron (Industries) Limited
Year ended: June 30, 2025

The Company has complied with the requirements of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)

Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) in the following manner:
1.The total number of directors are 10 (Ten) as per the following:
a) Male: 9

b) Female: 1

2.The composition of Board is as follows:

Independent Directors Mr, Talat Igbal

Mr. Muhammad Tufail Igbal
Independent Director — Female Ms. Huma Rafique
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Abdul Razak Diwan

Mr. Zakaria Bilwani

Mr. Muhammad Igbal Bilwani
Mr. Saqib Haroon Bilwani

Mr. Muhammad Altaf Bilwani
Executive Directors Mr. Shabbir Diwan

Mr. Muhammad Taufiq Bilwani

*(The independent Directors meet the criteria of independence under Section 166(2) of the Companies Act, 2017)

3.The Directors have confirmed that none of them are serving as a Director on more than seven listed

companies, including this Company.

4 The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken

to disseminate it throughout the Company, along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5.The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy, and significant policies
of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies

along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

6.All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017

(“the Act”) and these Regulations.
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7.The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

8.The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors in accordance
with the Act and these Regulations.

9.All the Directors have either obtained Certificate of Director’s Training Program or are exempted from
the requirement of Director’s Training Program as per the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

10.The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied
with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11.Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the unconsolidated and
consolidated financial statements before approval of the Board.

12.The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee: Muhammad Tufail Igbal - Chairman
Muhammad Igbal Bilwani
Talat Igbal

b) HR and Remuneration Committee: Talat Igbal - Chairman
Muhammad Igbal Bilwani
Saqib Haroon Bilwani

13.The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the committee for compliance.

14 The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

a) Audit Committee: Four (4) meetings were held during the year
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: One (1) meeting held during the year

15.The Board has set up an effective internal audit function comprising of suitably qualified and
experienced staff who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16.The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director
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17.The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18.We confirm that all requirements of Regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with. With respect to the compliance with Regulation 6, the Board has appointed three
independent directors, and the fraction one-third number was not rounded up to one as the three
independent directors elected had requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and experience to fulfil their
obligations as per the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations and hence, appointment of
fourth independent director was not warranted.

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36
(non-mandatory requirements) are below:

Reg. , _
S.nho o Requirement Explanation

1 10A | The Board may establish a | The Board is handling relevant responsibilities diligently.
dedicated sustainability It is not deemed necessary to constitute a separate
committee to address sustainability committee. Furthermore, with respect to
sustainability risks and anti-harassment policy and companies’ diversity, equity
opportunities. and inclusion (DE&I) are taken care by the management

of the Company with oversight by the relevant Board Audit
Committee and also where needed the Board provides
governance and oversight in relation to the companies
initiatives over environmental social and governance(ESG)
matters. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to evaluate
the need for separate committee requirements as
circumstances evolve.

2 29 The Board may constitute a The Board is currently handling the responsibilities
separate committee, desig-| typically assigned to a Nomination Committee directly at
nated as the nomination |the Board level. Given this effective management, the
committee,of such number|establishment of a separate Nomination Committee is not
and class of Directors, as it | deemed necessary at this time. The Board will continue to
may deem appropriate in |evaluate the need for such a committee as circumstances
its circumstances. evolve.

3 30 The Board may constitute |The Board has not constituted a risk management
the risk management com-| committee as risk management framework is effectively
mittée, of such number managed at Company’s level by the executive committee
and class of Directors, as it
e e s e which is headed by the CEO and the CEO apprises the
its circumstances, to carry | Board accordingly.
almost out a review of the
effectiveness of risk
management procedures
and present a report to the
Board.
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4 35(1) | Disclosure of significant All policies are effectively communicated to the relevant

policies on websites. employees and directors. The Board may consider
publishing these policies and their summaries on the
Company website in the future.

SHABBIR DIWAN ABDUL RAZAK DIWAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN
October 4, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GATRON
(INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Un-Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed un-consolidated financial statements of Gatron (Industries)
Limited, (“the Company”’) which comprise the un-consolidated statement of financial position as
at June 30, 2025, the un-consolidated statement of profit or loss, the un-consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the un-consolidated statement of changes in equity, the un-consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the un-consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information,
and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the un-consolidated statement of financial position, un-consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
un-consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the un-consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the un-consolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in [akistan and give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2025 and
of the loss, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then

ended.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As) as
applicable in Pakistan, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the un-consolidated Financial Slatements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (“the Code"”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the un-consolidated financial statements of the current year, These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the un-consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Suite No. 1601, 16th Floor, Kashif Centre, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Phone: 92-21-35640050 - 52
Website: www krestonhb.com E-mail: hyderbhimji@krestonhbeo.com infoalkrestonhbeo.com

OTHER OFFICES LAHORE - FAISALABAD - ISLAMABAD

A member of Kreston Global
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Following are the Key audit matters:

S. No. Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit
I. [Recognition of Revenue [Our audit pmr’.‘mt‘es.ﬁcluded the following;

Revenue from sale of the Company’s
i products was Rs. 26,328.04 million as

disclosed in note 3.17 and 29. Revenue
is recognized at point in time when
performance obligations are satisfied
by transferring control of promised
goods to customer.,

» Assessed the appropriateness of th
Company’s accounting policies fo
revenue recognition and compliance o
those  policies with  applicable
accounting standards.

—

# Obtained an  understanding  of
Revenue being one of key performance management’s internal controls over the
indicator of the Company and there is revenue process and tested effectiveness
inherit risk of material misstatement of controls relevant to such process.

involved in revenue recognition has
resulted in the revenue recognition
being considered as a key audit matter,

"-IF

Performed cut-off procedures on
sample basis on revenue transactions
recorded just before and after the ye
end with the underlying goods delivery
notes, bill of lading, invoices and othe
relevant documents to assess whethe
the revenue has been recognized in th
appropriate accounting period.

Performed test of details by selecting]
sample of transactions for comparing
with sales invoices, dispatch documents
| and other underlying records; and

W

evaluated the appropriateness o
disclosures in the un-consolidated
financial statements in accordance with
the requirements of the accounting and
reporting standards applicable in

Pakistan. _I

» Performed other related procedures anc:‘

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2025



¥ KRESTON

. HYDER BHIMJI & CO.
Wb,  CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS

S. No. Key audit matter(s) I How the maE: was addressed in our audit
2 hamw_ma |

Qur audit procedures included the following:

The Company has significant amounts
of borrowings from Banks and other
financial institutions amounting to Rs.
16,026.04 million, being 70.09% of total
liabilities, as at reporting date,

» Reviewed loan agreements and facility
letters on sample basis to ascertain the
terms and conditions of repayment,
rates of markup/profit used and
disclosed by the management and
ensured that the borrowings have been
approved at appropriate level.

' Given the significant level of

borrowings, finance costs and gearing

impact, the disclosure given by the

management  in un-consolidated

' financial statements and compliance

with various loan covenants, this is
considered to be a key audit matter.

» Verified disbursement of loans and|
utilization on sample basis. Reviewed
charge registration documents.

» Verified repayments made by the
Company during the year on sample
basis to confirm that repayments are
being made on time and no default
has been made.

(refer notes 315, 19 and 25 to the un-
consolidated financial statements).

» Checked the Company’s compliancel
with the debt covenants on sample basis|
as outlined in the loan agreements.

» DPerformed  analytical  procedures
recalculations and other related
procedures for wverification of finance|
costs on sample basis; and

» Ensured that the outstanding
liabilities have been properly
classified and related securities and ‘

other terms are adequately disclosed
in the un-consolidated financial
statements.
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Information Other than the un-consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report, but does not include the un-consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the un-consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the un-consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the un-consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the un-consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the un-consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of un-consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the un-consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’'s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the un-consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the un-consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these un-
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the un-consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the un-
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the un-consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the un-consolidated fnancial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the un-consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the un-consolidated statement of financial position, the un-consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the un-consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the un-consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the un-consolidated statement of cash flows together
with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and retumns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Taswar
Hussain.

Chartered Accountants

Karachi:

Dated: October 06, 2025

UDIN: AR202510729uOMCYSHyT
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GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS

Non - Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset

Long term investments

Long term loans

Long term depaosits

Current Assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Current portion of long term loans

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other receivables

Advance income tax

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

LIABILITIES

Non - Current Liabilities

Long term financing

Lease liability against right of use assets
Deferred liabilities and income

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Unpaid dividend

Accrued mark-up/ profit

Short term borrowings

Current portion of long term financing

Current portion of lease liability against right of use assets
Current portion of deferred liabilities and income
Provision for levies and income tax less payments

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

00~ o N B

10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17
18

19
20
21

23
24
25
19
20
26
27

|Rupees in Thousand)

2025

18,448,334
50,127
443,964
182,672
6,936

2024

18,778,042
60,152
509,463
405,475
6,936

19,132,033

2,098,667
7,313,274
4,662,811
572,899
18,874
9,362
309,016

119,941

19,760,068

1,990,321
7,503,024
3,516,225
460,483
35,584
71,525
884,648
70,000
297,008

15,104,844

34,236,877

*

1,087,290
10,285,299

14,828,818

34,588,886

1,087,290
12,199,873

11,372,589

7,628,310
71,666

1,225,486

13,287,163

8,507,127
107,749

8,925,462

1,340,828

4,550,612
853
20,801
480,103
6,909,208
1,488,520
23,322
248,026

217,381

9,955,704

5,522,641
8,219
20,801
543,012
3,579,563
1,196,089
15,020
254,090

13,938,826

206,584

34,236,877

ﬂﬂ

The notes 1 to 49 annexed herewith form an integral part of these un-consolidated financial statements.

SHABBIR DIWAN
Chief Executive Officer

MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI

Director

11,346,019

34,588,886

#

MUHAMMAD NAEEM
Chief Financial Officer

Buying/Selling closing conversion rates were 1 USS = Rs.283.60/284.10, 1 Euro € = Rs.332.29/332.87 and 1 Pound £ =

Rs.388.28/388.97

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
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GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
Sales 29 26,328,040 34,013,581
Cost of sales 30 25,442,226 31,926,722
Gross profit 885,814 2,086,859
Distribution and selling costs 31 446,117 301,996
Administrative expenses 32 486,070 561,347
Other expenses 33 166,788 120,664
1,098,975 984,007
(213,161) 1,102,852
Other income 34 111,710 289,650
Operating (loss)/profit (101,451) 1,392,502
Finance cost 35 1,539,267 1,494,587
(1,640,718) (102,085)
Investment income - Dividend 36 - 8,538
Loss before levies and income tax (1,640,718) (93,547)
Levies 37 329,842 424,411
Loss before income tax (1,970,560) (517,958)
Income tax - Prior 563 (94,553)
- Deferred - (219,047)
38 563 (313,600)
Loss for the year (1,971,123) (204,358)
Loss per share - Basic and diluted ( Rupees ) 39 (18.13) (2.36)

The notes 1 to 49 annexed herewith form an integral part of these un-consolidated financial statements.

MUHAMMAD NAEEM
Chief Financial Officer

SHABBIR DIWAN MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI
Chief Executive Officer Director

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2025




GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
Loss for the year (1,971,123) (204,358)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will never be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit plan having nil tax impact 21.2 56,549 38,496

Total comprehensive loss (1,914,574) (165,862)

The notes 1 to 49 annexed herewith form an integral part of these un-consolidated financial statements.

SHABBIR DIWAN MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI MUHAMMAD NAEEM
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Balances as at July 01, 2023

Total comprehensive loss for the year ended June 30, 2024
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Subscription of shares against right issue @41,7052% at a
premium of Rs.165 per share

Shares issue cost
Balances as at June 30, 2024

Total comprehensive loss for the year ended June 30, 2025
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Balances as at June 30, 2025

Rupees in Thousand

Reserves

(Accumulated loss)/

The notes 1 to 49 annexed herewith form an integral part of these un-consolidated financial statements.

SHABBIR DIWAN
Chief Executive Officer

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

Share Capital reserves Unappropriated
capital (note 18) profit Total
767,290 b,383,645 709,132 7,092,777 7,860,067
- - (204,358) (204,358) (204,358)
38,496 38,496 38,496
(165,862} (165,862) (165,862)
320,000 5,280,000 - 5,280,000 5,600,000
- (7,042) - (7,042) (7,042)
1,087,290 11,656,603 543,270 12,199,873 13,287,163
(1,971,123) (1,971,123) (1,971,123)
56,549 56,549 56,549
- - (1,914,574) (1,914,574) (1,914,574)
lsﬂﬂ?glgﬂ 11!EEE!ED3 !Igi?lsiﬂi! IHEIEE!IH 1153?1!539
MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI MUHAMMAD NAEEM
Director Chief Financial Officer

ANNUAL REPORT 2025




GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Cash Flows (towards)/from Operating Activities

Loss before levies and income tax

Adjustments for non cash income & expenses:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right of use assets
Amortization of intangible asset
Provision for defined benefit plan
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment in long term investments
Impairment of allowance for ECL-net
Impairment allowance for slow moving stores, spare parts

and loose tools-net

Amortization of interest free long term loan to subsidiary company
Remeasurement gain on discounting of provision for GIDC
Investment income - Dividend
Finance costs

(Increase)/decrease in current assets:
Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables
Cash flows from operations

Receipts of/(Payments for):
Long term loans
Long term deposits
Defined benefit plan
Finance costs
Income tax
Group taxation impact
MNet cash flows (towards)/from operating activities

Cash flows (towards)/from Investing Activities
Additions in property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Long term investment made
Dividend received
Net cash flows towards investing activities

Cash flows (towards)/from Financing Activities
Proceed against issue of share capital net of issuance cost
Long term financing - proceeds received
Long term financing - repayments
Payments for lease liability against right of use assets
Short term borrowings - net (fixed term instruments)
Dividend paid

Net cash flows (towards)/from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes 1 to 49 annexed herewith form an integral part of these un-conselidated financial statements,

SHABBIR DIWAN MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI
Chief Executive Officer Director

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

Note

4.2
4.6.1

21.2

33
11.5

=3 S

35

21.2

4.3

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
(1,640,718) (93,547)
1,516,800 863,848

24,639 23,720
10,025 10,025
143,848 130,509
(23,758) (22,088)
53,871 38,357
45,761 52,641
15,220 21,034
(49,441) (41,722)
(1,173) (12,664)

- (8,538)
1,539,267 1,494,587
3,275,059 2,549,709
1,634,341 2,456,162
(123,566) (431,887)
189,750 3,883,715
(1,192,347) 406,923
(112,416) (164,969)
62,163 317,543
575,632 961,742
(600,784) 4,973,067
(970,832) (3,699,662)
62,725 3,729,567
300,582 (307,915)

- (2,017)
(41,473) (35,913)
(1,587,810) (1,811,476)
(247,633) (354,418)
(1,975) (964)
(1,515,584) 1,216,864
(1,243,955) (2,602,631)
48,503 44,749

- (200)

- 8,538
(1,195,452) (2,549,544)
- 5,592,958
286,053 1,420,696
(1,039,695) (780,620)
(34,668) (32,271)
142,609 (635,175)
(7,366) (12,836)
(653,067) 5,552,752
(3,364,103) 4,220,072
(3,117,730 (7,337,802)
(6,481,833) (3,117,730)

MUHAMMAD NAEEM
Chief Financial Officer
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GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UN-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.5.1

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan in 1980 as a Public Limited Company and its shares are quoted at Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited since 1992. The principal business of the Company is manufacturing of Polyester Filament Yarn through its self-produced
Polyester Polymer/Chips. The Company also produces Pet Preforms. The registered office of the Company is situated at Room No. 32,
1st floor, Ahmed Complex, linnah Road, Quetta whereas the manufacturing facility of the Company is situated at Plot No 441/49-M2,
Sector “M", H.L.T.E., Main R.C.D. Highway, Hub Chowki, Distt Lasbela, Balochistan, Liaison office of the Company is situated at 11th
Floor, G&T Tower, # 18 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines-10, Karachi and 2nd floor, Bahria Complex-I, M.T. Khan Road, Karachi.

The Company also wholly owns following Subsidiary Companies:
Gatro Power (Private) Limited, which is engaged in power generation.
Global Synthetics Limited, which has yet to commence its operations.

- G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited, which is engaged in power generation and commence its operations from January 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Basis of measurement

These un-consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except otherwise specifically
stated in note 3.

These un-consolidated financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for un-consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Separate financial statements

These un-consolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which Investment in subsidiaries
has been accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Functional and presentation currency

These un-consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee (Rupees), which is the Company's functional currency.

Statement of Compliance

These un-consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and

- provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that became effective during the year

There were certain new amendments to the approved accounting standards and a new interpretation issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which became effective during the year but are considered not to be relevant or
have any significant effect on the Company's operations, therefore, not disclosed in these un-consolidated financial statements exept
for additional disclosures required by amendment in IAS-1 relating to classification of non-current liabilities (refer note 41.3).
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2.5.2 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date
mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's
operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's un-consolidated financial statements other than certain
additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting period
beginning on or after:

|IAS-21 The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Amendments) January 1, 2025
IFRS-7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) January 1, 2026
IFRS-17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2026
IFRS-9 Financial Instruments — Classification and Measurement of Financial January 1, 2026

Instruments (Amendments)

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also
issued the following standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exempt by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at January 31, 2025.

IFRS - 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS - 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
IFRS - 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
IFRS - 51 General requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information
IFRS - §2 Climate-related Disclosure
IFRIC - 12 Service Concession Arrangement
2.6 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of un-consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
have an effect on the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors including expectation of future events that, in
the considered opinion of the management, are reasonable under the circumstances, the results whereof provide the basis of
making judgment in relation to carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily measurable, using other means. The
definitive impact of ultimate outcome, may fluctuate from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are periodically appraised. Revision to accounting estimates is recognized and effect is
given in the period in which estimates are revised, or in the period of the revision and future periods as appropriate.

Information about estimates and judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the significant effects on the amounts
recognized in un-consolidated financial statements are as follows:

2.6.1  Property, plant and equipment and Intangible asset
The Company's management reviews the estimated useful lives and related depreciation/amortization charge for its property, plant
and equipment and intangible asset on each reporting date. The Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment
on each reporting date where there is any such indication. Any change in the estimate in future years might affect the carrying
amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with a corresponding effect on the
depreciation, impairment and deferred tax, if any.

2.6.2  Impairment of financial assets
The Company reviews the recoverability of its financial assets i.e. trade debts, loans, deposits, short term investments, and other
receivables to assess amount of expected credit loss required there against on annual basis. While determining impairment
allowance, the Company considers financial health, market and economic information, aging of receivables, credit worthiness, credit
rating, lifetime expected losses, past records and business relationship.
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2.6.3  Stock in trade
The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the respective carrying values on each
reporting date. Net realizable value is determined with respect to estimated selling prices less estimated expenditure to make the
sales.

2.6.4  Stores, spare parts and loose tools
The estimate of slow moving and obsolete stores, spare parts and loose tools, are made, using and appropriately judging the
relevant inputs and applying the parameter i.e. age analysis, obsolescence and expected use, as the management considers
appropriate, which, on actual occurrence of the subseguent event, may fluctuate. The effects of variation is recorded as and when it
takes place.

2.6.5 Defined benefit plan
The actuarial valuation of defined benefit plan, have been premised on certain actuarial hypothesis, as disclosed in note 3.9.2 and
21.2. Changes in assumptions in future years may affect the liability under this scheme upto those years.

2.6.6 Levies
The Company takes into account the current income tax law, legislations and decisions taken by the taxation authorities for
determination of levies. These include determining the specific obligating event that triggers levy recognition based on the relevant
legislation, estimating the amount payable by considering applicable rates, and deciding the appropriate timing for recognizing the
levy liability. These estimates and judgements are periodically reviewed and updated as necessary.

2.6.7 Income tax
In making the estimate for income tax liabilities, the management considers current income tax law and the decisions of appellate
authorities, Deferred tax estimate is made considering future applicable tax rate, as also stated disclosed in note 3.12.

2.6.8 Impairment of investment in Subsidiary Companies
In making an estimate of recoverable amount of the Company's investment, the management considers breakup value of shares of
respective period, see note 3.4,

2.6.9 Contingencies
The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future events
cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of
contingent assets and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence/non-occurrence of the uncertain future event(s).

2.6,10 Leases
The Company uses judgements and estimates in measurement of right of use assets and corresponding lease liabilities with respect
to discount rates, lease terms including exercise of renewal and termination options etc.

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these un-consolidated financial statements are the same as those
consistently applied in the preparation of the un-consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2024. The principal material policies applied in the preparation of these un-consolidated financial statements are set out below:

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Initial Recognition:
The cost of an item is recognized as an asset if and only the future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the
Company and cost of the items can be measured reliably.

Measurement:

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment if any, except free-hold land, lease-hold land and capital
work in progress which are stated at cost. No amortization is provided on leasehold land since the leases are renewable at the
option of the lessee at nominal cost and their realizable values are expected to be higher than respective carrying values.

When parts of an item of property, plant & equipment have different useful life, they are accounted as separate items (major
component) of property, plant and equipment.
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Subsequent costs:

Subsequent costs (including those on account of major replacement of significant part/item) are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future additional economic benefits
associated with such additional cost will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other normal
repair and maintenance incurred are recognized in un-consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is charged on diminishing balance method except overhauling (major parts), which are depreciated at straight line
method, at the rates mentioned in Note 4.1, whereby the depreciable amount of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life.
Depreciation on addition is charged from the month of the asset is available for use upto the month prior to disposal.

Impairment:

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment, If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in
excess of their respective estimated recoverable amounts. Where estimated carrying amounts exceed the respective recoverable
amounts, the estimated carrying amounts are appropriately adjusted with impairment loss recognized in statement of profit or loss
for the period. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Fair value means the
amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Where an
impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying
amount over its estimated useful life.

Write off:
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized when no economic future benefits are expected from its use.

Gain or Loss:
Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, if any, is recognized in the un-consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Right of use assets:

Right of use assets are initially measured at cost being the present value of lease payments, initial direct costs, any lease payments
made at of before the commencement of the lease as reduced by any incentives received. These are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the asset. Where the ownership
of the asset transfer to the Company at the end of the lease term or if the cost of the asset reflects that the Company will exercise
the purchase option, depreciation is charged over the useful life of assets.

3.2 Intangible Asset

An intangible asset is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the
entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding, beyond one year, are
recognized as an intangible asset.

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any except capital work in progress which are stated at
cost. Intangible asset is amortized on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s). Amortization on additions during the
financial year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, whereas no amortization is charged from the month the
asset is disposed-off.

3.3 Impairment
Financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-
month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
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Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a reasonable
period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering of a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and
amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

The adoption of the expected loss approach has not resulted in any material change in impairment provision for any financial asset.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets and inventories are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount,
being higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the un-consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.4 Investments

Subsidiary Companies

Investment in Subsidiary Companies are initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of investments is reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists the investment's
recoverable amount is estimated which is higher of its value in use and its fair value/breakup value less cost to sell. An impairment
loss is recognized if the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.5 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at weighted average cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising of invoice value and other incidental
charges incurred thereon till the reporting date. Adequate impairment allowance is made for slow moving and obsolete items based
on parameter set out by the management as stated in note 2.6.4. The major value spares and stand by equipments are capitalized
and depreciated according to their useful life.

3.6 Stock in trade

These are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. The value of goods in process and finished goods
represents costs of direct materials plus applicable labour and production overheads.
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Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other incidental charges incurred thereon upto the reporting date.
3.7 Trade debts, advances and other receivables

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and measured at fair value of
consideration receivable. Export debtors are translated into Rupee at the rate prevailing on the reporting date. An expected credit
loss is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect amounts due according to the
original terms of the trade debts. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss
experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and running finance.
Running finance are shown within short term borrowings.

3.9 Employees’ post employment benefits

3.9.1 Defined contribution plan
The Company provides provident fund benefits to all its eligible employees. Equal contributions are made, both by the Company and
the employees and the same is charged to the statement of profit or loss.

3.9.2 Defined benefit plan
The Company operates an unfunded defined gratuity scheme, in addition to defined contribution plan being not mandatory under
the law, for its employees and working directors who attain the minimum qualification period. The obligation is determined through
actuarial valuation by an independent actuary using the "Projected Unit Credit Method". The latest actuarial valuation was
conducted on the balances as at June 30, 2025.

3.10 Compensated unavailed leaves
The Company accounts for its estimated liability towards unavailed leaves accumulated by employees on accrual basis.
3.11 Government scheme

Government scheme are transfer of resources to an entity by government entity in return for the compliance with certain past or
future conditions related to the entity's operating activities. The definition of "government” refers to governments, government
agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national or international.

The Company recognizes benefits under the government schemes when there is reasonable assurance that benefits of the schemes
will be received and the Company will be able to comply with conditions associated with schemes. These benefits are recognized at
fair value, as deferred income.

Schemes that compensate the Company for expenses incurred, are recognized on a systematic basis in the income for the year in
which the related expenses are recognized. schemes that compensate for the cost of an asset are recognized in income on
systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

A loan is initially recognized and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 9. IFRS 9 requires loan at below-market rates to be
initially measured at their fair value - e.g. the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at a market-related
interest rate. The benefit under the government financing scheme is measured as the difference between the fair value of the loan
on initial recognition and the amount received, which is accounted for according to the nature of the scheme.

3.12 Income Tax

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into account applicable tax
credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or minimum tax u/s 113 and alternate corporate tax u/s 113C of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. The Company to the extent of export sales fall under the final tax regime u/s 154 read with
section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary,
to provision for taxation made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the period for such years.
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Deferred

The Company accounts for deferred income tax on all temporary timing differences using the liability method. Deferred income tax
assets are recognized to the extent, it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which, the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits, can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. In this regard, the effect on deferred taxation of the portion of
income expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted.

Levies

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount paid / payable in excess of the
calculation based on taxable income or any minimum tax which is not adjustable against future income tax liability is classified as
levy in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 12/IAS 37.

3.13 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortized cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods
and services recognized upto reporting date.

3.14 Provision

Provision is recognized when the Company has present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, if it is probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, and reliable estimate of the amounts can be made.

3.15 Borrowings and their costs
Borrowings are recorded as the proceeds received.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, installation or production of a qualifying asset, where borrowing costs, if
any, are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

3.16 Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded into Rupee using the prevailing exchange rates. As on reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Rupee at the prevailing exchange rates on the reporting date. Resultant
exchange differences are taken to statement of profit or loss.

3.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The revenue from diverse
sources is recognized as explained below:

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control of a
promised good or service to a customer, and the control transfers at a point in time, i.e. at the time the goods are dispatched /
shipped to customer. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts,
returns rebates and government levies.

- Processing services are recognized on completion of services rendered.

- Dividend income is recognized when the right of receipt is established.

- Income from rent is recognized on accrual basis.

- Storage and handling income is recognized on performing services or issuance of invoices.

- Profit on deposits is recognized using the effective interest method.
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3.18 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.19 Dividend and appropriation to reserve

Liability for dividend and appropriation to reserve are recognized in the un-consolidated financial statements in the period in which
these are approved.

Transfer between reserves made subsequent to the reporting date is considered as a non-adjusting event and is recognized in the
period in which such transfers are made.

3.20 Financial instruments

Initial measurement of financial asset
The Company classifies its financial assets in to following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- measured at amortized cost.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated using the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Equity Investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in the
statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, Other net gains
and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest /
markup or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the
respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other receivables and cash and
cash equivalent. The Company derecognizes the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.

3.21 Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities at amortized costs are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

3.22 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position, if the
Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the asset and discharge the liability simultaneously.

3.23 Operating segments

Segment results that are reported to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) - the chief operating decision maker include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items, if any, comprise
mainly corporate assets, head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. Management monitors the operating
results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions regarding resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure if any, is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment. Segment
results are stated in note 43.

3.24 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

3.25 Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If the implicit rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate issued. Subsequently these are
increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and remeasured for lease modifications, if any.

Liabilities in respect of certain short term and low value leases are not recognized and payments against such leases are recognized
as expense in profit or loss.

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
g PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 4.1 17,734,041 13,803,433
Capital work in progress 4.5 637,586 4,848,559
Right of use assets 4.6 76,707 108,825
Advance for purchase of land 28.3.1 - 17.225

18,448,334 18,778,042

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2025



8v8 '£98

008'9TS'T

BEY'TT TEZ'8 ZE
1512 Bl IE
GG 0S8 DZ8's0S'T DE

t2oe

SZ0Z 210N

(puesnoy] uj seadny)

sasuadxa aAgensIUIUIPY
51500 Fu|j[@s pue uoanqLasig
53|es 0 150D

'SMO||0) Se pajeno|je uaaq sey Jead ayl oy uoneaidag  Z'p

wnuue Jad g - a1es ucuenaudag

anea jooqaN
uoyuesaidap palejniunIoy ;ssa’
1500

20z ‘O aunr iy
anjea JujAlies ssolg

sappjyan

uawdinba

saJnxy pue

Aaujysew

sas|weud

pZ0Z ‘sunf O 1e se anjea jooqjan
(z'¥ 230u) ucyezaidag ssa

(gt ajou) AAN 1€ [esods| S50

{6 ¢ a30u) ssaldosd u) yaom |ended wody Jajsues |
12al-suoclippy

ETOT 'AINT .10 1€ Se {AGN) an|eA jooq 19N

PZOZ 0E aunf papua Jea)
anjea Julhiied 12N

wnuue Jad 9 - a1el1 uonenasdag

anen yooq1@N
uoueaidap palenwnady ($sa
150D

SZ0Z 'Ot aunr iy
anjea dujhlied ssolg

GZOZ 'BUN[ YIOE 1B SB anjeA oo q laN
(Z'¥ 930u) uoyeasdag (ssan

(e'v 230U} AGN 3B |esodsiq 5597

(6% 230u) ssaudoud Ul yiom |epdes wody Jajsuels |
12adid-suonippy

$Z0Z ‘AINT ., TO 3€ Se {ABN) an|eA yooq JaN

SZOZ 0€ aunr papus sea )

angea Julhiied 12N

0z D€ 0102 0z 0z 0f 0101 01 ) 0T - .
EEV'E0BET TIv'6L2 S6L'tL 6095 8502 I8Z'996'TT 9zt 08£'852'T 1€ vis'sty 890981
ETE'GLZ'S S68'907 #99'%1 12v'e8 8ST'E 615v6E L S61'E #9099 LGR'ET - -
9L ‘Z80'ZT 90E98Y 6St'TT DER'BET 91E'S 008'09Z'61 TZ6'E PZT'616'T stz WL5'SY 890981
EEV'E0BET TIv'6LZ S6L'L 60195 8S0°'C I8Z996'T1 azL 09L'852'T ISE vLs'st 89098 T
BB ‘€98 86161 659°C 88111 518 ELE'SOL 18 S6L 76 6E . -
19922 BCE'OT EEE'T . ¥ ¥ ; s
6EF'0O6E'S . - - . S6S'T1LL . 8845 - - .
9DE‘'S9E SIv'sa1 - L9112 - vEQ'SH - - - - CHSTET
L6T'PED'S CZS'E8T L8L'TT ST6'SY ELS'T CZY'vI6' Y L08 TIL VL L 06E vLG'SY ERV'ES

0z 0E 0102 0T 0T O£ 0101 01 DT 0T . +
TrO'PEL LT 98,152 €269 oL 'sr 99T vrz'eTZ’'st 965 €66'SES'T Ot6 992 vLs'sy €6S'SSE
SLEPOL'E SRE'OPT SS9l EBE ¥6 DL9'E Ivz'9z8’'8 SLB'T LTL'68L G v'0E . -
9Iv'8EbLE 141861 8077 61 vl 91E'g S8Y'6EL'ET 145°E OCL'STE'T 68E'L6T vLS'SY E6S'SGE
THO'PELLT 98L°182 €269 9L ‘6l 99T rrZ'eETZ'ST 965 €66'SEST o6 992 vLS'st €65'G5E
DO8'9TIS'T ovZ'LS 188°1 29611 (448 0Z¥' 66T 1 0L E9Z'6T1 75591 - .
SvL've azv'1e - - - 6ST'E 09 - - - -
€9L'9Z2'S - . - - 9Z1'LES'Y - 961901 I7T1'ERE . .
D6 ‘'StZ 1v0°LS 6001 66E'S - 915'Z1 - - - - 625691
EEV'E0B'ET TIv'6LC 6Ll GOY'9g 8S0'T 18299611 9zL 0948521 15€ PLG'SY RIN'9BT

ANNUAL REPORT 2025

JO10 A Alooed 2JnLing pue Jue|d 2O

ployasean RIOYaaly
Ployasea| UQ g pjoysed ugQ . sJe|noJed
3upIng T T

sjasse paxy dupessdg 1w

(puesnoy | U] seadny)

=)
Lid
=
=
=
7
—
ac
—
VI
=
o
<
2
o)
=
<
U




4.3 Detail of property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year : (Rupees in Thousand)

Mode of

Office Premises
Items having book value upto Rs.500 350 60 3,000 2,940 Various Various
thousand each
Sub Total 350 60 3,000 2,940
PLANT AND MACHINERY
TRANSFORMER 3000KVA I 3,760 853 1,938 1,085 | Negotiation |M/s. Gencom Spares & Service
Sector-6F, Mehran Town Korangi
Industrial Area, Karachi.
COOLING TOWER 34,709 1,737 3,184 1,447 | Negotiation |M/s. Ismail Kabeer Ahmed
Jahangirabad, Nazimabad, Karachi.
Items having book value upto Rs.500 32,489 - 669 | S,EDEI. 4,840 Various Various
thousand each
Sub Total 70,958 3,259 10,631 7,372
MOTOR VEHICLES
HONDA CIVIC ORIEL 3,489 1,050 2,114 1,064 | Company |Mr. Mohammed Zubair
BQC-855 F'ﬂﬁt! Employee of the company
HYUNDAI TUCSON 8,013 7,746 8,063 317 | Company |[Mr. Mubin Jaliawala
BM-6174 Policy Employee of the company
TOYOTA COROLLA GLI 2,369 700 1,292 592 Company |Mr. Shaheen
BQG-341 Policy Employee of the company
HONDA HR-V 6,303 4,084 5,336 1,252 | Company |Mr. Abdul Razzak
BL-1175 Policy Employee of the company
TOYOTA ALTIS 3,155 232 1,735 803 Company |Mr. Muhammad Naeem
BQR-137 Policy Employee of the company
SUZUKI WAGON-R VXL 1,625 519 1,620 1,101 Company |Mr. Jahangir
BRF-619 Policy Employee of the company
CAR CHANGAN ALSVIN 3,849 2,833 3,650 817 | Company |Mr. Khurram Nawab
BZF-377 Policy Employee of the company
Items having book value upto Rs.500 16,373 3,562 11,062 7,500 Various Various
thousand each
Sub Total 45,176 21,426 34,872 13,446
Total - 2025 116,484 24,745 48,503 23,758
Total - 2024 63,744 22,661 44,749 22,088
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4.4

4.5

4.5.1

4.6

4.6.1

Particulars of immovable properties owned by the Company are as follows :

Particulars Location Approximate Area
Land
Freehold Plot#435/43, 441/49, 442/49, 443/49, 446/49/1, 27 Acres

445/49/1, 448/36, 450/41, 452/44, 452/440/44,
453/440/44, 36, 45/1, 53/2, 73-7T4min & 509/1 at
H.L.T.E., Hub Chowki, Distt. Lasbela Balochistan
Freehold Plot#34 & 36 at Manghopir, Gadap Town, Karachi 13 Acres

Leasehold PlotH 436/43, 437/43, 438/43, 439/44, 449/41, 35 Acres
451/440/44, 44, 50, 50/1, 52, 52/1 & 53/1 at H.I.T.E,,
Hub Chowki, Distt. Lasbela Balochistan

Building
On Freehold land H.L.T.E., Hub Chowki, Distt. Lasbela Balochistan 11,500 Sq. Meters
On Leasehold land H.L.T.E., Hub Chowki, Distt. Lasbela Balochistan 163,800 Sg. Meters
Office Premises Office#1,3-A, 3-B, 5 & 7 at Textile Plaza, M.A linnah 350 5q. Meters
Road / Dunolly Road Karachi
Office Premises Office#207-212, Gul Tower, 1.1 Chundrigar Road, Karachi 225 Sq. Meters
Office Premises Room#32, Ahmed Complex, Jinnah Road, Quetta 30 Sq. Meters
Office Premises Madina Plaza, Katcheri Bazar, Faisalabad 160 Sq. Meters
Capital Work-in-Progress
(Rupees in Thousand)
Transfer to
Balance as at Operating fixed Balance as at
July 1, 2024 Additions assets June 30, 2025
Factory building under canstruction 673,078 16,559 (689,637) -
Plant and machinery under erection 4,175,481 999,231 (4,537,126) 637,586
4,848,559 1,015,790 (5,226,763) 637,586
Transfer to
Balance as at Operating fixed Balance as at
July 1, 2023 Additions assets June 30, 2024
Factory building under construction 873,926 377,996 (578,844) 673,078
Plant and machinery under erection 10,030,172 1,856,904 (7,711,595) 4,175,481
10,904,098 2,234,900 8,290,439 4,848,559

It includes borrowing cost of Rs.1.948 million (2024: Rs.388.970 million) and net of with amortization of government scheme amounting to
Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.138.483 million). Effective rate of borrowing cost ranges between 11.21% to 12.14% (2024: 3% to 22.80%).

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
Right of use assets
Rented premises:

Balance as at start of the year 108,825 -
Additions during the year - 132,545
Effect of lease modification during the year (7,479) -
Depreciation for the year 4.6.1 (24,639) (23,720)
Balance as at end of the year 76,707 108,825
Allocation of depreciation

Distribution and selling costs 31 8,368 5,579
Administrative expenses 32 16,271 18,141

24,639 23,720

INTANGIBLE ASSET

Software & licences

Balance as at start of the year 60,152 70,177
Amortization during the year 32 (10,025) (10,025)
Balance as at end of the year 50,127 60,152
Useful life 8 Years 8 Years
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6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

7.1

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies-Unquoted

22.575 million (2024: 22.575 million) shares including 7.525 million bonus 6.1 150,500 150,500
shares in Messrs. Gatro Power (Private) Limited
55,000 (2024: 55,000) shares in Messrs. Global Synthetics Limited 6.2 550 550
Impairment loss 6.3 (449) (400)
101 150
25 million (2024: 25 million) shares in Messrs. G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited b.4 250,000 250,000
Present value discounting impact of interest free long term loan to
Messrs. G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited 6.5 210,288 221,916
Impairment loss 6.6 (166,925) (113,103)
293,363 358,813

443,964 209,463

The value of investment on the basis of the net assets, as reported in its audited financial statements as at June 30, 2025 amounted to
Rs.1,634.244 million (2024: Rs.1,677.857 million).

The value of the investment on the basis of the net assets, as reported in its audited financial statements as at June 30, 2025 amounted to
Rs.101 thousand (2024: Rs.150 thousand).

Impairment loss

Balance as at start of the year 400 349
Charge for the year 33 49 51
Balance as at end of the year 449 400

The value of the investment on the basis of the net assets, as reported in its audited financial statements as at June 30, 2025 amounted to
Rs.293.363 million (2024: Rs.358.813 million).

This represents difference between receipt value and present value at the time of disbursement at relevant risk free rate of interest free
loan given to Subsidiary Company.

Impairment loss

Balance as at start of the year

Charge for the year 33
Balance as at end of the year

113,103 74,797
53,822 38,306

166,925 113,103

LONG TERM LOANS - Considered good
Unsecured - Interest free
To subsidiary company - M/s. G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited

Balance at start of the year 545,409 244,209
Disbursement during the year 25,100 364,750
Receipt during the year (325,100) (63,550)
7.1 245,409 545,409
Present value adjustment taken to long term investments 6.5 (210,288) (221,916)
Amortization of long term loan 7.2 144,528 95,087
179,649 418,580
Current portion of long term loan to subsidiary company 13 - (22,500)
179,649 396,080

Secured - Interest free
To employees other than Chief Executive & Directors 73874 21,897 22,479
Amount due in twelve months shown under current assets 13 (18,874) (13,084)
Recoverable within three years 3,023 9,395
182,672 405,475

This represents interest free long term loan given to Subsidiary Company Messrs. G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited for period of three years.
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7.2 The Company has recorded the interest free long term loan given to Subsidiary Company Messrs. G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited at its
present value by discounting the future cash flows at prevailing risk free rate. The amount of difference between loan and its present
value shall be amortized during the tenor of loan.

7.3 The above loans are under the terms of employment and are secured against the post employment benefits of the employees.

7.4 Interest free long term loans have been carried out at cost as the effect of carrying these balances at amortized cost is not material.

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
8 LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Security deposits for utilities and others 6,936 6,936
9 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
In hand:
Stores 1,070,529 920,101
Spare parts 1,152,143 1,176,466
Loose tools 6,726 6,822
2,229,398 2,103,389
Impairment allowance for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools 9.1 (133,131) (117,911)
2,096,267 1,985,478
In transit 2,400 4,843
?.EUBBEEE? 1,990,321
9.1 Impairment allowance for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools
Balance as at start of the year 117,911 96,877
Impairment allowance for the year 33 15,220 21,034
Balance as at end of the year 133,131 117,911
10 STOCK IN TRADE
Raw and packing material 1,097,642 2,255,082
Raw and packing material in transit 327,624 4,122
Goods in process 1,993,722 1,392,301
Unfinished goods held for sale 1,206 32,744
Finished goods 10.1 3,893,080 3,818,775

7,313,274 7,503,024

10.1 These include items costing Rs.78.767 million (2024: Rs.90.368 million) valued at net realizable value of Rs.60.889 million (2024: Rs.74.586
million]}.

11 TRADE DEBTS

Considered good

Secured - Export 11.1,11.2 & 11.3 60,777 38,146

Unsecured - local 11.4 4,602,034 3,478,079
4,662,811 3,516,225

Allowance for ECL - local

Unsecured - local 216,581 170,820

Allowance for ECL - local 11.5 (216,581) (170,820)

4,662,811 3,516,225

11.1 These represent balances of USS 0.214 million (2024: USS 0.137 million).

11.2 These include Rs.60.390 million (2024: Rs.0.415 million) due from a related party Messrs. G-Pac Corporation and this balance is not past
due as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.170.030 million (2024: Rs.0.415

million).

11.3 These are secured against letters of credit issued by banks in favour of the Company.
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11.4 These includes related parties balances are as follows:

a) These include Rs,940.978 million (2024: Rs.Nil) due from a related party Messrs. Novatex Limited and this amount is not past due and not
outstanding for more than three months. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.940.978 million

(2024: Rs.923.309 million).

b) These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.15.431 million) due from a related party Messrs. Krystalite Products (Private) Limited. The maximum
aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.15.431 million (2024; Rs.117.848 million).

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
Not past due - 8
Past due 31-90 days - 15,328
Above 90 days - 95
- 15,431
c) These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.Nil) due from a related party Messrs. Mushtag & Company (Private) Limited. The maximum aggregate
amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.1.296 million).
d) These include Rs.294.067 million (2024: Rs.180.901 million) due from a related party Messrs. Mustagim Dyeing &Printing Ind (Private)
Limited. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.312.023 million (2024: Rs.257.035 million).
Not past due 13,870 12,216
Past due 1-30 days 15,036 41,617
Past due 31-90 days 27,251 71,599
Past due 91-180 days 44,657 52,214
Past due 180 days 193,253 3,255
294,067 180,901
11.5 Allowance for ECL - local
Balance as at start of the year 170,820 118,175
Charge for the year 134,351 162,872
Reversals since recovered (88,590) (110,231)
Charge for the year - net 33 45,761 52,641
Balance as at end of the year 115!531 170,820
12 LOANS AND ADVANCES - Considered good
Secured
Advances to employees 12.1 3,506 4,232
Unsecured
Advances:
to suppliers and contractors 1228123 564,562 440,180
for imports 4,831 16,071
569,393 456,251

572,899 460,483

12.1 These represent advances against monthly salary under the terms of employment.

12.2 These include advances against purchase of vehicles Rs.5.665 million (2024; Rs.4,.216 million).

12.3 These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.53.611 million) paid to a subsidiary company Messrs. Gatro Power (Private) Limited, on account of power
supply and this amount is not past due and not outstanding for more than three months. The maximum aggregate amount due at any
month end during the year was Rs.300 million (2024: Rs.225 million).

13 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM LOANS

Current portion of long term loan to subsidiary company 7 ) - 22,500
Loan recoverable in twelve months from employees 7 18,874 13,084
18,874 35,584
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(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
14 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
Margins held by banks 14.1 8,265 26,908
Security deposits 300 39,999
Prepayments 797 4,618
9,362 71,525

* H__
14.1 This represents margin held by bank against Letters of Credit.

15 OTHER RECEIVABLES - Considered good
Receivable from suppliers 15.1 118,401 130,810
Claims receivable from suppliers 7,531 7,357
Sales tax 99,111 628,137
Partial alleged sales tax demand paid 28.1.4,28.1.15 &
28.1.17 30,472 30,472
Partial alleged income tax demand paid 28112 &
28.1.19 43,169 43,169
Others 15.2 & 15.3 10,332 44,703
309,016 884,648

15.1 These includes balances receivable in foreign currency of USS 0.357 million & Euro:0.017 million (2024: USS 0.429 million).
15.2 These includes related parties balances are as follows:

a) These include Rs.5.245 million (2024: Rs.Nil) receivable from a subsidiary company Messrs. Gatro Power (Private) Limited, mainly on
account of plant operation arrangement and this balance is not past due as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any
month end during the year was Rs.8.260 million (2024: Rs.21.857 million).

b) These include Rs.3.000 million (2024: Rs.Nil) receivable from a subsidiary company Messrs. G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited on account of
reimbursement of expenses and this balance is not past due as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end
during the year was Rs.3.000 million (2024: Rs.10 thousand).

c) These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.23.192 million) receivable from a related party Messrs. Novatex Limited on account of common sharing
expenses and balance is not past due as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was
Rs.175.499 million (2024 Rs.175.340 million).

d) These include Rs.0.011 million (2024: Rs.2.459 million) receivable from a related party Messrs, Krystalite Product (Private) Limited on
account of reimbursement of expenses and this balance is not past due as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any
month end during the year was Rs.2.459 million (2024: Rs.2.784 million).

e) These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.Nil) receivable from a related party Messrs. Gani & Tayub (Private) Limited and this balance is not past due
as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.1.126 million).

f) These include Rs.0.116 million (2024: Rs.0.050 million) receivable from a related party Messrs. Nova Mobility (Private) Limited and this

balance is not past due as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.0.150 million
(2024: Rs.0.050 million).

15.3 These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.10.886 million) receivable from Custom Authority against excess custom duty paid during the year.

16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 2,675 3,434

Cash at banks

In current accounts : Local currency 78,690 87,663

In saving accounts : Local currency 16.1 1,711 1,574

In current accounts : Foreign currency 16.2 36,865 204,337
16.3 117,266 293,574

119,941 297,008

16.1 These include security deposits received from contractors Rs.1.605 million (2024 Rs.1.535 million) refer note 22.7. These carries profit
ranging from 5.00% to 19.26%.

16.2 These represent balances of US$ 129,252.57 and Euro € 629,98 (2024: USS 733,557.41 and Euro € 629.98).

16.3 Balance in bank accounts includes an amount of Rs.55.677 million (2024: Rs.158.477 million) kept with Shariah compliant banks.
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17 SHARE CAPITAL

( Number of Shares ) (Rupees in Thousand)
2025 2024 Note 2025 2024

17.1 Authorized capital

130,000,000 130,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 1!3uu!u-nu 1§3DD:DDD

17.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

62,136,080 62,136,080 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each allotted for 621,361 621,361
consideration paid in cash
46,592,880 46,592,880 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each allotted as fully paid 465,929 465,929

bonus shares

108,728,960 108,728,960 1,087,290 1,087,250

17.2.1 These include 3,240,774 (2024: 3,240,774) shares held by a related party, Messrs. Gani & Tayub (Private) Limited, 31,895,139 (2024: Nil)
shares held by associated companies Messrs, Novatex Limited and Nil (2024: 31,895,139) shares held by Messrs. Nova Frontiers Limited.

(Number of shares)

17.3 Movement in number of shares

Opening balance 108,728,960 76,728,960
Right shares issued during the year - 32,000,000
Closing balance 108,728,960 108,728,960

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of these shares are entitled to dividends as declared
from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company.

(Rupees in Thousand)

18 RESERVES

These includes Capital Reserves as follows:

Share premium 18.1 5,656,603 5,656,603
Capital expenditure and BEMR 18.2 6,000,000 6,000,000
Capital reserves 11,656,603 11,656,603

18.1 This represents premium of Rs.20 per share received on initial public issue of 17,438,400 shares in 1992, premium of Rs.10 per share
received on right issue of 3,487,680 shares in 1998 and premium of Rs.165 per share received on right issue of 32,000,000 shares in 2024

and net with share issuance cost of Rs.7.042 million. This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in section
81 of the Companies Act 2017.

18.2 The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on June 26, 2023 decided to earmark a sum of PKR 6,000 million as not
available for distribution by way of dividend on account of capacity expansions and BMR to more accurately reflect the nature of these
reserves,

19 LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured
from banking companies Under Shariah compliant

Meezan Bank Limited 19.1 1,568,687 1,876,836
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited 19.2 46,608 54,815
United Bank Limited 19.3 1,422,957 1,353,117
Bank Al-Falah Limited 19.4 792,860 894,258
Meezan Bank Limited 19.5 1,137,056 1,348,376
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 19.6 78,684 80,006
Faysal Bank Limited 19.7 154,207 178,018
Faysal Bank Limited 19.8 981,001 1,123,815
Habib Bank Limited 19.9 2,222,623 2,116,194
Bank Al-Habib Limited 19.10 116,188 120,031
First Habib Modaraba 19.11 333,630 430,470
Soneri Bank Limited 19.12 31,852 27,280
Bank Al-Habib Limited 19.13 90,000 100,000
MCB Islamic Bank Limited 19.14 140,477 -
9,116,830 9,703,216
Current maturity shown under current liabilities (1,488,520) (1,196,089)
7,628,310 8,507,127
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19.1 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Long Term Financing Facility (ILTFF) amounting to Rs.2,500 million out of which
Rs.2,465.193 million (2024: Rs.2,465.193 million) obtained during June 2019 to June 2021 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is
repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring during June
2029 to June 2031 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+2% bank profit. These loans are
secured by way of exclusive hypothecation charge over specific plant and machinery.

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
Balance as at start of the year 1,876,836 2,184,985
Repayments during the year (308,149) (208,149)
Balance as at end of the year 1,568,687 1,876,836

19.2 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Finance Facility for Renewable Energy (IFRE) amounting to Rs.120 million out of which
Rs.88.204 million (2024: Rs.88.204 million) obtained during February 2020 to September 2021 for procurement of solar panels/solar plant.
Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 20 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of three months and expiring
during February 2030 to September 2031 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+1.50% bank
profit. These loans are secured against the hypothecation charge over specific plant and machinery (solar equipments).

Balance as at start of the year 54,815 67,250
Repayments during the year (8,207) (12,435)
Balance as at end of the year 46,608 54,815

19.3 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF) amounting to Rs.2,200 million out of
which Rs.2,200 million (2024: Rs.2,200 million) having present value of Rs.1,422.957 million (2024: Rs.1,353.117 million) obtained during
February 2021 to October 2022 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly
installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring during February 2031 to October 2032 on their respective
maturities. The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+1.25% bank profit. These loans are secured by way of exclusive
hypothecation charge over specific plant and machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 1,353,117 1,396,382
Amortization of government scheme 129,360 115,838
Repayments during the year (59,520) (159,103)
Balance as at end of the year 1,422,957 1,353,117

19.4 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF) amounting to Rs.1,000 million out of
which Rs.1,000 million (2024: Rs.1,000 million) having present value of Rs.792.860 million (2024: Rs.894.258 million) obtained during April
2021 to September 2022 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 egual half yearly installments,
commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring during April 2031 to September 2032 on their respective maturities. The
applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+1% bank profit. These loans are secured by way of exclusive hypothecation charge over
specific plant and machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 894,258 905,805
Amortization of government scheme 16,140 15,609
Repayments during the year (117,538) (27,156)
Balance as at end of the year 792,860 894,258

19.5 This represents Diminishing Musharakah amounting to Rs.1,900 million out of which Rs.1,554.482 million (2024: Rs.1,554.482 million)
obtained during August 2021 to August 2022 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 12 equal half
yearly instaliments, commencing after a grace period of one years and expiring during August 2028 to August 2029 on their respective
maturities. The applicable rate of profit is 6 months KIBOR+0.10%. These loans are secured by way of specific hypothecation charge over
plant and machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 1,348,376 1,554,482
Repayments during the year (211,320) (206,106)
Balance as at end of the year 1!13?§D56 1,348,376

19.6 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF) amounting to Rs.120 million out of
which Rs.119.904 million (2024: Rs.119.904 million) having present value of Rs.78.684 million (2024: Rs.80.006 million) obtained during
July 2021 to March 2023 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly installments,
commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring during July 2031 to March 2033 on their respective maturities. The applicable
rate of profit is relevant SBP rate+1% bank profit. These loans are secured by way of exclusive hypothecation charge over specific plant
and machinery.
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(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
Balance as at start of the year 80,006 76,165
Amortization of government scheme 6,849 6,068
Repayments during the year (8,171) (2,227)
Balance as at end of the year 78,684 80,006

19.7 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Finance Facility for Renewable Energy (IFRE) amounting to Rs.280 million out of which
Rs.217.113 million (2024: Rs.217.113 million) obtained during July 2021 to February 2023 for procurement of plant & machinery (solar
equipments). Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 20 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of three months
and expiring during September 2031 to May 2033 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+1%
bank profit. These loans are secured against the specific hypothecation charge over plant and machinery (solar equipments).

Balance as at start of the year 178,018 198,039
Repayments during the year (23,811) (20,021)
Balance as at end of the year 154!2ﬂ? 178,018

19.8 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Long Term Financing Facility (ILTFF) amounting to Rs.1,200 million out of which
Rs.1,142.508 million (2024 Rs.1,142.508 million) obtained during October 2021 to April 2023 for purchase of plant and machinery.
Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring
during October 2031 to June 2032 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of profit is relevant SBP rate+1% bank profit. Qut of
total principal, SBP has not disbursed loan amounting to Rs.706.811 million under ILTFF Scheme, therefore bank is charging profit at 3
months KIBOR on those disbursements. These loans are secured by way of exclusive hypothecation charge over specific plant and

machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 1,123,815 1,142,508
Repayments during the year (142,814) (18,693)
Balance as at end of the year 981,001 1,123 815

19.9 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Long Term Financing Facility (ILTFF) amounting to Rs.3,000 million out of which
Rs.2,255.522 million (2024: Rs.2,116.194 million) obtained during June 2022 to March 2025 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal
is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring during Jlune
2032 to March 2035 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of profit is relevant SBP rate+1% bank profit. Out of total principal,
SBP has not disbursed loan amounting to Rs.2,230.085 million under ILTFF Scheme, therefore bank is charging profit at 3 months
KIBOR+0.25% on those disbursements. These loans are secured by way of exclusive hypothecation charge over specific plant and

machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 2,116,194 1,279,978
Obtained during the year 139,328 836,216
Repayments during the year (32,899) -
Balance as at end of the year 2,222,623 2,116,194

19.10 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF) amounting to Rs.200 million out of
which Rs.200 million (2024: Rs.200 million) having present value of Rs.116.188 million (2024: Rs.120.031 million) obtained during August
2022 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a
grace period of two years and expiring during August 2032 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP
rate+1% bank profit. These loans are secured by way of exclusive hypothecation charge over specific plant and machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 120,031 106,279
Amaortization of government scheme 14,907 13,752
Repayments during the year (18,750) -

Balance as at end of the year 116,188 120,031

19.11 This represents Diminishing Musharakah amounting to Rs.508 million out of which Rs.457.200 million (2024: Rs.457.200 million) obtained
during September 2023 to December 2023 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 20 equal
guarterly installments, and expiring during September 2028 to December 2028 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of profit
is 3 months KIBOR+0.50% to 0.75%. These loans are secured by way of specific hypothecation charge over plant and machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 430,470 -

Loan obtained during the year - 457,200
Repayments during the year (96,840) (26,730)
Balance as at end of the year 333,630 430,470
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19.12  This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Finance Facility for Renewable Energy (IFRE) amounting to Rs.38 million out of which
Rs.33.528 million (2024: Rs.27.280 million) obtained during June 2024 to December 2024 for procurement of plant & machinery (solar
equipments). Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 20 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of three months
and expiring in June 2034 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+4% bank profit. These loans are
secured against the specific hypothecation charge over plant and machinery (solar equipments).

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
Balance as at start of the year 27,280 -
Loan obtained during the year 6,248 27,280
Repayments during the year (1,676) -

Balance as at end of the year 31,852 27,280

19.13  This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Finance Facility for Renewable Energy (IFRE) amounting to Rs.100 million out of which
Rs.100 million {(2024: Rs.100 million) obtained during May 2024 to June 2024 for procurement of plant & machinery (solar equipments).
Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 20 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of three months and expiring
in May 2034 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+4% bank profit. These loans are secured
against the specific hypothecation charge over plant and machinery (solar equipments),

Balance as at start of the year 100,000 -
Loan obtained during the year - 100,000
Repayments during the year (10,000) -
Balance as at end of the year 90,000 100,000

19.14 This represents Diminishing Musharakah amounting to Rs.300 million out of which Rs.140.477 million (2024: Rs.Nil) obtained during April
2025 to June 2025 for purchase of plant and machinery (solar equipment). Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly
installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring during April 2035 to June 2035 on their respective maturities.
The applicable rate of profit is 6 months KIBOR+0.05%. These loans are secured by way of specific hypothecation charge over plant and
machinery.

Loan obtained during the year 140,477 -

Balance as at end of the year 14ﬂ=4?? -

20 LEASE LIABILITY AGAINST RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Balance as at start of the year 122,769 -
Additions during the year - 132,545
Effect of lease modification during the year (7,479) -
Accretion of interest 14,366 22,495
Payment of lease liabilities (34,668) (32,271)
94,988 122,769
Current maturity shown under current liabilities (23,322) (15,020)

Balance as at end of the year 71,666 107,749
(Rupees in Thousand)
2025 2024
Minimum Lease Present Valueof Minimum Lease Present Value of

Payments Lease Payments Payments

Lease Payments

Lease liabilities are payable as follows:

Within one year 36,994 23,322 38,263 15,020
Later than one year and not later than five years 85,740 71,666 143,366 107,749
Total minimum lease payments 122,734 94,988 181,629 122,769
Less: Financial charges allocated to future periods (27,746) - (58,860) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 94,988 94,988 122,769 122,769
Less: Current portion of lease liabilities (23,322) (23,322) (15,020) (15,020)
71,666 71,666 107,749 107,749
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(Rupees in Thousand)
Note 2025 2024
21 DEFERRED LIABILITIES AND INCOME
Deferred Liabilities
Deferred tax - net 21.1 - -
Defined benefit plan 21.2 669,903 624,077
Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) 21.3 - -

Deferred income
Deferred Income - Government scheme 21.4 555,583 716,751

1,225,486 1,340,828

21.1 This comprises of the following major timing differences:

Taxable temporary difference arising due to:

tax depreciation allowances 1,550,630 1,077,973

right of use asset 27,547 35,603
Deductible temporary difference arising due to:

Impairment allowance for ECL (62,808) (49,538)

Impairment allowance for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools (38,006) (33,663)

Tax losses adjustable against future tax liability (1,477,363) (1,030,375)

21.1.1 Movement in deferred tax
Balance as at start of the year - 219,047
Reversal for the year 38 - (219,047)
Balance as at end of the year - -

At the reporting date, deferred tax asset amounting to Rs.1,617.759 million (2024: Rs.743.283 million) has not been recognized because it
Is not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the Company can utilize the deferred tax asset.

21.2 Actuarial valuation of the plan was carried out as at June 30, 2025. The calculation for provision of defined benefit plan is as under:

Movement of the present value of defined benefit obligation (PVDBO)

Balance as at start of the year 624,077 567,977
Charge for the year 21.2.1 143,848 130,509
Remeasurement gain (56,549) (38,496)
Payments during the year (41,473) (35,913)
Balance as at end of the year 669,903 624,077
21.2.1 Charge for the year
Current service cost 59,381 43,881
Markup cost 84,467 86,628
143,848 130,509
Allocation are as follows:
Cost of sales 30.1 73,614 58,601
Distribution and selling costs 31.1 6,029 3,399
Administrative expenses 32.1 64,205 68,509
143,848 130,509

= =
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate 12.50% 14.00%
Future salary increase rate 12.50% 14.00%
Withdrawal Rate Moderate Moderate
Mortality Adjusted SLIC Adjusted SLIC
2001-2005 2001-2005
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21.3

Sensitivity Analysis
2025 2024
PVDBO PVDBO

Percentage (Rupees in Percentage

(Rupees in
Thousand

Current Liability 669,903 - 624,077 -
+ 1% Discount Rate 640,035 (4.46%) 596,252 (4.46%)
- 1% Discount Rate 704,546 5.17% 656,350 5.17%
+ 1% Salary Increase Rate 707,508 5.61% 659,110 5.61%
- 1% Salary Increase Rate 637,068 (4.90%) 593,488 (4,90%)
+ 10% Withdrawal Rates 668,528 (0.21%) 622,796 (0.21%)
- 10% Withdrawal Rates 671,338 0.21% 625,414 0.21%
1 Year Mortality age set back 669,923 0.00% 624,095 0.00%
1 Year Mortality age set forward 669,883 (0.00%) 624,059 |0.00%)
(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
Maturity profile Undiscounted payments
Year 1 205,274 202,892
Year 2 26,090 25,787
Year 3 14,500 14,332
Year 4 38,428 37,982
Year 5 32,431 32,054
Year 6 to 10 129,712 128,206
Year 11 and above 466,438 461,024

Risks Associated with Defined Benefit Plan

Longevity Risks:
The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan level over the entire retiree
population,

Salary Increase Risk:
The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises when the actual increases
are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

Withdrawal Risk:
The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation. The movement of the
liability can go either way.

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024

Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess

Balance at start of the year 86,834 84,416
Remeasurement gain on discounting of provision for GIDC 34 (1,173) (12,664)
Un-winding of long term provision for GIDC 35 1,197 15,082

86,858 86,834
Current portion of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 26 (86,858) (86,834)

The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan has decided the Appeal against consumers upholding the vires of GIDC Act, 2015 through its
judgement dated August 13, 2020. The Review Petition was filed against the Judgment, wherein the Honorable Court has provided some
relief by increasing the time period for recovery of GIDC from 24 installments to 48 installments and also hold that GIDC relating to period
prior to the GIDC Act, 2015 is not recoverable in case the same was not passed on by the Company.

As per judgement of the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Company has filed a Civil Suit before the Sindh High Court against
payment of GIDC installments on the ground that the Company has not passed on the burden of Cess. The Honorable Court has granted
stay order to Plaintiffs whereby the Messrs. Sui Southern Gas Company Limited has been restrained to take any coercive action against
non payment of GIDC installments. The Company has recorded the provision at its present value by discounting the future cash flows at
risk free rate.
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21.4 Deferred Income - Government scheme

This represents the value of benefit of below-market markup rate on the loans obtained under Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance
Scheme (ITERF) disclosed in note 19.3, 19.4, 19.6 & 19.10 to these un-consolidated financial statements. ITERF scheme is a ‘temporary’
relief measure taken by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in context of COVID-19 related economic situation and with the objective to
provide stimulus to the economy across the board by supporting new investment and BMR of the existing projects in the country. The
difference between the fair value of these loans and proceeds received is recorded as Deferred income - Government scheme and the
reconciliation of carrying amount is as follows:

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
Opening balance 884,007 1,035,274
Amortization of government scheme (167,256) (151,267)
716,751 884,007
Current portion of government scheme 26 (161,168) (167,256)
555,583 716,751

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 22.1 & 22.2 1,191,397 1,091,180
Bills payable 22.3 995,241 1,922,650
Accrued expenses 22.4 423,879 439,578
Advance payments from customers - unsecured 2258 22.6 595,519 840,360
Security deposits from contractors 22.7 1,605 1,535
Workers' Welfare Fund 22.8 - -
Provisions 22.9 1,202,755 1,097,399
Withholding taxes 24,914 18,861
Payable to Provident Fund Trusts 1,345 1,103
Other liabilities 22.10 113,957 109,975
4,550,612 5,522,641

# $
22.1 These include Rs.38.425 million (2024; Rs.201.915 million) payable to a related party Messrs. Novatex Limited.

22.2 These include Rs.Nil {2024: Rs.0.209 million) payable to a related party Messrs. G&T Tyres (Private) Limited.

22.3 These include balances payable in foreign currency of USS 3.454 million and Euro:0.042 million (2024: USS 6.735 million and Euro:0.150
million).

22.4 These includes related parties balances are as follows:

a) These include Rs.11.299 million (2024: Rs.Nil) payable to a subsidiary company Messrs. Gatro Power (Private) Limited on account of
purchase of power.

b) These include Rs.140.086 million {2024: Rs.Nil) payable to a subsidiary company Messrs. G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited on account of
purchase of power.

c) These include Rs.6.689 million (2024: Rs.Nil) payable to a related party Messrs. Novatex Limited on account of obtaining of services and
cost sharing expenses.

d) These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.1.300 million) payable to a related party Messrs. Gani & Tayub (Private) Limited.

e) These include Rs.Nil (2024; Rs.0.034 million) payable to a related party Messrs. Nova Mobility {Private) Limited.

These include Rs.0.102 million (2024: Rs.Nil) payable to a related party Messrs. G-Pac Corporation.
22.5 These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.85.556 million) received from a related party Messrs. Novatex Limited.

22.6 Advances from customers at the beginning of the year got converted into revenue during the year, to the extent of deliveries made to
those customers.

22.7 This represents return-free security deposits from contractors held in separate bank account, refer note 16.1.

22.8 Workers' Welfare Fund

Balance as at start of the year - 22,977
Reversal of provision - prior year 34 - (16,301)
Adjustment through income tax refund/withholding 27 - (6,676)

Balance as at end of the year .
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(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
22.9 Provisions for:
Enhanced gas rate 22.9.1 & 22.9.2 56,171 56,171
Infrastructure Cess on imports 22.9.3 855,083 692,719
Sales tax 22.9.4 284,715 341,723
Others 22.9.5 6,786 b,786
1,202,755 1,097,399

22.9.1 The Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) had enhanced gas rate from Rs.488.23 per MMBTU for industrial and Rs.573.28 per MMBTU
for captive power to Rs.600 per MMBTU with effect from September 01, 2015. The Company alongwith several other companies filed suit
in the Honorable Sindh High Court challenging the increase in rate. The Honorable Sindh High Court had initially granted interim relief,
whereby recovery of enhanced rate was restrained. In May 2016, the Single Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court decided the case in
favor of the Petitioners. However, in June 2016, Defendants filed appeal before the Divisional Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court which
was also decided in favor of the Petitioners. Messrs. Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGCL) then have filed appeal before the
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan which is still under adjudication. Meanwhile, OGRA had issued another notification dated
December 30, 2016 overriding the previous notification and SSGCL billed @ Rs.600 per MMBTU, However, on January 19, 2017, the
Company alongwith others filed a suit in the Honorable Sindh High Court against OGRA, S5GCL and others. The Honorable Sindh High
Court granted interim relief and instructed SSGCL to revise bills at previous rate against securing the differential amount with the Nazir of
the Court, Accordingly, the Company has provided bankers' verified cheque to Nazir of High Court amounting to Rs.47.667 million (2024:
Rs.47.667 million). As an abundant precaution, the Company has made total provision of Rs.40.194 million (2024: Rs.40.194 million). On
October 04, 2018, OGRA has issued another notification to increase gas tariff with effect from September 27, 2018 for different categories
which the Company is paying in full as per the notification. In September 2024, the Single Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court decided
the case in favor of the Petitioners. M/s. SSGCL filed an appeal HCA 391/2024 in October 2024 before the Divisional Bench of Honorable
Sindh High Court against the decision which has been decided in favour of the petitioners during February 2025. SSGCL has filed an appeal
in the Honorable Supreme Court against the judgment of the Divisional Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court in favor of the petitioners;
however, no notices have been issued as of yet.

22.9.2 In August 2013, OGRA had enhanced gas rate from Rs.488.23 per MMBTU to Rs.573.28 per MMBTU for captive power and accordingly,
SSGCL started charging rate prescribed for captive power to the Company with effect from September 2013. On December 21, 2015, the
Company alongwith several other companies filed suit in the Honorable Sindh High Court against OGRA, SSGCL and others challenging the
charging of captive power tariff instead of industrial tariff. The Honorable Sindh High Court has granted interim relief, whereby recovery
of captive power rate has been restrained, Meanwhile, OGRA had issued another notification dated December 30, 2016 overriding the
previous notification and SSGCL billed @ Rs.600 per MMBTU. However, on January 19, 2017, the Company alongwith others filed a suit in
the Honorable Sindh High Court against OGRA, SSGCL and others. The Honorable Sindh High Court granted interim relief and instructed
S5GCL to revise bills at previous rate against securing the differential amount with the Nazir of the Court. Accordingly, the Company has
provided bankers' verified chegue to Nazir of High Court (refer note 22.9.1). As an abundant precaution, the Company has made provision
of Rs.15.977 million (2024: Rs.15.977 million) pertaining to the period of November 2015 to September 2018 and did not create receivable
of Rs.13.629 million in respect of period from August 2013 to October 2015. On October 04, 2018, OGRA has issued another notification to
increase gas tariff with effect from September 27, 2018 for different categories and the Company is paying full amount of the gas bills as
per this notification. In February, 2020, the Single Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court has decided the case in favor of Petitioners. 55GCL
has filed appeal HCA. 183/2020 in October 2020 before the Divisional Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court against the decision and is
pending for adjudication.

22.9.3 Movement is as under:

Balance as at start of the year 692,719 493,381
Provision made during the year 162,364 199,338
Balance as at end of the year 855,083 692,719

The Company had filed a petition in the Honorable Sindh High Court at Karachi on May 25, 2011 against Province of Sindh and Excise and
Taxation Department, challenging the levy of Infrastructure Cess on imports. Through an interim order dated May 31, 2011, the
Honorable Sindh High Court ordered to pay 50% in cash of this liability effective from December 28, 2006 and to submit bank guarantee
for the rest of 50% until the final order is passed. In April 2017, the Government of Sindh has promulgated the Sindh Development and
Maintenance of Infrastructure Cess Act, 2017. On October 23, 2017, the Company has also challenged the new Act in the Honorable Sindh
High Court against Province of Sindh and Excise and Taxation Department and similar stay has been granted by the Honorable Sindh High
Court. On June 04, 2021, the Honorable Sindh High Court has passed the judgment in favor of the Government. The Company has filed an
appeal bearing CP. No. 4515/2021 in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan against the judgment. The Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan, vide interim order dated September 01, 2021, has suspended the operation of the impugned judgement of the Honorable Sindh
High Court and has further directed the Custom Authorities to release consignments on the basis of bank guarantee equivalent to the
amount of levy claimed by the Excise and Taxation Department. Till reporting date, the Company has provided bank guarantee amounting
to Rs.878.365 million (2024: Rs.778.365 million) in favor of Excise and Taxation Department, in respect of consignments cleared after
December 27, 2006 (refer note 28.2). Full provision after December 27, 2006 has been made in these un-consolidated financial statements
as an abundant precaution.
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22.9.4 The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) vide SRO 491(1)/2016 dated June 30, 2016 made certain amendments in SRO 1125(1)/2011 dated
December 31, 2011 including disallowance of input tax adjustment on packing material of textile products. Conseguently, input tax
adjustment on packing material of textile product was not being allowed for adjustment with effect from July 01, 2016 till June 30, 2018.
On January 16, 2017, the Company had challenged the disallowance of input tax adjustment on packing material in the Honorable Sindh
High Court against Federation of Pakistan and others. The Honarable Sindh High Court has decided the matter in favor of Tax Department,
against which the Company has filed an appeal before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. The Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan has maintained the Honorable Sindh High Court decision. Total amount of demand raised by the tax department is Rs.16.757
million, against which appeal has been filed before CIR(A) which has also been decided against the Company, however, due to certain
apparent mistakes in order, rectification application has been filed, which is pending.

22.9.5 This represents provision of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess amounting to Rs.4.131 million (2024: Rs.4.131 million) and rate
difference of gas tariff Rs.2.655 million (2024: Rs.2.655 million) on account of common expenses payable by the Company to a related
party Messrs. Novatex Limited.

22.10 These include Rs.67.788 million (2024: Rs.64.600 million) received from employees under Company car policy.
23 UNPAID DIVIDEND

This represents interim dividend for the year ended June 30, 2023, which remained unpaid to non-resident shareholders of the Company
due to pending approval from the State Bank of Pakistan.

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024

24 ACCRUED MARK UP/PROFIT

Profit on long term financing 320,767 526,623
Mark up/profit on short term borrowings 159,336 16,389
24.1 480,103 543,012

24.1 This includes accrued profit of Rs.479.800 million (2024: Rs.542.943 million) under Shariah compliant arrangements.

25 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - Secured
From banking companies under mark up/profit arrangements

Running finance - Under Conventional 763,716 77.733
- Under Shariah compliant 5,838,058 3,337,005

6,601,774 3,414,738

Short term finance - Under Shariah compliant 157,434 14,825
Export re-finance - Under Shariah compliant 150,000 150,000
6,909,208 3,579,563

25.1 The Company has aggregate facilities of short term borrowings amounting to Rs.13,594 million (2024: Rs.13,080 million) from various
commercial banks (as listed in Note 25.3) out of which Rs.6,685 million (2024: Rs.9,500 million) remained unutilized at the year end. The
mark up/profit rates during the year for running finance and Musharakah ranges between 9.19% to 22.52%, for short term finance 11.94%
to 19.59% and for export refinance 8.40% to 18.40% per annum. These facilities are renewable annually at respective maturities.

25.2 These arrangements are secured against pari passu hypothecation charge on the stock and book debts of the Company.

25.3 The finances have been obtained or are available from Askari Bank Limited, Bank Al-Falah Limited, Bank Al-Habib Limited, Dubai Islamic
Bank Pakistan Limited, Faysal Bank Limited, Habib Bank Limited, Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited, MCB Islamic Bank Limited, Meezan
Bank Limited, Soneri Bank Limited, The Bank of Punjab and United Bank Limited.

26 CURRENT PORTION OF DEFERRED LIABILITIES AND INCOME
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 21.3 86,858 86,834
Deferred Income - Government scheme 21.4 161,168 167,256

248,026 254,090

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2025



(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024

27 PROVISION FOR LEVIES AND INCOME TAX LESS PAYMENTS

Balance as at start of the year 206,584 255,432

Provision - Current 328,009 424,411

- Prior 2,396 (94,553)

330,405 329,858

536,989 585,290

Payments (376,827) (384,418)
Adjustment of income tax refund against tax liability 59,194 -

Adjustment of Workers' Welfare Fund 22.8 - 6,676

Adjustment of group taxation (1,975) (964)

(319,608) (378,706)

Balance as at end of the year 217,381 206,584

28 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

28.1 Contingencies

28.1.1 FBR initiated action against few customers of the Company for violating/non compliance of the provisions of SRO 1125 dated December
31, 2011 and alleging the Company to provide them assistance and illegal facilitation. The dispute relates to the period of time when
supplies were zero rated and as a result of which the Company had to pay Rs.27.762 million and had also to submit post-dated cheques of
Rs.83.287 million under protest in favor of Chief Commissioner Inland Revenue.

However, the Company had challenged the action before the Honorable Sindh High Court on December 23, 2013 through suit no. D-
4630/2013 against Federation of Pakistan and others. Realizing the facts of the case, circumstances and legal position, the Honorable
Sindh High Court has granted interim relief whereby encashment of above mentioned post dated cheques has been restrained.

By way of abundant precaution, the amount of Rs.27.762 million has been charged to un-consolidated statement of profit or loss in
previous period in the year 2014. On September 04, 2021, the Special Judge Custom and Taxation Court has decided the case in favor of
the Company. The FBR has filed appeal at Honorable Sindh High Court Karachi against the decision of Special judge which is pending for
adjudication.

28.1.2 In May 2015, the Parliament passed the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act 2015, which seeks to impose GIDC levy since
2011. On July 16, 2015, the Company alongwith several other companies filed suit in the Honorable Sindh High Court against OGRA and
others challenging the validity and promulgation of GIDC Act 2015. The Single Bench of Honorahle Sindh High Court had decided the case
in favor of Petitioners. However, in May 2020, Defendants have filed appeal before the Divisional Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court.
On August 13, 2020, the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan finally in the appeals filed by industries of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, passed a
judgment in favor of Government declaring the GIDC Act 2015 intra vires and directed all the Petitioners/Appellants (including industries
of all over Pakistan) for payment of Cess liability accrued till July 31, 2020 in 24 equal monthly installments. The Company has filed Review
Petition against the Judgment, wherein the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan has provided some relief by increasing the time period
for recovery of GIDC from 24 installments to 48 installments and also hold that GIDC relating to period prior to the GIDC Act, 2015 is not
recoverable in case the same was not passed on by the Company. As per the judgement of Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the
Company has filed a Civil Suit No.1369/2020 dt:01-10-2020 before the Honorable Sindh High Court against payment of GIDC instalments
on the ground that the Company has not passed on the burden of Cess. The Honorable Sindh High Court has granted stay order to
Plaintiffs whereby the Messrs. Sui Southern Gas Company Limited has been restrained to take any coercive action against non payment of
GIDC installments.

Total amount of enhanced GIDC upto luly 31, 2020 worked out at Rs.129.801 million, however the Company has maintained a provision
for Rs.86.858 million pertaining to the period from June 2015 to July 2020 as an abundant precaution.

28.1.3 The Company along with several other companies has filed a Constitution Petition no. CP 2085/2016 dated April 13, 2016 in the Honorable
Sindh High Court against Employment Old Age Benefits Institution (EOBI) and others against a notice issued by the EOBI to the Company
to pay contribution at the revised rate of wages with retrospective effect. The Honorable Sindh High Court has restrained EOBI from
taking any coercive action against the Company. On December 03, 2021, the Honorable Sindh High Court has dismissed the Petition.
However, the Company has filed an appeal at Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan against the judgment. No provision of the amount
involved i.e. Rs.50.468 million (2024: Rs.42.340 million) has been made in these un-consolidated financial statements.
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28.1.4 The Company filed four appeals on 2nd, 8th, 17th May and 20th June 2018 before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR(A)) -
2, Large Taxpayers Unit, Karachi for the tax periods July 2012 to December 31, 2016 against the assessment orders by the Deputy
Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), Large Taxpayers Unit, passed under section 11 (2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 through which
cumulative demand for the aforesaid periods amounting to Rs.55.423 million excluding default surcharge was created. In the assessment
orders, major areas on which impugned demand has been raised relates to disallowance of input tax on purchases and recovery of sales
tax on sales to subsequently suspended / blacklisted persons. The Company has already deposited Rs.28 million under protest into the
Government Treasury for stay against the full recovery (refer note 15). The CIR(A) has issued judgment in respect of impugned order for
tax periods July 2012 to June 2013 wherein the entire order of the Tax Officer has been held as illegal and unconstitutional. However, the
Tax Department has been filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order passed by CIR(A). The
CIR(A) has decided the matter for tax periods July 2013 to June 2014, July 2014 to June 2015 and July 2015 to December 2016 wherein the
case has been partially decided in favor for the Company. However, the Company has filed appeals dated:30-03-2022, 07-04-2020 & 18-08-
2020 before the ATIR against orders passed by CIR(A). No provision has been made in these un-consolidated financial statements as the
Company is confident that the matter will be decided in favor by the appellate authorities.

28.1.5 Tax Department issued order under section 122(54) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2012 wherein income tax demand
of Rs.37.773 million was raised on various issues. Out of the total amount, the Company paid Rs.3.777 million under protest. Appeal was
filed before the CIR(A) and the CIR(A) had decided the case partially in favor of the Company whereas major issues were decided in favor
of the Tax Department. Based on the judgment of the CIR(A), the revised demand comes out to Rs.28.2 million, The Company filed an
appeal before the ATIR appeal no. ITA No.1452/KB/2018 dated 12-Oct-2018 against the order of the CIR(A) and the learned ATIR, vide its
judgment dated January 01, 2019 has decided the case in favor of the Company. As of now, the Tax Department has not yet filed appeal
against the said judgment of ATIR.

28.1.6 Tax Department issued order under section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2015 wherein income tax demand
of Rs.25.888 million was raised on various issues. Qut of the total amount, the Company paid Rs.2.589 million under protest. Appeal was
filed before the CIR{A) and the CIR(A) has decided partially in favor of the Company. Appeal effect in line with CIR(A) order has been
issued by the Tax Department wherein an amount of Rs.3.791 million determined as refundable to the Company out of which Rs.1.594
million has been adjusted with the income tax demand pertaining to tax year 2019. Appeal dated 30-May-2019 has been filed by the
Company as well as the Tax Department before ATIR, however, no hearing has been conducted till date. Based on the merits of the case
and the discussions held with the legal counsel, the management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Company,
hence Rs.2.197 million recorded as refundable.

28.1.7 The Tax Officer alleged the Company for charging sales tax at reduced rate instead of standard rate of 17% during the tax periods from
July 2014 to June 2015 and raised the demand of Rs.1.741 million along with penalty of Rs.0.087 million. The Company has filed an appeal
before CIR(A) against order of the Tax Department on the ground that reduced rate was applicable to customers as those customers were
active and operative at the time of execution of sales transaction. Moreover, the Tax Department has adjusted the impugned demand
with sales tax refunds available with the Company. Appeal was decided in favor of the Company. Tax Department has issued an appeal
effect order in line with aforementioned CIR(A) order resulting in refund of Rs.1.828 million for which refund application has been filed.
Tax Department has filed an appeal before ATIR dated 28-Oct-2019 against CIR(A) order. Based on the merits of the case and the
discussions held with the legal counsel, the management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Company. No provision
has been made in these un-consolidated financial statements.

28.1.8 The case of the Company was selected for income tax audit for tax year 2013. The return was amended under section 122(1)/(5) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, however, no income tax demand was raised owing to taxable losses both before and after amendment of
the income tax return. Subsequently, the Tax Department again initiated proceedings for further amendment of the already amended
income tax return and raised demand of Rs.1.178 million. Demand has been raised mainly because of figurative errors committed by the
Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ADCIR) against which the Company has moved rectification application and in response thereto
rectified order was issued. Moreover, the Company has also filed an appeal before CIR(A) to secure its interest in case rectification
application is rejected by the concerned Tax Officer. CIR{A) has decided the matter partially in favor of the Company. Considering that the
matter decided against the Company has no material impact, therefore, the Company had not filed an appeal before the ATIR. The Tax
Department filed an appeal no. ITA No.376/KB/2017 dated 10-04-2017 before the ATIR against order issued by CIR(A), Quetta, which has
been decided by ATIR in favour of Company.

2B.1.9 Income tax return of tax year 2014 was amended by the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue, Quetta disallowed expenses of Rs.60.7
million vide order dated June 29, 2016 against which the Company filed an appeal before the CIR(A), who vide order dated January 20,
2017 decided the case partially in favor of the Company and partially in favor of Tax Department. The Tax Department has filed an appeal
no. ITA No.377/KB/2017 dated 10-04-2017 before the ATIR which has been decided by ATIR in favour of Company.

28.1.10 The Company had filed a petition no. CP No.D-5468 dated August 26, 2019 in Honorable Sindh High Court against 3% Minimum Value
Addition Tax on import of machinery, which has been levied through Finance Act, 2019. Stay has been granted by the Honorable Sindh
High Court against submission of bank guarantee in favor of Nazir of the Court. Till reporting date, the Company has provided 100% bank
guarantee amounting to Rs.15.351 million (2024: Rs.15.351 million), refer note 28.2. Moreover, through Finance Act, 2020 this levy has
been withdrawn from manufacturer w.e.f. July 01, 2020.
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28.1.11 The Company had filed a petition no. CP D-573 dated January 26, 2019 before the Honorable Sindh High Court wherein the Company had
challenged the levy and collection of further sales tax on zero rated supplies imposed vide SRO 584(1)/2017 read with section 3(1A) and
section 4 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990. The case has been decided by the Honorable Sindh High Court in favor of the Company. The Tax
Department has filed an appeal dated Mar 22, 2021 before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan against the judgment of the
Honorable Sindh High Court. Based on the merits of the case, the management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the
Company, however, on a prudent basis Rs.40.395 million has been provided in these un-consolidated financial statements.

28.1.12 The Company had filed petition no. D-557 & D-2656 before the Honorable Sindh High Court wherein the Company had challenged the
notice requiring to pay Super Tax for tax year 2018 amounting to Rs.28.187 million and 2019 Rs.31.444 million respectively. The Honorable
Sindh High Court has decided the matter against the Company. The Company has filed petition no. 2307 of 2020 and 2308 of 2020 before
the Honarable Supreme Court of Pakistan against the judgement of the Sindh High Court, hearing of which is pending at the moment. The
Company also filed appeal dated: October 27, 2020 before the CIR(A) against the order dated: October 01, 2020 passed by DCIR under
section 4B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which has been concluded in favor of the Tax Department. The Company has filed appeals
before the ATIR dated September 07, 2021 against the orders passed by the CIR(A). The Company has also paid 50% of demand for auto
stay from recovery (refer note 15). The management is confident that the case will ultimately be decided in favor of the Company.
However, as an abundant precaution, the Company has not reversed the liability in these un-consolidated financial statements.

28.1.13 Income tax return for tax year 2019 has been amended by the DCIR vide order dated lune 29, 2020 creating tax demand of Rs.1.594
million while abolishing refund of Rs.35.819 million as claimed in ITR 2019 against which the Company filed an appeal before the CIR(A),
which has been partially decided in favour of the Company resulting in net tax refundable of Rs.4 million, appeal effect order is not yet
issued by the Tax Department. The Company as well as Tax Department have filed appeals before the ATIR dated January 13, 2022, which
is pending till date. Based on the merits of the case, the management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Company.

28.1.14 Through Finance Act, 2019, section 658 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was amended to disallow credit on investment in plant &
machinery from tax year 2020 and onwards. Consequently, the tax credit in respect of LCs opened on or befare 30th June 2019 was also
disallowed amounting to Rs.105.230 million. The Company has challenged the provision of Finance Act, 2019 before the Honorable Sindh
High Court vide C.P. no. D-8506 of 2019, 6582 of 2020 and 7540 of 2022 and the Court has decided the matter in favour of the Company to
claim 10% tax credit on investment in plant & machinery on the basis of pre-amended position of section 658 on machinery arrived in tax
year 2020 and 2021. The Tax department has challenged the judgement of Honorable Sindh High Court in Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan through petition no. CPLA 649-K/2023 and CPLA 665-K/2023 for TY 2020 & TY 2021 respectively, which is decided in favour of the
Company to the extent of that the machinery purchased and installed both by June 30, 2019, and other than that decided in favour of the
Tax Department. The Company has filed review petition before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan in case of tax years 2020 and
2021.

The ADCIR has passed Assessments Orders for the tax years TY 2020 and TY 2021, raised demand amounting Rs.105.230 million and
Rs.94.804 million respectively. The Company has paid/adjusted tax demands against available income tax refunds under protest.

28.1.15 The Tax Officer alleged the Company for fake transaction with suspended customer during the tax periods from December 2018 to June
2019 and raised the demand of Rs.1.711 million along with 100% penalty, aggregated demand of Rs.3.421 million. The Company has paid
10% of demand for auto stay from recovery Rs.0.342 million (refer note 15). CIR{A) has decided the case in favour of Company. The Tax
Department has filed an appeal before ATIR against the said judgment. No provision has been made in these un-consolidated financial
statements.

28.1.16 Tax Department issued notices thereby disallowing adjustment of Workers Welfare Fund (WWF) against income tax refund of tax year
2018, 2019 and 2020 amounting Rs.16.216 million, Rs.20.373 and Rs.3.022 million respectively. The Company filed petitions against the
said notices before the Honorable Sindh High Court vide C.P. no.D-5247 of 2021, which has been decided in favour of the Company.
However, Tax Department has filed an appeal dated January 24, 2022 before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. Based on the
merits of the case, the management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Company. However, full liability of WWF has
been provided In respective years un-consolidated financial statements.

28.1.17 Tax Department has raised demand of Rs.21.294 million on the basis of sales tax audit for the tax periods from July 2017 to June 2018. The
Company has filed an appeal before the CIR(A). The Company has paid 10% of demand for auto stay from recovery Rs.2.130 million (refer
note 15). The CIR(A) has decided the case partially in favor of the Company and partially in favor of Tax Department. The order contains
significant errors for which Company has filed rectification application before CIRA.

28.1.18 The Tax Department disallowed expenses of Rs.45.6 million under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2016.
However, no income tax demand was raised owing to taxable losses both before and after amendment of assessment proceedings. The
Company has filed an appeal before CIR(A), who vide order dated March 16, 2023 decided the case partially in favor of the Company and
partially in favor of Tax Department. The Company as well as Tax Department have filed appeals dated:13-05-2023 before the ATIR, which
is pending till date. Based on the merits of the case, the management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Company.
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28.1.19 The Company has filed a petition no. CP No.D-8011/2022 dated December 23, 2022 before the Honorable Sindh High Court against the
levy of Super Tax under section 4C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2022, The Honorable Sindh High Court held that the
Super Tax is not applicable for the tax year 2022. However, the Tax Department has filed petition before the Supreme Court of Pakistan
and has issued interim order whereby the Honorable Supreme Court has directed to pay Super Tax to the extent of 4% in others C.P. no.
3825 and 3909 of 2022. Therefore, the Company has paid the Super Tax of Rs. 13.353 million on the direction of the Honorable Supreme
Court and in the compliance of the tax department notice as well (refer note 15). The management is confident that the case will be
decided in favor of the Company. However, as an abundant precaution, the Company has not reversed the liability in these un-
consolidated financial statements.

28.1.20 The Company has filed the petition no. CP D-7001/2022 dated November 12, 2022 in Honorable Sindh High Court against conducting
Sales Tax Audit for the tax year 2019. The Honorable Sindh High Court has granted interim relief till the decision of the case. The
management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Company.

28.1.21 The Company has filed the petition no. CP D-7732/2022 dated December 15, 2022 before Honorable Sindh High Court against conducting
post refund Sales Tax Audit pertaining to the tax year 2016, on the ground of time barred proceeding. The Honorable Sindh High Court has
granted interim relief till the decision of the case. Amount is not determined as proceeding not yet initiated. The management is
confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Company.

28.1.22 The Tax Department disallowed expenses of Rs.52.021 million under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2020.
However, no income tax demand was raised owing to tax refundable position both before and after amendment of assessment
proceedings. The Company has filed an appeal before CIR(A), which has been decided the case partly in favor of the Company vide order
dated November 15, 2023. The Company has filed appeal before ATIR, which is pending for hearing.

28.1.23 The Tax Department disallowed expenses of Rs.74 million under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2022.
However, no income tax demand was raised owing to tax refundable position both before and after amendment of assessment
proceedings. The Company's appeal is reserved for order before the CIRA. Based on the merits of the case, the management is confident
that the case will be decided in favor of the Company.

28.1.24 Tax Department has raised demand of Rs.4.684 million by disallowing input sales tax on building material for the tax periods from July
2019 to June 2020. CIR(A) has decided the case in favour of Tax Department. The Company has filed an appeal dated: March 30, 2024
before ATIR against the said order.

28.1.25 Income tax return for the Tax Year 2023 was amended by the ADCIR vide order dated October 11, 2024 resulting in reduction of tax
refund of Rs.139.23 million against which the Company filed an appeal dated: November 11, 2024 before the ATIR.

28.1.26 The DCIR has raised demand of Rs.39.77 million by disallowing input sales tax on building material, vide order dated October 8, 2024, for
the tax period July 2022. The Company has filed an appealdSTA 779/KB 2024 dated:01-11-2024 before ATIR against the said order.
However, the Company has deposited the demanded amount into Government Treasury.

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
28.2 Guarantees

Bank Guarantees in favour of;

The Director Excise & Taxation, Karachi 2293 878,365 778,365
The Electric Inspector, President Licencing Board, Quetta 10 10
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 41,500 70,000
K-Electric Limited 18,496 18,496
Nazir of the High Court of Sindh, Karachi 28.1.10 15,351 15,351

Revolving Letter of Credit in favour of:

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited for Gas 71,078 38,300

1,024,800 920,522

28.3 Commitments
The Company's commitments, against which the banks have opened Letters of Credit, in favor of different suppliers, are as follows:

Foreign currency:

Property, plant and equipment 399,047 576,401
Raw and packing material 1,051,555 838,897
Spare parts and others 35,626 92,163
1,486,228 1,507,461
Local currency:

Property, plant and equipment 2,366 53,508
Raw material - 1,426,605
Spare parts and others - 11,156
2,366 1,491,270

1,488,594 2,998,731
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28.3.1 The Company has made an agreement for purchase of land amounting to Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.133.150 million), out of which Rs.Nil (2024;

29

30

30.1

30.2

30.3

31

31.1

Rs.17.225 million) paid as advance (refer note 4).

SALES

Gross local sales
Processing charges

Less: Sales tax

Export sales

COST OF SALES

Raw and packing material consumed
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed
Outsource processing charges

Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits
Power, fuel and gas

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Cartage and transportation

Repairs and maintenance
Communications and Computer

Water supply

Travelling

Sundry expenses

Depreciation

Scrap sales

Opening stock of goods-in-process

Opening stock of unfinished goods held for sale
Closing stock of goods-in-process

Closing stock of unfinished goods held for sale
Cost of goods manufactured

Opening stock of finished goods

Closing stock of finished goods

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
26,438,717 36,719,513
4,123,067 2,196,818
30,561,784 38,916,331
4,670,300 5,718,233
25,891,484 33,198,098
436,556 815,483
26378000 34013581
15,641,914 22,603,658
758,277 513,497
- 174,745
30.1 & 30.2 2,076,571 2,158,035
5,694,096 5,458,452
12,579 35,554
171,312 146,858
245,065 326,766
106,866 181,464
3,405 8,822
18,023 16,161
10,228 16,275
44,427 54,809
4.2 1,505,820 850,259
26,288,583 32,545,355
30.3 (202,169) (182,947)
26,086,414 32,362,408
1,392,301 429,650
32,744 280,595
(1,993,722) (1,392,301)
(1,206) (32,744)
25,516,531 31,647,608
3,818,775 4,097,889
(3,893,080) (3,818,775)
25,442,226 31,926,722

These include Rs.7.094 million (2024 Rs.6.578 million) and Rs.73.614 million (2024: Rs.58.601 million) respectively, representing
contribution to defined contribution plan by the Company and expenditure on defined benefit plan.

It is net off in respect of amount received from subsidiary companies Messrs, Gatro Power (Private) Limited Rs.48 million (2024: Rs.42
million) and Messrs. G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited Rs.3 million (2024: Rs.Nil) against plant operation arrangement.

Net off sales tax amounting to Rs.40.730 million (2024: Rs.35.392 million).

DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING COSTS

Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits
Insurance

Rent, rates and taxes

Handling, freight and transportation
Advertisement and sales promotion
Communications

Travelling

Legal and professional fee

Sundry expenses

Depreciation

Depreciation right of use assets

31.1 68,330 47,840
2,549 5,992

17,515 14,431

315,708 200,317

292 599

869 918

2,225 1,380

- 182

27,512 22,607

4.2 2,749 2,151
4.6.1 8,368 5,579
446,117 301,996

These include Rs.6.029 million (2024; Rs.3.399 million) representing expenditure on defined benefit plan.
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(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024

32 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits 32.1 351,197 371,099
Rent, rates and taxes 3,627 1,111
Insurance 9,197 11,772
Repairs and maintenance 2,971 40,318
Travelling 5,498 10,718
Communications 8,901 9,059
Legal and professional fees 13,535 19,789
Utilities 15,608 2,123
Printing and stationery 879 330
Transportation 21,421 25,377
Sundry expenses 18,709 30,047
Depreciation 4.2 8,231 11,438
Depreciation right of use assets 4.6.1 16,271 18,141
Amortization of intangible asset 5 10,025 10,025

561,347

486,070

32.1 These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.0.018 million) and Rs.64.205 million (2024: Rs.68.509 million) respectively, representing contribution to
defined contribution plan by the Company and expenditure on defined benefit plan.

33 OTHER EXPENSES

Impairment allowance for ECL - net 115 45,761 52,641
Impairment allowance for slow moving stores, spare parts
and loose tools - net 9.1 15,220 21,034
Impairment in long term investments 6.3 & 6.6 53,871 38,357
Exchange loss - net 44,321 -
Corporate social responsibility 33.1 - 4,954
Auditors' remuneration 33.2 7,615 3,678
166,788 120,664

33.1 This includes donations of Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.3.954 million) to a related party Messrs. Gatron Foundation in which Chief Executive and four
directors of the Company are governors and a donation of Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.1 million to Messrs. Memon Health and Education Foundation).
No Donations amounting to Rs 1,000,000 or 10% of total donation to single donee. None of the directors or their spouses has any interest
in any other donee fund, so far as other donations are concerned.

33.2 Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee - annual financial statements 3,200 2,750
Audit fee - special purpose financial statements 2,750
Audit fee - Special purpose consolidated financial statements 200 -
Limited review, audit of annual consolidated

financial statements and certification fee 435 445
Sindh sales tax on services 527 256
Out of pocket expenses 503 227

?!515 3!6?5

34 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Profit on deposits 1,364 109,828
Income from non - financial assets & others
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4.3 23,758 22,088
Liabilities no more payable written back 7,369 29,470
Amortization of interest free long term loan to subsidiary company 49,441 41,722
Amortization of Government Scheme 24,378 12,559
Exchange gain - net - 44,659
Remeasurement gain on discounting of provision for GIDC 21.3 1,173 12,664
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 22.8 - 16,301
Miscellaneous income 4,227 359
110,346 179,822
111,710 289,650
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(Rupees in Thousand)
Note 2025 2024
35 FINANCE COST

Profit on long term financing 828,485 209,266
Interest on lease liability against right of use assets 14,366 22,495
Mark up/profit on short term borrowings 690,624 1,238,763
Un-winding of long term provision for GIDC 21.3 1,197 15,082
Bank charges and guarantee commission 4,595 8,981

35.1 1,539,267 1,494,587

.d_ ﬁ
35.1 It includes finance costs under Shariah Complaint arrangement amounting to Rs.1,519.172 million (2024: Rs.1,217.784 million).

36 INVESTMENT INCOME - DIVIDEND

Dividend income from investment in mutual fund - 35533
37 LEVIES

Final Tax - current - 9,435

Final Tax - prior year 1,833 -

Minimum tax 328,009 414,976

38.1 329,842 424,411

This represent final tax under section 113 and 154 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levies in terms of requirements of IFRIC
21/1AS 37.

38 INCOME TAX

For the prior year 563 (94,553)
Deferred 21.1.1 - (219,047)
38.1 563 (313,600)

38.1 The Company is subject to Minimum Tax/Levies under section 113 and 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for local and export sales.
Accordingly, the relationship between tax expense accounting profit has not been presented in these un-consolidated financial statement.

39 LOSS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted
Loss for the year (1,971,123) (204,358)

( Number of Shares )

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue during the year 108,728,960 86,718,699

Loss per share - Basic and diluted !13.13! 2.36
39.1 There is no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share of the Company.
(Rupees in Thousand)

40 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 16 119,941 297,008
Short term borrowings - Running finance 25 (6,601,774) (3,414,738)

(6,481,833) (3,117,730)
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41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets as per statement of financial position
- Measured at amortized cost

Loans and advances 205,052 445,291
Deposits 15,501 73,843
Trade debts 4,662,811 3,516,225
Other receivables 128,733 175,513
Cash and bank balances 115,941 297,008
5,132,038 4,507,880
Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
- Measured at amortized cost
Long term financing 9,116,830 9,703,216
Lease liability against right of use assets 94,988 122,769
Trade and other payables 2,659,636 3,501,421
Unclaimed dividend 853 8,219
Unpaid dividend 20,801 20,801
Accrued mark up/profit 480,103 543,012
Short term borrowings 6,909,208 3,579,563

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025

2024

19,282,419 17,479,001

The effective interest/markup rates for the monetary financial assets and liabilities are mentioned in respective notes to the un-
consolidated financial statements.

41.1  MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The Company’s certain accounting policies and disclosure requires use of fair value measurement
and the Company while assessing fair value maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
establishing a fair value hierarchy, i.e., input used in fair value measurement is categorized into following three levels:

Level 1 Inputs are the quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be assessed at measurement.

Level 2 Inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

As at reporting date the fair value of all the assets and liabilities approximates to their carrying values except property, plant and equipment
and long term investments in subsidiary companies. The property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment if any, except free-hold land, lease-hold land and capital work in progress which are stated at cost, whereas long term
investment in subsidiary companies carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any. The Company does not expect that unobservable
inputs may have significant effect on fair values.

41.2  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focusses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk Management is carried out under policies and principles approved by the Board. All treasury related transactions are carried out
within the parameters of these policies and principles.

41.2.1 Market Risk

A Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risks arises mainly from future economic transactions or receivables and payables that exist
due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency value fluctuations, primarily with respect to the USD, Euro, and CHF.
The Company's Exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:
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(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
Trade creditors 179,786 122,322
Bills Payable 995,241 1,922,650

1,175,027 2,044,972

Trade Debts (60,777) (38,146)
Receivable from suppliers (106,956) (119,265)
Cash at bank in foreign currency accounts (36,865) (204,337)

(204,598) (361,748)
970,429 1,683,224

Commitments - Qutstanding letters of credit 1,486,228 1,507,461
MNet exposure 2,456,657 3,190,685

The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Rupees
Average rate Reporting date rate
2025 2024 2025 2024
Buying
USD to PKR 278.85 282.40 283.60 278.30
Euro to PKR 303.38 305.42 332.29 297.98
Selling
USD to PKR 279.35 282.90 284.10 278.80
Euro to PKR 303.97 305.97 332.87 298.54

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the USD and Euro with all other variables held constant, pre tax
profit for the period would have been higher/lower by the amount shown below, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain or net
foreign currency exposure at reporting date.

( Rupees in Thousand )

Average rate Reporting date rate
2025 2024 2025 2024

Effect on statement of profit or loss

USD to PKR 236,963 296,446 241,028 292,217
Euro to PKR 4,234 27,521 4,638 26,852
241,197 323,967 245,666 319,069

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the period and assets / liabilities of the Company.

B Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest or currency rate risk}, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company is not exposed to equity price risk since there are no investment in listed equity securities.

C Interest / Markup rate risk

Interest/Markup rate risk arises from the possibility of changes in Interest/Markup rates which may effect the value of financial
instruments, The Company has short term borrowings at variable rates. At the reporting date the Interest/Markup profile of the Company's
Interest/Markup-bearing financial instrument is:

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024 2025 2024
Effective rate (in %) Carrying amount
Financial Assets
Variable rate instruments
Bank balance 5.00-19.26 6.60-20.67 1,711 1,574

Financial Liabilities
Variable rate instruments
Long term financing 11.73-22.25 18.54-24.53 (4,540,597) (4,576,414)
Short term borrowings 8.40-2252 16.40-23.43 (6,909,208) (3,579,563)
(11,448,094) (8,154,403)
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest/markup rates at the reporting date would have decreased/(increased) profit for the year by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variable, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. This analysis is
perfarmed on the same basis for June 2024,

Statement of profit or loss
before tax

100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease

As at June 30, 2025
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate (114,481) 114,481

As at June 30, 2024
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate (81,544) 81,544

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the period and assets / liabilities of the Company.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities. Therefore, a change in markup rate at the reporting date
would not effect unconsolidated statement of profit or loss of the Company.

41.2.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation, The Company manages credit risk interalia by setting credit limits in relation to individual customers and by obtaining advance
against sales and also obtains collaterals, where considered necessary. The Company has established an allowance for the doubtful trade
debts that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade debts. Consequently, the Company believes that it is not exposed to
any major concentration of credit risk.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure before any credit enhancements. Out of total financial
assets of Rs.5,132,.038 million (2024: Rs.4,507.880 million), financial assets of Rs.5,129.363 million (2024: Rs.4,504.446 million) are subject
to credit risk. The carrying amounts of financial assets exposed to credit risk at reporting date are as under:

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
Loans and advances 205,052 445,291
Deposits 15,501 73,843
Trade debts 4,662,811 3,516,225
Other receivables 128,733 175,513
4,791,544 3,691,738
Bank balances 117,266 293,574
5,129,363 4,504,446

Loans and advances

These represents loan to subsidiary company recoverable on respective maturity. Loan and advances to employees are recovered on
monthly basis. Retirement balances are also available for these employees against which balance can be adjusted incase of default, The
Company actively pursues for the recovery of these loans and the Company does not expect that these employees will fail to meet their
obligations, hence the management believes no impairment allowance is required there against.

Deposits

Deposits includes utilities deposits and bank margin and others which are neither past due nor impaired with the counter parties. Company
believes that based on past relationship, credit rating and financial soundness of the counter parties chances of default are remote and also

there Is no material impact of changes in credit risks. The management does not expect to incur credit loss there against.

The aging of trade debts and other receivables at the reporting date:

Not past due 1,566,580 1,000,834
Past due 1-30 days 1,409,991 947,476
Past due 31-90 days 959,941 1,013,221
Past due 91-180 days 293,325 513,934
Past due 180 days 778,288 387,093

5,008,125 3,862,558
Allowance for ECL - local (216,581) (170,820)
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The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit rating as follows:

Rating Rating (Rupees in Thousand)

Banks Agency Short term Long term 2025 2024

Askari Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AR+ 45 -
Bank Al-Falah Limited PACRA Al+ AAA 22,678 16,271
Bank Al-Habib Limited PACRA Al+ AAA 4,689 7,488
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited VIS A-1+ AA 2,480 2,367
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA 5,156 4,907
Habib Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA 1,028 1,432
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+ 43,926 142,100
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA b,736 31,170
Meezan Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA 25,044 24,893
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al+ AAA 468 815
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA- - 1,458
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA Al+ AAA 4,403 60,238
The Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AA+ 136 118
United Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA 477 317
117,266 293,574

Above ratings are updated from website of State Bank of Pakistan.

41.2.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents where an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and ensuring the fund availability through adequate credit facilities. At
June 30, 2025, the Company has Rs.13,594 million available borrowing limit from financial institutions. The Company has unutilized
borrowing facilities of Rs.6,685 million in addition to balances at banks of Rs.117 million. Based on the above, management believes the
liquidity risk to be insignificant. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest/mark up payments.

(Rupees in Thousand)
Carrying  Contractual Sixmonths Sixtotwelve Onetotwo Twotofive  Above five
Amount Cash Flow or less months years years years
2025
Long term financing 9,116,830 11,223,530 929,048 1,309,684 3,145,484 5,531,001 308,313
Lease liability against
right of use assets 94,988 123,748 18,244 18,649 39,387 47,468 -
Trade and other payables 2,659,636 2,659,636 2,659,636 - - - -
Unclaimed dividend 853 853 853 - - - -
Unpaid dividend 20,801 20,801 20,801 - . - -
Accrued mark up/profit 480,103 480,103 480,103 - - - -
Short term borrowings 6,909,208 7,107,948 7,107,948 - - - -
19,282,419 21,616,619 11,216,633 1,328,333 3,184,871 5,578,469 308,313
2024
Long term financing 9,703,216 16,871,666 1,485,352 1,343,369 2,677,720 6,855,494 4,509,731
Lease liability against
right of use assets 122,769 182,551 18,902 19,270 41,988 102,391 -
Trade and other payables 3,501,421 3,501,421 3,501,421 - - - -
Unclaimed dividend 8,219 8,219 8,219 . . . .
Unpaid dividend 20,801 20,801 20,801 - . - -
Accrued mark up/profit 543,012 543,012 543,012 - . - -
Short term borrowings 3,579,563 3,782,929 3,782,929 - - - -
17,479,001 24,910,599 9,360,636 1,362,639 2,719,708 6,957,885 4,509,731

41.3  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives in managing capital is to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to
provide returns to shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

Certain loan facilities of the Company require compliance with loan covenants (common being current ratio, gearing ratio, and debt service
coverage ratio) during the respective tenures of the facilities. Breach of covenants may require the Company to repay the loan earlier than
agreed upon repayment dates in case upon intimation of the lender the default is not rectified. The Company monitors the compliance with
covenants on a regular basis. There are no indications that the Company would have difficulties complying with these covenants.
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The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024 were as follows:

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024

Total borrowings 16,026,038 13,282,779

Cash and bank balances (119,941) (297,008)
Net debt 15,906,097 12,985,771

Total equity 11,372,589 13,287,163

Total capital 27,278,686 26,272,934

Gearing ratio 58% 49%

The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total
capital is calculated as 'equity’ as shown in the statement of financial position plus net debt.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintaining an
appropriate mix amongst various sources of finance to minimize risk and cost.

The Company is not exposed to any externally imposed capital requirement.

41.4  Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

(Rupees in Thousand)

41.4.1

2025
Long term Short Term Lease
loans Borrowings Dividend Liability
Balance as at July 1, 2024 9,703,216 3,579,563 29,020 122,769 13,434,568
Changes from financing cash flows
Repayment of long term loan (1,039,695) - - - (1,039,695)
Proceeds from long term loan 286,053 - - - 286,053
Effect of lease modification during the year - - - (7,479) (7,479)
Lease rentals paid - - - (34,668) (34,668)
Accretion of interest - - - 14,366 14,366
Dividend paid - - (7,366) - (7,366)
Total changes from financing activities (753,642) - (7,366) (27,781) (788,789)
Other changes 205,856 (142,947) - - 62,909
Interest expense 828,485 690,624 - 14,366 1,533,475
Interest paid (1,034,341) (547,677) - (14,366) (1,596,384)
Deferred government grant recognized 167,256 - - - 167,256
Changes in short term borrowings - 3,329,645 - - 3,329,645
Total loan related other changes 167,256 3,329,645 - - 3,496,901
Total equity related other changes - - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2025 9,116,830 6,909,208 21,654 94,988 16,142,680
2024
Long term Short Term Lease
VETH Borrowings Dividend Liability
Balance as at July 1, 2023 8,911,873 8,474,415 41,856 - 17,428,144
Changes from financing cash flows
Repayment of long term loan {780,620) - - - (780,620)
Proceeds from long term loan 1,420,696 - - - 1,420,696
Lease rentals paid - - - (32,271) (32,271)
Accretion of interest - - - 22,495 22,495
Addition / re-assessment / termination of leases - - - 132,545 132,545
Dividend paid - - (12,836) - (12,836)
Total changes from financing activities 640,076 - (12,836) 122,769 750,009
Other changes 126,378 213,006 - 339,384
Interest expense 209,266 1,238,763 - 22,495 1,470,524
Interest paid (335,644) (1,451,769) - (22,495) (1,809,908)
Deferred government grant recognized 151,267 - - - 151,267
Changes in short term borrowings - (4,894,852) - - (4,894,852)
Total loan related other changes 151,267 (4,894,852) - . (4,743,585)
Total equity related other changes - - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2024 9,703,216 3,579,563 29,020 122,769 13,434,568

The figures of interest expenses and interest paid has not include interest capitalized in property, plant & equipment.
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42 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged to statement of profit or loss for remuneration, including all benefits to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of
the Company are as follows:

(Rupees in Thousand)

Particulars Chief Executive | Directors | = Executives |  Total |
2025 | 2024 | 2025 | 2024 | 2025 | 2024 | 2025 | 2024
Managerial remuneration 14,148 14,148 9,036 9,036 560,722 409,908 583,906 433,092
Post employment benefits 7,874 7,927 1,724 1,462 62,996 45,580 72,594 54,969
Other benefits - - 85,309 67,552 85,309 67,552
Reimbursement 16 - 13 10,140 3,897 10,169 3,897
Total 22,038 22,075 10,773 10,498 719,167 526,937 751,978 559,510
Number of persons
for remuneration 1 1 1 1 175 106 177 108
42.1 Aggregate amount of meeting fee to 7 non-executive directors (2024: 9 non-executive Directors) was Rs.1.600 million (2024: Rs.2.150
million).
42.2 In addition, the Chief Executive and working directors are provided with Company maintained car and certain executives are provided with

hausehold furniture and cars under Company policies, the monetary impact where of is not quantifiable.

42.3 During the year, a related party Messrs. Novatex Limited reimbursed Rs.188.724 million {2024: Rs.122.253 million) in respect of shared
resources of certain directors and executives.
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43 SEGMENT REPORTING

43.1 Reportable segments
The Company's reportable segments are as follows:
- Polyester Filament Yarn - it comprises manufacturing of Polyester Filament Yarn and its raw material.
- Polyester PET Preforms - it comprises manufacturing of Polyester PET Preforms and its raw material.

Other operating expenses, other income, finance costs and taxation are managed at Company level.

43.2 Segment results:
The segment information for the reportable segments for the year ended June 30, 2025 is as follows:

(Rupees in Thousand)
Polyester Polyester PET Polyester Polyester PET
Filament Yarn Preforms Total Filament Yarn Preforms Total

External sales 23,523,990 2,804,050 26,328,040 30,289,729 3,723,852 34,013,581
Segment result before depreciation 597,703 872,724 1,470,427 1,275,287 812,077 2,087,364
Less: Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (1,455,235) (61,565) (1,516,800) (792,144) (71,704) (863,848)
Segment result after depreciation (857,532) 811,159 (46,373) 483,143 740,373 1,223,516
Reconciliation of segment results with Loss before levies and income tax:
Total results for reportable segments (46,373) 1,223,516
Other expenses (166,788) (120,664)
Other income 111,710 289,650
Finance costs (1,539,267) (1,494,587)
Investment income - Dividend - 8,538
Loss before levies and income tax 1,640,718 (93,547)

Assets and liabilities by segments are as follows:

Segment assets 26,751,822 1,174,160 27,925,982 28,461,355 814,333 29,275,688
Segment liabilities 12,717,005 141,751 12,858,756 14,207,708 475,089 14,682,757

Reconciliation of segments assets and liabilities with total in the un-consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Total for reportable segments 27,925,982 12,858,756 29,275,688 14,682,797
Unallocated 6,310,895 10,005,532 5,313,198 6,618,926
Total as per un-consolidated statement of financial position 34,236,877 22,864,288 34,588,886 21,301,723
Other segment information is as follows:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1,455,235 61,565 1,516,800 792,144 71,704 863,848
Capital expenditures incurred during the year 198,007 - 198,007 2,096,335 8,823 2,105,158
Unallocated capital expenditure incurred during the year 1,045,948 497,473
Total 1,243,955 2,602,631

43.3 98.34% (2024 : 97.60%) out of total sales of the Company relates to customers in Pakistan,
43.4 All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2025 are located in Pakistan.
43.5 Revenue from major customer individually accounting for more than 10% of the Company's revenue was Rs.4,511.958 million (2024 Rs.5,947.955 million).
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(Metric Tons)

Note 2025 2024
44 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Polyester Filament Yarn 44.1
Annual capacity-75 denier 51,044 43,424
Annual capacity-150 denier 101,324 86,280
Actual production 47,424 52,517
Polyester P.E.T. Preforms 44.2
Annual capacity-27 gms 31,512 31,512
Actual production 18,808 12,676
Knitted Fabrics 44.3
Annual capacity 1,636 1,090
Actual production 871 699

44.1 The capacity is determined based on 75 denier and 24 filaments/150 denier and 48 filaments. Actual production represents production of
various deniers.

44.2 The capacity is determined based on 27 gms production. Actual production represents production of various grammage. The actual
production versus annual capacity is lower on account of the Company is lacking the sizes of preforms, which are in demand. The actual
production of preforms (various grammage) in pieces was 739.278 million (2024: 462.150 million) against annual capacity (based on 27
gms) of 1,167 million pieces.

44.3 The actual production versus annual capacity is lower on account of market demand of the Company's product, moreover the production
is increasing gradually.

45 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year, details of transactions with related parties are as follows:

Nature of Basis of (Rupees in Thousand)
relationship relationship Nature of transaction 2025 2024
Gatro Power Wholly owned 100% Purchase of power 3,666,769 2,976,300
(Private) Limited Subsidiary ownership  Plant operation arrangement 48,000 42,000
Company Reimbursement of expenses 61,076 56,551
Global Synthetics Wholly owned 100% Investment made - 200
Limited Subsidiary ownership
Company
G-Pac Energy Wholly owned 100% Purchase of power 415,604 -
(Private) Limited Subsidiary ownership  Long term loan disbursed 25,100 364,750
Company Repayment of long term loan 325,100 63,550
Plant operation arrangement 3,000 -
Reimbursement of expenses - 21
Novatex Limited Related Party Common  Sales of goods and other material 1,102,112 4,097,801
directorship Rendering of services 3,442,098 1,850,154
Purchase of raw and other material 1,204,725 1,273,202
Obtaining of services - 170,861
Rent 22,777 23,976
Reimbursement of expenses 328,514 394,500
Krystalite Product Related Party  Common key Sales of goods and other material 5,001 173,981
(Private) Limited management Sale of property, plant & eguipment - 2,450
Reimbursement of expenses 1,656 2,585
Mustagim Dyeing & Related Party Common  Sale of goods 222,540 391,261
Printing Ind directorship Rendering of services 37,354 -
(Private) Limited Reimbursement of expenses 730 -
Gani & Tayub Related Party Common  Rent 7,800 7,800

(Private) Limited directorship
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46.1

46.2

47

Nature of Basis of (Rupees in Thousand)

relationship relationship Nature of transaction 2025 2024
Nova Frontiers Limited  Related Party Common  Issuance of Right Shares - 5,581,649
directorship Reimbursement of expenses 80 -
Gatron Foundation Related Party Common  Payment of donation - 3,954

directorship

Pharmnova Related Party Common key Reimbursement of expenses 9,971 -
(Private] Limited management

G-Pac Corporation Related Party Common  Sale of goods 207,096 415

directorship Reimbursement of expenses 101 -

G&T Tyres Related Party Common  Purchase of other material 824 544
(Private) Limited directorship

Nova Mability Related Party Common key Purchase of other material 32 -

(Private) Limited management Reimbursement of expenses 214 a4

Krystosoft Related Party Common  Acquisition of services 57 -
(Private) Limited directorship

Gatron (Ind) Limited Retirement Employees Provident fund contribution 7,094 6,596
Workers Provident benefit fund fund
Fund

- The above figures are exclusive of sales tax, where applicable.
- Qutstanding balances, as at reporting date, are disclosed in their respective notes.

Transactions and outstanding balances, as applicable in relation to Key Management Personnel (KMP) have been disclosed in note 42 of
KMP and note 4.3 of disposal of property, plant and equipment. KMP are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity directly or indirectly. The Company considers its Chief Executive, Executive Directors
and other executives to be KMP.

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The Following information is based on latest financial statements of the Funds.

Size of the Funds - Total Assets 158,048 150,977
Cost of Investments made 155,543 150,208
Fair value of investments 156,703 149,868
Percentage of investments made (Fair value to size of the fund) 99.15% 99.27%

(Rupees in Thousand)

2024
Amount 9% Amount

The Break-up of cost of investments is:

Bank Deposits 155,543 100.00% 150,208 100.00%

Investments out of the provident funds have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and
the rules formulated for this purpose,
(Number of employees)

2025 2024
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Total number of employees as at June 30 742 768
Average number of employees during the year 760 818
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48 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These un-consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on October 04, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

49 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.

SHABBIR DIWAN MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI MUHAMMAD NAEEM
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Pattern of Shareholding

As on June 30, 2025

Number of Shareholdings Total
Shareholders From To Shares Held
342 1 - 100 20,198
287 101 - 500 82,276
581 501 - 1000 555,450
340 1001 - 5000 642,914
36 5001 - 10000 262,276
4 10001 - 15000 50,432
3 15001 - 20000 49,640
1 20001 - 25000 22,629
1 25001 - 30000 28,600
1 45001 - 50000 50,000
1 75001 - 80000 75,282
1 135001 - 140000 140,000
2 225001 - 230000 458,390
1 250001 - 255000 252,000
1 350001 - 355000 353,090
1 395001 - 400000 400,000
1 400001 - 405000 401,252
1 475001 - 480000 478,390
2 480001 - 485000 960,780
5 705001 - 710000 3,540,930
1 735001 - 740000 738,186
2 995001 - 1000000 1,999,500
1 1000001 - 1005000 1,001,000
1 1035001 - 1040000 1,037,152
1 1140001 - 1145000 1,143,224
1 1175001 - 1180000 1,177,116
1 1225001 - 1230000 1,227,668
1 1275001 - 1280000 1,275,566
1 2105001 - 2110000 2,106,713
1 2180001 - 2185000 2,182,180
1 2340001 - 2345000 2,340,490
1 2365001 - 2370000 2,367,612
1 2685001 - 2690000 2,689,040
1 2885001 - 2850000 2,885,698
1 3005001 - 3010000 3,008,200
1 3240001 - 3245000 3,240,774
1 4175001 - 4180000 4,179,210
£ 7 5615001 - 5620000 5,616,140
1 6060001 - 6065000 6,061,606
1 6450001 - 6455000 6,451,652
1 6925001 - 6930000 6,926,740
1 8350001 - 8355000 8,353,825
1 31895001 - 31900000 31,895,139
1,636 108,728,960
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Categories of Shareholders

Shares

Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer their Spouse(s) and Minor

Children, if any.

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties

NITand ICP

Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking

Financial Institutions

Insurance Companiesd Mutual Funds

Modarabas and Mutual Funds
a) Local

_ b) Foreign
General Public

a) Local

b) Foreign

Others

Shareholders holding 10% Shares or more

Novatex Limited

Shareholders holding 10% Shares or more

Novatex Limited

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

Held

27,475,624

35,135,913
1,200

1,200

12,550,540
400

400

32,090,321
1,417,620

32,090,321
1,417,620

108,728,960
5/,342

108,728,960

31,895,139

25.27

32.32
0.00

0.00

11.54
0.00

.00

29.51
1.30

29.51
1.30

100.00
0.05

100.00

29.33
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of M/s. Gatron (Industries) Limited, we are pleased to present the
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended June 30, 2025.

THE GROUP

The Group comprises of Gatron (Industries) Limited and its subsidiaries 1.e. Gatro Power (Private) Limited,
Global Synthetics Limited and G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited. The Director's report, detailing
performance of the Holding Company 1.e. Gatron (Industries) Limited for the year ended June 30, 2025,

has been annexed separately in this report.

The principal business of Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies Messrs. Gatro Power (Private) Limited
and G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited is to generate and sell electric power. The operations of the Subsidiary

Companies remain normal during the year.

Wholly owned subsidiary Messrs. Global Synthetics Limited has yet to commence 1ts operations.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALS:

(Pak Rupees in Thousand)

Operating results for the year ended June 30, 2025

Loss before levies and income tax (1,674,182)
Levies and Income tax 340,499
Loss after income tax (2,014,681)
Un- appropriated Profit brought forward 1,778,223
Accumulated loss carried forward (179,964)
Loss per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) (18.53)

(Pak Rupees in Thousand)

State of Affairs as on June 30, 2025

Property, plant and equipment 21,257,284
Other non-current assets 60.086
Current assets 15,834,762
Total assets 37,152,132
Deduct:

Non-current liabilities 8,929,475
Current liabilities 15,373,728
Total liabilities 24,303,203
Net assets financed by shareholders’ equity 12,848,929

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments atfecting the financial position of the Group occurred during the
period to which the balance sheet relates and the date of this report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board of Directors of your Company take this opportunity to express their deep sense of gratitude for
all the stakeholders for their encouragement and continued support, we appreciate the Company's
management and supporting staff for their satistactory performance and devotion to duty and we are grateful
to all Government Institutions, Auditors, the SECP, the PSX and Banks for their valuable support and

cooperation.
SHABBIR DIWAN MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
October 04, 2025
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HYDER BHIMJI & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

¥ KRESTON
\

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GATRON
(INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Gatron (Industries) Limited,
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at June 30, 2025, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

[n our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at June 30, 2025 and (of) its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Empasis of matter

We draw the attention to the contents of note 29.1.1 of the annexed consolidated financial
statements relating to provision in respect of WPPF, the ultimate outcome whereof cannot be
presently ascertained, and no provision for any liability, that may arise, has been made in the
annexed consolidated financial statements, our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Suite No. 1601, 16th Floor, Kashif Centre, Shahrah-¢-Faisal, Karachi. Phone: 92-21-35640050 - 52
Website: www.krestonhb.com E-mail: hyderbhimji@krestonhbeo.com info@krestonhbeo.com

OTHER OFFICES LAHORE - FAISALABAD - ISLAMABAD

A member of Kreston Global
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Following are the Key audit matters:

5. No. |

Key audit matter(s)

Hu;v the matter was addraed in our audit

Recognition of Revenue

Revenue from sale of the Group's
products was Rs. 26,328.04 million as
disclosed in note 4.16 and 30. Revenue
is recognized at point in time when
performance obligations are satisfied
by transferring control of promised
goods to customer,

Revenue being one of key performance
indicator of the Group and there is
inherit risk of material misstatement
involved in revenue recognition has
resulted in the revenue recognition
being considered as a key audit matter.

»

Our audit procedures included the following:

Assessed the appropriateness of thzl
Group’s accounting policies for revenu
recognition and compliance of those|
policies with applicable accounting]
standards.

Obtained an  understanding  of
management’s internal controls over thel
revenue process and tested etfectiveness
of controls relevant to such process.

Performed cut-off procedures on
sample basis on revenue transactions
recorded just before and after the year
end with the underlying goods
delivery notes, bill of lading, invoices
and other relevant documents to assess
whether the revenue has been |
recognized in the appropriate
accounting period.

Performed test of details by selecting
sample of transactions for comparing
with sales invoices, dispatch documents
and other underlying records; and

Performed other related procedures and
evaluated the appropriateness of
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with thel
requirements of the accounting and
reporting standards applicable in|
Pakistan.

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
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| S. No. Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit |
2 [Borrowings Our audit procedures included the following:
The Group has significant amounts of » Reviewed loan agreements and facility
borrowings from Banks and other letters to ascertain the terms and
financial institutions amounting to Rs, conditions of repayment, rates of
16,026,04 million, being 65.94% of total markup used and disclosed by
liabilities, as at reporting date. management for finance costs and to
ensure that the borrowings have been
‘ Given the significant level of approved at appropriate level,
borrowings, finance costs and gearing
I mmpact, the disclosure given by the » Verified disbursement of loans and
management in consolidated financial | utilization on sample basis, Reviewedl
statements and compliance with charge registration documents,
various loan covenants, this is
considered to be a key audit matter. » Verified repayments made by the
Group during the year on sample‘
(refer notes 4.14, 20 and 26 to the basis to confirm that repayments are
| consolidated financial statements). being made on time and no default
has been made.
» Checked the Group’s compliance with

the debt covenants on sample basis as
outlined in the loan agreements.

| » Performed  analytical  procedures,
recalculations and  other related
procedures for verification of finance
costs on sample basis; and

» Ensured that the outstanding liabilities
have been properly classified and
related securities and other terms are
adequately  disclosed in  the
consolidated financial statements.
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Information Other than the consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report, but does not include the un-consolidated and
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
staternents in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2025
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control,

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’'s report is Taswar
Hussain,

Chartered Accountants

Karachi:

Dated: October 06, 2025

UDIN: AR202510729a5LwYrzHS8
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GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
ASSETS
Non - Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 21,257,284 21,533,422
Intangible asset 6 50,127 60,152
Long term loans | 3,023 9,532
Long term deposits 8 6,936 6,936
21,317,370 21,610,042
Current Assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 9 2,767,246 2,845,915
Stock in trade 10 7,313,274 7,503,024
Trade debts 11 4,662,811 3,516,225
Loans and advances 12 596,525 428,652
Current portion of long term loans 13 19,010 13,411
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 14 11,082 83,653
Other receivables 15 332,635 961,506
Advance income tax - 70,000
Short term investments 16 - 296,297
Cash and bank balances 17 132,179 340,660
15,834,762 16,059,343
TOTAL ASSETS 37,152,132 37,669,385
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 18 1,087,290 1,087,290
Reserves 19 11,761,639 13,719,826
12,848,929 14,807,116
LIABILITIES
Non - Current Liabilities
Long term financing 20 7,628,310 8,507,127
Lease liability against right of use assets 21 71,666 107,749
Deferred liabilities and income 22 1,229,499 1,343,682
8,929,475 9,958,558
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 5,257,300 6,358,763
Unclaimed dividend 853 8,219
Unpaid dividend 24 20,801 20,801
Accrued mark-up/ profit 25 480,103 543,012
Short term borrowings 26 6,909,208 3,579,563
Current portion of long term financing 20 1,488,520 1,196,089
Current portion of lease liability against right of use assets 21 23,322 15,020
Current portion of deferred liabilities and income 27 976,055 081,914
Provision for levies and income tax less payments 28 217,566 200,330
15,373,728 12,903,711
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 29
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 37,152,132 37,669,385

The notes 1 to 50 annexed herewith form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SHABBIR DIWAN MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI
Chief Executive Officer Director

MUHAMMAD NAEEM
Chief Financial Officer

Buying/Selling closing conversion rates were 1 USS = Rs.283.60/284.10, 1 Euro € =Rs.332.29/332.87 and 1 Pound £ = Rs.388.28/388.97
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GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution and selling costs
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Other income
Operating (loss)/profit
Finance cost

Investment income - Dividend
Loss before levies and income tax
Levies
Loss before income tax
Income tax - Current & prior

- Deferred

Loss for the year

Loss per share - Basic and diluted ( Rupees )

The notes 1 to 50 annexed herewith form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SHABBIR DIWAN
Chief Executive Officer

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

Note

30
31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI

Director

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
26,328,040 34,013,581
25,488,673 32,023,787

839,367 1,989,794
446,117 301,996
502,345 577,615
121,101 193,778
1,069,563 1,073,389
(230,196) 916,405
106,910 369,472
(123,286) 1,285,877
1,550,896 1,622,256
(1,674,182) (336,379)
. 8,538
(1,674,182) (327,841)
329,842 424,411
(2,004,024) (752,252)
10,657 (93,157)
- (219,047)
10,657 (312,204)
(2,014,681) (440,048)
(18.53) 5.07
MUHAMMAD NAEEM

Chief Financial Officer
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GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024

Loss for the year (2,014,681) (440,048)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will never be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit plan having nil tax impact  22.2 56,494 38,473

Total comprehensive loss (1,958,187) (401,575)

The notes 1 to 50 annexed herewith form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SHABBIR DIWAN MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI MUHAMMAD NAEEM
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Balances as at July 01, 2023

Total comprehensive loss for the year ended

June 30, 2024
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners

(Rupees in Thousand)

Subscription of shares against right issue
@41.7052% at a premium of Rs.165 per share

Shares issue cost

Balances as at June 30, 2024

Total comprehensive loss for the year ended

June 30, 2025
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Balances as at June 30, 2025

Reserves
(Accumulated loss)/
Share Capital reserves Unappropriated
capital (note 19) profit Sub Total Total
767,290 6,383,645 285,000 2,179,798 8,848,443 8,615,733
(440,048) (440,048) (440,048)
- - 38,473 38,473 38,473
- (401,575) (401,575) (401,575)
320,000 5,280,000 - - 5,280,000 5,600,000
- (7,042) - - (7,042) (7,042)
1,087,290 11,656,603 285,000 1,778,223 13,719,826 14,807,116
. 5 : (2,014,681) (2,014,681) (2,014,681)
- - 56,494 56,494 56,494
- . . (1,958,187 (1,958,187 (1,958,187)

1,087,290 11,656,603 285,000 (179,964) 11,761,639 12,848,929

The notes 1 to 50 annexed herewith form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SHABBIR DIWAN
Chief Executive Officer

MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI
Director

MUHAMMAD NAEEM
Chief Financial Officer
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GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Cash flows (towards)/from Operating Activities

Loss before levies and income tax

Adjustments for non cash income & expenses:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right of use assets
Amortization of intangible asset
Provision for defined benefit plan
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of allowance for ECL-net

Note

5.2
5.6.1

22.2
35
11.5

Impairment allowance for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools-net 34

Remeasurement gain on discounting of provision for GIDC
Investment income - Dividend
Finance costs

(Increase)/decrease in current assets:
Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables
Cash flows from operations

Receipts of/(payments for):
Long term loans
Long term deposits
Defined benefit plan
Finance costs
Income tax
Net cash flows (towards)/from operating activities

Cash flows (towards)/from Investing Activities
Additions in property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Decrease/{increase) in short term investments
Dividend received
Net cash flows towards investing activities

Cash flows (towards)/from Financing Activities
Proceed against issue of share capital net of issuance cost
Long term financing - proceeds received
Long term financing - repayments
Payments for lease liability against right of use assets
Short term borrowings - net (fixed term instruments)
Dividend paid

Net cash flows (towards)/from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

35
37
36

22.2

53
16
37

41

The notes 1 to 50 annexed herewith form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SHABBIR DIWAN
Chief Executive Officer

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI

Director

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
(1,674,182) (327,841)
1,704,344 1,020,403

24,639 23,720
10,025 10,025
144,952 131,243
(23,758) (22,774)
45,761 52,641
21,411 28,755
(11,008) (118,813)

: (8,538)
1,550,896 1,622,256
3,467,262 2,738,918
1,793,080 2,411,077
57,258 (703,242)
189,750 3,883,715
(1,192,347) 406,923
(167,873) 78,820
72,571 321,303
628,871 1,030,536
(411,770) 5,018,055
(1,090,226) (3,400,353)
291,084 4,028,779
910 (7,179)

: (2,017)
(41,473) (36,786)
(1,599,439) (1,939,145)
(253,263) (358,907)
(1,602,181) 1,684,745
(1,485,069) (2,779,203)
48,503 45,718
296,297 (296,297)

: 8,538
(1,140,269) (3,021,244)
. 5,592,958
286,053 1,420,696
(1,039,695) (780,620)
(34,668) (32,271)
142,609 (635,175)
(7,366) (12,836)
(653,067) 5,552,752
(3,395,517) 4,216,253
(3,074,078) (7,290,331)

64695%5) ___(307.078)

MUHAMMAD NAEEM
Chief Financial Officer
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GATRON ( INDUSTRIES ) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS
The Group consists of :

Gatron (Industries) Limited - Parent Company

Gatro Power (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company
Global Synthetics Limited - Subsidiary Company
G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company

The Parent Company was incorporated in Pakistan in 1980 as a Public Limited Company and its shares are being quoted at Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited since 1992. The principal business of the Parent Company is manufacturing of Polyester Filament Yarn
through its self-produced Polyester Polymer/Chips. The Parent Company also produces Pet Preforms. The registered office of the
Parent Company is situated at Room Nao. 32, 1st floor, Ahmed Complex, Jinnah Road, Quetta whereas the manufacturing facility of
the Parent Company is situated at Plot No 441/49-M2, Sector "M", H.L.T.E., Main R.C.D. Highway, Hub Chowki, Distt Lasbela,
Balochistan, Liaison office of the Parent Company is situated at 11th floor, G&T Tower, # 18 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines-10, Karachi
and 2nd floor, Bahria Complex-l, M.T. Khan Road, Karachi.

Gatro Power (Private) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Gatron (Industries) Limited. The principal business of the Subsidiary
Company is to generate and sales electric power. The registered office of the Subsidiary Company Is situated at Room No. 32, 1st
floor, Ahmed Complex, Jinnah Road, Quetta. The plant of the Subsidiary Company is situated at Plot No 441/49-M2, Sector “"M",
H.I.T.E., Main R.C.D. Highway, Hub Chowki, Distt Lasbela, Balochistan and liaison office of the Subsidiary Company is situated at
11th floor, G&T Tower, # 18 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines-10, Karachi.

Global Synthetics Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Gatron (Industries) Limited, which has yet to commence its operations,
The registered office of the Company has been changed from Room No.50, 2nd Floor, Ahmed Complex, Jinnah Road, Quetta to
11th Floor, G&T Tower, #18 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines-10, Karachi. The liaison office of the Company is situated at 11th Floor, G&T
Tower, #18 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines-10, Karachi.

G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Gatron (Industries) Limited, which has commence its operations
from January 2025. The principal business of the Subsidiary Company is to generate and sale electric power. The registered office of
the Company has been changed from Room no. 32, 1st floor, Ahmed Complex, linnah Road, Quetta to 11th Floor, G&T Tower, # 18
Beaumont Road, Civil Lines-10, Karachi. The liaison office of the Subsidiary Company Is situated at 11th floor, G&T Tower, # 18
Beaumont Road, Civil Lines-10, Karachi,

2 BASI5 OF CONSOLIDATION

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company Gatron (Industries) Limited,
Subsidiary Companies Gatro Power (Private) Limited, Global Synthetics Limited and G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited. The financial
statements of the Parent and Subsidiary Companies are prepared upto the same reporting date using consistent accounting
policies. Assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries have been consolidated on line by line basis and the carrying value of investment
held by Parent Company is eliminated against the subsidiaries share capital, intra Group balances and transactions are eliminated.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except otherwise specifically
stated in note 4.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for consolidated
statement of cash flows.

3.2 Functional and reporting currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee (Rupees), which is the Group's functional currency,

3.3 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and

provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
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Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

3.4 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025

3.4.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that became effective during the year

There were certain new amendments to the approved accounting standards and a new interpretation issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which became effective during the year but are considered not to be
relevant or have any significant effect on the Group's operations, therefore, not disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements exept for additional disclosures required by amendment in IAS-1 relating to classification of non-current liabilities (refer
note 42.3).

3.4.2 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date
mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Group's
operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements other than certain
additional disclosures,

Effective from accounting period
beginning on or after:
1AS-21 The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Amendments) January 1, 2025
IFRS-7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) January 1, 2026
IFRS-17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2026
IFRS-9 Financial Instruments — Classification and Measurement of January 1, 2026

Financial Instruments (Amendments)

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also
issued the following standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exempt by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at June 30, 2025.

IFRS -1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS - 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
IFRS - 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
IFRS - 51 General requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information
IFRS - 52 Climate-related Disclosure
IFRIC-12 Service Concession Arrangement
3.5 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements reguires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
have an effect on the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors including expectation of future events that, in
the considered opinion of the management, are reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits whereof provide the basis of
making judgment in relation to carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily measurable, using other means. The
definitive impact of ultimate outcome, may fluctuate from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are periodically appraised. Revision to accounting estimates is recognized and effect is
given in the period in which estimates are revised, or in the period of the revision and future periods as appropriate.

Information about estimates and judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the significant effects on the amounts
recognized in consolidated financial statements are as follows:

3.5.1 Property, plant and equipment and Intangible asset
The Group's management reviews the estimated useful lives and related depreciation/amortization charge for its property, plant
and equipment and intangible asset on each reporting date. The Group reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on
each reporting date where there is any such indication. Any change in the estimate in future years might affect the carrying
amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with a corresponding effect on the
depreciation, impairment and deferred tax, if any.

3.5.2 Impairment of financial assets
The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets i.e. trade debts, loans, deposits, short term investments, and other
receivables to assess amount of expected credit loss required there against on annual basis. While determining impairment
allowance, the Group considers financial health, market and economic information, aging of receivables, credit worthiness, credit
rating, lifetime expected losses, past records and business relationship.
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3.5.3  Stock in trade
The Parent Company reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the respective carrying values on
each reporting date, Net realizable value is determined with respect to estimated selling prices less estimated expenditure to make
the sales.

3.5.4  Stores, spare parts and loose tools
The estimate of slow moving and obsolete stores, spare parts and loose tools, are made, using and appropriately judging the
relevant inputs and applying the parameter i.e. age analysis, obsolescence and expected use, as the management considers
appropriate, which, on actual occurrence of the subsequent event, may fluctuate. The effects of variation is recorded as and when
It takes place.

3.5.5 Defined benefit plan
The actuarial valuation of defined benefit plan, have been premised on certain actuarial hypothesis, as disclosed in note 4.8.2 and
22.2. Changes in assumptions in future years may affect the liability under this scheme upto those years.

3.5.6 Levies
The Group takes Into account the current income tax law, legislations and decisions taken by the taxation authorities for
determination of levies. These include determining the specific obligating event that triggers levy recognition based on the relevant
legislation, estimating the amount payable by considering applicable rates, and deciding the appropriate timing for recognizing the
levy liability. These estimates and judgements are periodically reviewed and updated as necessary.

3.5.7 Income tax
In making the estimate for income tax liabilities, the management considers current income tax law and the decisions of appellate
authorities. Deferred tax estimate is made considering future applicable tax rate, as also stated disclosed in note 4.11.

3.5.8  Contingencies
The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future events
cannot be predicted with certainty. The Group, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of
contingent assets and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence/non-occurrence of the uncertain future event(s).

3.5.9 Leases

The Group uses judgements and estimates in measurement of right of use assets and corresponding lease liabilities with respect to
discount rates, lease terms including exercise of renewal and termination options etc.

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are the same as those
consistently applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024,
The principal material policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below:

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Initial Recognition:
The cost of an item is recognized as an asset if and only the future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the
Group and cost of the items can be measured reliably.

Measurement:

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment if any, except free-hold land, lease-hold land and capital
wark in progress which are stated at cost. No amortization is provided on leasehold land since the leases are renewable at the
option of the lessee at nominal cost and their realizable values are expected to be higher than respective carrying values.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are accounted as separate items (major
component) of property, plant & equipment,

Subsequent costs:

Subsequent costs (including those on account of major replacement of significant part/item) are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future additional economic benefits
associated with such additional cost will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other normal
repair and maintenance incurred are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is charged on diminishing balance method except overhauling (major parts), which are depreciated at straight line
method, at the rates mentioned in Note 5.1, whereby the depreciable amount of an asset is written off over its estimated useful
life. Depreciation on addition is charged from the month of the asset is available for use upto the month prior to disposal,
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4.2

4.3

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

Impairment:

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in
excess of their respective estimated recoverable amounts. Where estimated carrying amounts exceed the respective recoverable
amounts, the estimated carrying amounts are appropriately adjusted with impairment loss recognized in consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the period. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use, Fair value
means the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm's length
transaction. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the
asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Write off:
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized when no economic future benefits are expected from its use,

Gain or Loss:
Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, if any, is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Right of use assets:

Right of use assets are initially measured at cost being the present value of lease payments, initial direct costs, any lease payments
made at of before the commencement of the lease as reduced by any incentives received. These are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the asset. Where the ownership
of the asset transfer to the Group at the end of the lease term or if the cost of the asset reflects that the Group will exercise the
purchase option, depreciation is charged over the useful life of assets.

Intangible Asset

An intangible asset is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the
entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding, beyond one year, are
recognized as an intangible asset,

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any except capital work in progress which are stated at
cost. Intangible asset is amortized on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s). Amortization on additions during the
financial year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, whereas no amortization is charged from the month the
asset is disposed-off,

Impairment
Financial assets
The Group recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-
month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a reasonable
period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months), The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering of a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group individually makes an assessment with respects to the timing and
amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

The adoption of the expected loss approach has not resulted in any material change in impairment provision for any financial asset.
Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets and inventories are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount, being higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

4.4 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at weighted average cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising of invoice value and other incidental
charges incurred thereon till the reporting date. Adequate impairment allowance is made for slow moving and obsolete items
based on parameter set out by the management as stated in note 3.5.4. The major value spares and stand by equipments are
capitalized and depreciated according to their useful life,

4.5 Stock in trade

These are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. The value of goods in process and finished goods
represents costs of direct materials plus applicable labour and production overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other incidental charges incurred thereon upto the reporting date.
4.6 Trade debts, advances and other receivables

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and measured at fair value of
consideration receivable. Export debtors are translated into Rupee at the rate prevailing on the reporting date. An expected credit
loss is established when there is objective evidence that the Parent Company will not be able to collect amounts due according to
the original terms of the trade debts, These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual
credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and running
finance. Running finance are shown within short term borrowings.

4.8 Employees’ post employment benefits

4.8.1 Defined contribution plan
The Group provides provident fund benefits to all its eligible employees. Equal contributions are made, both by the Group and the
employees and the same is charged to the statement of profit or loss.

4.8.2 Defined benefit plan
The Group operates an unfunded defined gratuity scheme, in addition to defined contribution plan being not mandatory under the
law, for its employees and working directors who attain the minimum qualification period. The obligation is determined through
actuarial valuation by an independent actuary using the "Projected Unit Credit Method". The latest actuarial valuation was
conducted on the balances as at June 30, 2025.

4.9 Compensated unavailed leaves

The Group accounts for its estimated liability towards unavailed leaves accumulated by employees on accrual basis.
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4.10 Government scheme

Government scheme are transfer of resources to an entity by government entity in return for the compliance with certain past or
future conditions related to the entity's operating activities. The definition of "government” refers to governments, government
agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national or international.

The Group recognizes benefits under the government schemes when there is reasonable assurance that benefits of the schemes
will be received and the Group will be able to comply with conditions associated with schemes. These benefits are recognized at
fair value, as deferred income.

Schemes that compensate the Group for expenses incurred, are recognized on a systematic basis in the income for the year in
which the related expenses are recognized. Schemes that compensate for the cost of an asset are recognized in income on
systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

A loan is initially recognized and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 9. IFRS 9 requires loan at below-market rates to
be initially measured at their fair value - e.g. the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at a market-related
interest rate. The benefit under the government financing scheme is measured as the difference between the fair value of the loan
on initial recognition and the amount received, which is accounted for according to the nature of the scheme.

4.11 Income Tax

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into account applicable tax
credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or minimum tax u/s 113 and alternate corporate tax u/s 113C of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. The Parent Company to the extent of export sales fall under the final tax regime u/s 154 read
with section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The charge for current tax aiso includes adjustments, where considered
necessary, to provision for taxation made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the period for such years.

Profits and gains derived by the Subsidiary Company i.e, Gatro Power (Private) Limited from electric power generation project are
exempt from income tax under clause 132 of Part-l of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.The Subsidiary
Company is also exempt from minimum tax on turnover under section 113 as per clause 11 (V) of the Part-1V of Second Schedule to
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

The Parent Company accounts for deferred income tax on all temporary timing differences using the liability method. Deferred
income tax assets are recognized to the extent, it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which, the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits, can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. In this regard, the effect on deferred taxation of the
portion of income expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted.

Levies

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount paid / payable in excess of
the calculation based on taxable income or any minimum tax which is not adjustable against future income tax liability is classified
as levy in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 12/I1AS 37,

4.12 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amartized cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods
and services recognized upto reporting date.

4.13 Provision

Provision is recognized when the Group has present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, if it is probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, and reliable estimate of the amounts can be made.,

4.14 Borrowings and their costs
Borrowings are recorded as the proceeds received.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, installation or production of a qualifying asset, where borrowing
costs, if any, are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset,
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4.15 Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded into Rupee using the prevailing exchange rates. As on reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are transiated into Rupee at the prevailing exchange rates on the reporting date, Resultant
exchange differences are taken to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The revenue from diverse
sources is recognized as explained below:

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control of a
promised good or service to a customer, and the control transfers at a point in time, i.e. at the time the goods are dispatched
[/ shipped to customer. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts,
returns rebates and government levies.

- Processing services are recognized on completion of services rendered.
- Dividend income is recognized when the right of receipt is established.
- Income from rent is recognized on accrual basis.
- Storage and handling income is recognized on performing services or issuance of invoices.
- Profit on deposits is recognized using the effective interest method.
4,17 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

4.18 Dividend and appropriation to reserve

Liability for dividend and appropriation to reserve are recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which
these are approved.

Transfer between reserves made subsequent to the reporting date is considered as a non-adjusting event and is recognized in the
period in which such transfers are made.

4,19 Financial instruments

Initial measurement of financial asset
The Group classifies its financial assets in to following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- measured at amortized cost,

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition,

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated using the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Equity Investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in the
statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains
and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest /
markup or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost: These assets are subseguently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the
respective contractual provisions, Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other receivables and cash
and cash equivalent. The Company derecognizes the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.

4.20 Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities at amortized costs are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs. Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

4,21 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position,
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the asset and discharge the liability simultaneously.

4.22 Operating segments

Segment results that are reported to the Group’s Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) - the chief operating decision maker include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items, if any, comprise
mainly corporate assets, head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. Management monitors the
operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions regarding resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure have the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment. Segment
results are stated in note 44,

4.23 Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed when

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

4.24 Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If the implicit rate cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate issued. Subsequently these are
increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and remeasured for lease modifications, if any.

Liabilities in respect of certain short term and low value leases are not recognized and payments against such leases are recognized
as expense in profit or loss.

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 5.1 19,391,804 15,178,047
Capital work in progress 5.5 1,788,773 6,229,325
Right of use assets 5.6 76,707 108,825
Advance for purchase of land 29.3.1 - 17,225

21,533,422

21,257,284 :
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5.3 Detail of property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year : (Rupees in Thousand)

Sale Mode of
Description Cost Book Value ! Particulars of Buyers
Proceeds Disposal

OFFICE PREMISES
Items having book value upto Rs.500 350 60 3,000 2,940 | Negotiation |Various
thousand each
Sub Total 350 60 3,000 2,940
PLANT AND MACHINERY
TRANSFORMER 3000KVA 3,760 853 1,938 1,085 Negotiation |M/s. Gencom Spares & Service
Sector-6F, Mehran Town Korangi
Industrial Area, Karachi.
COOLING TOWER 34,709 1,737 3,184 1,447 Negotiation |M/s. Ismail Kabeer Ahmed
Jahangirabad, Nazimabad,
Karachi.
Items having book value upto Rs.500 32,489 669 5,509 4,840 Various Various
thousand each
Sub Total 70,958 3,259 10,631 7,372
MOTOR VEHICLES
HONDA CIVIC ORIEL 3,489 1,050 2,114 1,064 | Company Policy |Mr. Mohammed Zubair
BAC855 | I . ____|Employee of the company
HYUNDAI TUCSON 8,013 7,746 8,063 317 | Company Policy |Mr. Mubin Jaliawala
BM-6174 Employee of the company
TOYOTA COROLLA GLI 2,369 100 1,292 592 | Company Policy [Mr. Shaheen
BQG-941 Employee of the company
HONDA HR-V 6,303 4,084 5,336 1,252 | Company Policy |Mr. Abdul Razzak
BL-1175 Employee of the company
TOYOTA ALTIS 3,155 932 1,735 803 | Company Policy |Mr. Muhammad Naeem
BQR-137 Employee of the company
SUZUKI WAGON-R VXL 1,625 519 | 1,620 1,101 | Company Policy |Mr. Jahangir
BRF-619 Employee of the company
CAR CHANGAN ALSVIN 3,849 2,833 3,650 817 | Company Policy |Mr. Khurram Nawab
BZF-377 Employee of the company
Items having book value upto Rs.500 16,373 3,562 11,062 7,500 Various Various
thousand each
Sub Total 45,176 21,426 34,872 13,446
Total - 2025 116,484 24,745 48,503 23,758
Total - 2024 64,818 22,944 45,718 22,774
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5.4

2.3

5.5.1

3.6

5.6.1

Particulars of immovable properties owned by the Company are as follows :

Particulars Location Approximate Area
Land
Freehold Plot#435/43, 441/49, 442/49, 443/49, 446/49/1, 27 Acres

445/49/1, 448/36, 450/41, 452/44, 452/440/44,
453/440/44, 36, 45/1 & 53/2 at H.I.T.E., Hub Chowki,

Distt. Lasbela Balochistan
Freehold Plot#34 & 36 at Manghopir, Gadap Town, Karachi 13 Acres

Leasehold Plot# 436/43, 437/43 438/43, 439/44, 449/41, 39 Acres
451/440/44, 44, 50, 50/1, 52, 52/1 & 53/1 at H.I.T.E.,
Hub Chowki, Distt, Lasbela Balochistan

Building

On Freehold land H..T.E., Hub Chowki, Distt, Lasbela Balochistan 11,500 Sq. Meters
On Leasehold land H.I.T.E., Hub Chowki, Distt, Lasbela Balochistan 171,475 Sq. Meters
Office Premises Office#1,3-A, 3-B, 5 & 7 at Textile Plaza, M.A Jinnah 350 Sg. Meters

Road / Dunolly Road Karachi

Office Premises Office#207-212, Gul Tower, |.I Chundrigar Road, Karachi 225 Sq. Meters
Office Premises Room#32, Ahmed Complex, Jinnah Road, Quetta 30 5q. Meters
Office Premises Madina Plaza, Katcheri Bazar, Faisalabad 160 Sq. Meters

Capital Work-in-Progress (Rupees in Thousand)

Transfer to

Balance as at Operating fixed Balance as at June

July 1, 2024 Additions assets 30, 2025
Factory building under construction 755,455 16,559 (772,014) -
Plant and machinery under erection 5,473,870 1,240,345 (4,925,442) 1,788,773

6,229,325 1,256,904 (5,697,456) 1,788,773

Transfer to

Balance as at Operating fixed Balance as at June

July 1, 2023 Additions assets 30, 2024
Factory building under construction 956,303 377,996 (578,844) 755,455
Plant and machinery under erection 11,464,868 1,946,621 (7,937,619) 5,473,870
12,421,171 2,324,617 8,516,463 6,229,325

#&

It includes borrowing cost of Rs.1.948 million (2024: Rs.388.970 million) and net of with amortization of government scheme
amounting to Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.138.483 million). Effective rate of borrowing cost ranges between 11.21% to 12.14% (2024; 3% to
22.80%).

=r==r

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024

Right of use assets
Rented Premises:

Balance as at start of the year 108,825 -
Additions during the year - 132,545
Effect of lease modification during the year (7,479) -
Depreciation for the year 5.6.1 (24,639) (23,720)
Balance as at end of the year ?Ei?ﬂ? 1ﬂ35325
Allocation of depreciation
Distribution and selling costs 32 8,368 5,579
Administrative expenses 33 16,271 18,141
24,639 23,720
INTANGIBLE ASSET
Software & licences
Balance as at start of the year 60,152 70,177
Amortization during the year 33 (10,025) (10,025)
Balance as at end of the year 50,127 60,152

= =
Useful life 8 Years 8 Years

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2025



7.1
7.2

- o |

10

10.1

11

11.1

11.2

11.3

Note
LONG TERM LOANS - Considered good
Secured - Interest free
To employees other than Chief Executive & Directors 7.18&87.2

Amount due in twelve months shown under current assets 13
Recoverable within three years

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025

2024

22,033 22,943
(19,010) (13,411)
3,023 9,532

The above loans are under the terms of employment and are secured against the post employment benefits of the employees.

Interest free long term loans have been carried out at cost as the effect of carrying these balances at amortized cost is not material.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits for utilities and others

STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
In hand:

Stores
Spare parts
Loose tools

Impairment allowance for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools 9.1

In transit

Impairment allowance for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools

Balance as at start of the year

Impairment allowance for the year 34
Balance as at end of the year

STOCK IN TRADE

Raw and packing material

Raw and packing material in transit

Goods in process

Unfinished goods held for sale

Finished goods 10.1

6,936 6,936
1,151,966 1,070,250
1,773,832 1,910,751

15,396 15,008
2,941,194 2,996,009
(176,882) (155,471)
2,764,312 2,840,538
2,934 5,377
2,767,246 2,845,915
155,471 126,716
21,411 28,755
176,882 155,471
1,097,642 2,255,082
327,624 4,122
1,993,722 1,392,301
1,206 32,744
3,893,080 3,818,775
7,313,274 7,503,024

These include items costing Rs.78.767 million (2024: Rs.90.368 million) valued at net realizable value of Rs.60.889 million (2024:

Rs.74.586 million).

TRADE DEBTS

Considered good

Secured - Export 11.1,11.2 & 11.3
Unsecured - local 11.4

Allowance for ECL - local
Unsecured - local
Allowance for ECL - local 11.5

These represent balances of USS 0.214 million (2024: USS 0.137 million).

60,777 38,146
4,602,034 3,478,079
4,662,811 3,516,225

216,581 170,820
(216,581) (170,820)
4,662,811 3,516,225

These include Rs.60.390 million (2024: Rs.0.415 million) due from a related party Messrs. G-Pac Corporation and this balance is not
past due as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.170.030 million (2024:

Rs.0.415 million).

These are secured against letters of credit issued by banks in favour of the Parent Company.

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
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11.4

b)

d)

11.5

12

12.1
12.2

13

14

14.1

These includes related parties balances are as follows:

These include Rs.940.978 million (2024: Rs.Nil) due from a related party Messrs, Novatex Limited and this amount is not past due and
not outstanding for more than three months. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.940.978
million (2024: Rs.923.309 million).

These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.15.431 million) due from a related party Messrs. Krystalite Products (Private) Limited. The maximum
aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.15.431 million (2024: Rs.117.848 million).

(Rupees in Thousand)
Note 2025 2024
Mot past due - 8
Past due 31-90 days - 15,328
Above 90 days - 95
- 15,431

These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.Nil) due from a related party Messrs. Mushtag & Company (Private) Limited. The maximum aggregate
amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.1.296 million).

These include Rs.294.067 million (2024: Rs.180.901 million) due from a related party Messrs. Mustagim Dyeing &Printing Ind (Private)
Limited. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.312.023 million (2024: Rs.257.035 million).

Not past due 13,870 12,216
Past due 1-30 days 15,036 41,617
Past due 31-90 days 27,251 71,599
Past due 91-180 days 44,657 52,214
Past due 180 days 193,253 3,255
294,067 180,901
Allowance for ECL - local
Balance as at start of the year 170,820 118,179
Charge for the year 134,351 162,872
Reversals since recovered (88,590) (110,231)
Charge for the year - net 34 45,761 52,641
Balance as at end of the year 216,581 170,820

LOANS AND ADVANCES - Considered good

Secured

Advances to employees 12.1 3,506 4,317

Unsecured

Advances:

to suppliers and contractors 12.2 586,068 408,264

for imports 6,951 16,071

593,019 424,335

! EHELSZS 4EB£E-52

These represent advances against monthly salary under the terms of employment,

These include advances against purchase of vehicles Rs.5.665 million (2024: Rs.4.216 million).

CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM LOANS

Secured

Loan recoverable in twelve months from employees 7 19,010 13,411

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Margins held by banks 14.1 8,265 38,742

Security deposits 300 39,999

Prepayments 2,517 4,912
__ 11082 _ 83653

This represents margin held by bank against Letters of Credit.
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(Rupees in Thousand)
Note 2025 2024
15 OTHER RECEIVABLES - Considered good
Receivable from suppliers 15.1 118,401 130,810
Claims receivable from suppliers 7,531 7,357
Sales tax 130,964 704,984
Partial alleged sales tax demand paid 29.1.5, 29.1.16,
29.1.18 &
29.1.29 30,483 30,483
Partial alleged income tax demand paid 29.1.13 &
29.1.20 43,169 43,169
Others 15.2 & 15.3 2,087 44,703

332,635 961,506

15.1 These includes balances receivable in foreign currency of USS 0.357 million & Euro:0.017 million (2024: USS 0.429 million).
15.2 These includes related parties balances are as follows:

a) These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.23.192 million) receivable from a related party Messrs. Novatex Limited on account of common sharing
expenses and balance is not past due as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was
Rs.175.499 million (2024 Rs.175.340 million).

b) These include Rs.0.011 million (2024: Rs.2.459 million) receivable from a related party Messrs. Krystalite Product (Private) Limited on
account of reimbursement of expenses and this balance is not past due as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any
month end during the year was Rs.2.459 million (2024: Rs.2.784 million).

c) These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.Nil) receivable from a related party Messrs. Gani & Tayub (Private) Limited and this balance is not past
due as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.1.126 million).

d) These include Rs.0.116 million (2024: Rs.0.050 million) receivable from a related party Messrs. Nova Mobility (Private) Limited and
this balance is not past due as at year end. The maximum aggregate amount due at any month end during the year was Rs.0.150
million (2024: Rs.0.050 million).

15.3 These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.10.886 million) receivable from Custom Authority against excess custom duty paid during the year.

16 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Term deposit receipt . 296,297
16.1 This carries profit rate @20.67% and matured on July 30, 2024.
17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 2,728 3,861
Cash at banks
In current accounts : Local currency 90,875 130,888
In saving accounts : Local currency 17.1 1,711 1,574
In current accounts : Foreign currency 17.2 36,865 204,337
17.3 129,451 336,799
132,179 340,660
17.1 These include security deposits received from contractors Rs.1.605 million (2024 Rs.1.535 million) refer note 23.7. These carries profit

ranging from 5.00% to 19.26%.

17.2 These represent balances of USS 129,252.57 and Euro € 629.98 (2024: US55 733,557.41 and Euro € 629.98).
17.3 Balance in bank accounts includes an amount of Rs.57.777 million (2024: Rs.169.935 million) kept with Shariah compliant banks.

18 SHARE CAPITAL

({ Number of Shares )

2025 2024

18.1 Authorized capital

130,000,000 130,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 1:3{]1];0[]'[] IEEDG*DDD

18.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

62,136,080 62,136,080 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each allotted for 621,361 621,361
consideration paid in cash
46,592,880 46,592,880 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each allotted as fully paid 465,929 465,929
bonus shares
108,728,960 108,728,960 1,087,290 1,087,290

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2025



18.2.1 These include 3,240,774 (2024: 3,240,774) shares held by a related party, Messrs. Gani & Tayub (Private) Limited, 31,895,139 (2024;
Nil) shares held by associated companies Messrs. Novatex Limited and Nil (2024: 31,895,139) shares held by Messrs, Nova Frontiers

Limited.
(Number of shares)
Note 2025 2024
18.3 Movement in number of shares
Opening balance 108,728,560 76,728,960
Right shares issued during the year - 32,000,000
Closing balance 108,728,960 108,728,960

All ordinary shares rank egually with regard to the Parent Company's residual assets. Holders of these shares are entitled to
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Parent Company.

(Rupees in Thousand)

19 RESERVES

These includes Capital Reserves as follows:

Share premium 19.1 5,656,603 5,656,603
Capital expenditure and BMR 19.2 6,000,000 6,000,000
Capital reserves 11,656,603 11,656,603
19.1 This represents premium of Rs.20 per share received on initial public issue of 17,438,400 shares in 1992, premium of Rs.10 per share

received on right issue of 3,487,680 shares in 1998 and premium of Rs.165 per share received on right issue of 32,000,000 shares in
2024 and net with share issuance cost of Rs.7.042 million. This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified
in section 81 of the Companies Act 2017,

19.2 The Board of Directors of the Parent Company in its meeting held on June 26, 2023 decided to earmark a sum of PKR 6,000 million as
not available for distribution by way of dividend on account of capacity expansions and BMR to more accurately reflect the nature of
these reserves.

20 LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured

from banking companies Under Shariah compliant
Meezan Bank Limited 20.1 1,568,687 1,876,836
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited 20.2 46,608 54,815
United Bank Limited 20.3 1,422,957 1,353,117
Bank Al-Falah Limited 20.4 792,860 894,258
Meezan Bank Limited 20.5 1,137,056 1,348,376
Habib Metropaolitan Bank Limited 20.6 78,684 80,006
Faysal Bank Limited 20.7 154,207 178,018
Faysal Bank Limited 20.8 981,001 1,123,815
Habib Bank Limited 20.9 2,222,623 2,116,194
Bank Al-Habib Limited 20.10 116,188 120,031
First Habib Modaraba 20.11 333,630 430,470
Soneri Bank Limited 20.12 31,852 27,280
Bank Al-Habib Limited 20.13 90,000 100,000
MCB Islamic Bank Limited 20.14 140,477

9,116,830 9,703,216
Current maturity shown under current liabilities (1,488,520) (1,196,089)

7,628,310 8,507,127

20.1 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Long Term Financing Facility (ILTFF) amounting to Rs.2,500 million out of which
Rs.2,465.193 million (2024: Rs.2,465.193 million) obtained during June 2019 to June 2021 for purchase of plant and machinery.
Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring
during June 2029 to June 2031 on their respective maturities, The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+2% bank profit. These
loans are secured by way of exclusive hypothecation charge over specific plant and machinery.
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(Rupees in Thousand)
2025 2024
Balance as at start of the year 1,876,836 2,184,985
Repayments during the year (308,149) (308,149)
Balance as at end of the year 1,568,687 1,876,836
20.2 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Finance Facility for Renewable Energy (IFRE) amounting to Rs.120 million out of

which Rs.88.204 million (2024: Rs.88.204 million) obtained during February 2020 to September 2021 for procurement of solar
panels/solar plant. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 20 equal half yearly instalilments, commencing after a grace period of
three months and expiring during February 2030 to September 2031 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of return is
relevant SBP rate+1.50% bank profit. These loans are secured against the hypothecation charge over specific plant and machinery
(solar equipments).

Balance as at start of the year 54,815 67,250
Repayments during the year (8,207) (12,435)
Balance as at end of the year 46,608 54,815

20.3 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF) amounting to Rs.2,200 million out
of which Rs.2,200 million (2024: Rs.2,200 million) having present value of Rs.1,422.957 million (2024: Rs.1,353.117 million) obtained
during February 2021 to October 2022 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half
yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring during February 2031 to October 2032 on their
respective maturities. The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+1.25% bank profit. These loans are secured by way of
exclusive hypothecation charge over specific plant and machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 1,353,117 1,396,382
Amortization of government scheme 129,360 115,838
Repayments during the year (59,520) (159,103)
Balance as at end of the year 1,422,957 1,353,117
20.4 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF) amounting to Rs.1,000 million out

of which Rs.1,000 million (2024: Rs.1,000 million) having present value of Rs.792.860 million (2024: Rs.894.258 million) obtained
during April 2021 to September 2022 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half
yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring during April 2031 to September 2032 on their
respective maturities. The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+1% bank profit. These loans are secured by way of exclusive
hypothecation charge over specific plant and machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 894,258 905,805
Amortization of government scheme 16,140 15,609
Repayments during the year (117,538) (27,156)
Balance as at end of the year ?BZ;HEE 894,258

20.5 This represents Diminishing Musharakah amounting to Rs.1,900 million out of which Rs.1,554.482 million (2024: Rs.1,554.482 million)
obtained during August 2021 to August 2022 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 12 equal
half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of one years and expiring during August 2028 to August 2029 on their
respective maturities. The applicable rate of profit is 6 months KIBOR+0.10%. These loans are secured by way of specific

hypothecation charge over plant and machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 1,348,376 1,554,482
Repayments during the year (211,320) (206,106)
Balance as at end of the year 1,137,056 1,348,376

20.6 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF) amounting to Rs.120 million out of
which Rs.119,904 million (2024: Rs.119.904 million) having present value of Rs.78.684 million (2024: Rs.80.006 million) obtained
during July 2021 to March 2023 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly
installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring during July 2031 to March 2033 on their respective
maturities. The applicable rate of profit is relevant SBP rate+1% bank profit. These loans are secured by way of exclusive
hypothecation charge over specific plant and machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 80,006 76,165
Amortization of government scheme 6,849 6,068
Repayments during the year (8,171) (2,227)
Balance as at end of the year 78,684 80,006
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20.7 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Finance Facility for Renewable Energy (IFRE) amounting to Rs.280 million out of
which Rs.217.113 million (2024: Rs.217.113 million) obtained during July 2021 to February 2023 for procurement of plant &
machinery (solar equipments). Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 20 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace
period of three months and expiring during September 2031 to May 2033 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of return
is relevant SBP rate+1% bank profit. These loans are secured against the specific hypothecation charge over plant and machinery
(solar equipments).

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
Balance as at start of the year 178,018 198,039
Repayments during the year (23,811) (20,021)
Balance as at end of the year 154,207 178,018

20.8 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Long Term Financing Facility (ILTFF) amounting to Rs.1,200 million out of which
Rs.1,142.508 million (2024: Rs.1,142.508 million) obtained during October 2021 to April 2023 for purchase of plant and machinery.
Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring
during October 2031 to June 2032 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of profit is relevant SBP rate+1% bank profit.
Out of total principal, SBP has not disbursed loan amounting to Rs.706.811 million under ILTFF Scheme, therefore bank is charging
profit at 3 months KIBOR on those disbursements. These loans are secured by way of exclusive hypothecation charge over specific
plant and machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 1,123,815 1,142,508
Repayments during the year (142,814) (18,693)
Balance as at end of the year 981,001 1,123,815

20.9 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Long Term Financing Facility (ILTFF) amounting to Rs.3,000 million out of which
Rs.2,255.522 million (2024: Rs.2,116.194 million) obtained during June 2022 to March 2025 for purchase of plant and machinery.
Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring
during June 2032 to March 2035 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of profit is relevant SBP rate+1% bank profit. Qut
of total principal, SBP has not disbursed loan amounting to Rs.2,230.085 million under ILTFF Scheme, therefare bank is charging profit
at 3 months KIBOR+0.25% on those disbursements. These loans are secured by way of exclusive hypothecation charge over specific
plant and machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 2,116,194 1,279,978
Obtained during the year 139,328 836,216
Repayments during the year (32,899) -

Balance as at end of the year 2,222,623 2,116,194

20.10 This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF) amounting to Rs.200 million out of
which Rs.200 million (2024: Rs.200 million) having present value of Rs.116.188 million (2024: Rs.120.031 million) obtained during
August 2022 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal half yearly instaliments,
commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring during August 2032 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of
return is relevant SBP rate+1% bank profit. These loans are secured by way of exclusive hypothecation charge over specific plant and

machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 120,031 106,279
Amortization of government scheme 14,907 13,752
Repayments during the year (18,750) -
Balance as at end of the year 115:133 120,031

20.11  This represents Diminishing Musharakah amounting to Rs.508 million out of which Rs.457.200 million (2024: Rs.457.200 million)
obtained during September 2023 to December 2023 for purchase of plant and machinery. Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 20
equal quarterly installments, and expiring during September 2028 to December 2028 on their respective maturities. The applicable
rate of profit is 3 months KIBOR+0.50% to 0.75%. These loans are secured by way of specific hypothecation charge over plant and

machinery.

Balance as at start of the year 430,470 -
Loan obtained during the year - 457,200
Repayments during the year (96,840) (26,730)
Balance as at end of the year EEEEEEH 430,470
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20.12

20,13

20.14

21

This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Finance Facility for Renewable Energy (IFRE) amounting to Rs.38 million out of
which Rs.33.528 million (2024: Rs.27.280 million) obtained during June 2024 to December 2024 for procurement of plant &
machinery (solar equipments). Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 20 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace
period of three months and expiring in June 2034 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+4%
bank profit. These loans are secured against the specific hypothecation charge over plant and machinery (solar equipments).

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
Balance as at start of the year 27,280 -
Loan obtained during the year 6,248 27,280
Repayments during the year (1,676) -
Balance as at end of the year 31,852 27,280

This represents Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic Finance Facility for Renewable Energy (IFRE) amounting to Rs.100 million out of
which Rs.100 million (2024: Rs.100 million) obtained during May 2024 to June 2024 for procurement of plant & machinery (solar
equipments). Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 20 equal half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of three
months and expiring in May 2034 on their respective maturities. The applicable rate of return is relevant SBP rate+4% bank profit.
These loans are secured against the specific hypothecation charge over plant and machinery (solar equipments).

Balance as at start of the year 100,000 -
Loan obtained during the year - 100,000
Repayments during the year (10,000) -
Balance as at end of the year 90,000 100,000

This represents Diminishing Musharakah amounting to Rs.300 million out of which Rs.140.477 million (2024: Rs.Nil) obtained during
April 2025 to June 2025 for purchase of plant and machinery (solar equipment), Principal is repayable alongwith profit in 16 equal
half yearly installments, commencing after a grace period of two years and expiring during April 2035 to June 2035 on their
respective maturities. The applicable rate of profit is 6 months KIBOR+0.05%. These loans are secured by way of specific
hypothecation charge over plant and machinery.

Loan obtained during the year 140,477 -
Balance as at end of the year 140,477 -

LEASE LIABILITY AGAINST RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Balance as at start of the year 122,765 -
Additions during the year - 132,545
Effect of lease modification during the year (7,479) -
Accretion of interest 14,366 22,495
Payment of lease liabilities (34,668) (32,271)
94,988 122,769

Current maturity shown under current liabilities (23,322) (15,020)
Balance as at end of the year 71,666 107,749

(Rupees in Thousand)
2025 2024

Minimum Lease  Present Value of Minimum Lease Present Value of
Payments Lease Payments Payments Lease Payments

Lease liabilities are payable as follows:

Within one year 36,994 23,322 38,263 15,020
Later than one year and not later than five years 85,740 71,666 143,366 107,749
Total minimum lease payments 122,734 94,988 181,629 122,769
Less: Financial charges allocated to future periods (27,746) - (58,860) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 94,988 94,988 122,769 122,769
Less: Current portion of lease liabilities (23,322) (23,322) (15,020) (15,020)
71,666 71,666 107,749 107,749
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(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
22 DEFERRED LIABILITIES AND INCOME
Deferred Liabilities
Deferred tax - net 22.1 - -
Defined benefit plan 22.2 673,916 626,931
Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) 22.3 - -
Deferred income
Deferred Income - Government scheme 22.4 555,583 716,751
1,229,499 1,343,682
22.1 This comprises of the following major timing differences:
Taxable temporary difference arising due to:
tax depreciation allowances 1,550,630 1,077,973
right of use asset 27,547 35,603
Deductible temporary difference arising due to:
|Impairment allowance for ECL (62,808) (49,538)
Impairment allowance for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools (38,006) (33,663)
Tax losses adjustable against future tax liability (1,477,363) (1,030,375)
22.1.1 Movement in deferred tax
Balance as at start of the year - 219,047
Reversal for the year 39 - (219,047)
Balance as at end of the year - -
At the reporting date, deferred tax asset amounting to Rs.1,617.759 million (2024: Rs.743.283 million) has not been recognized because
it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the Group can utilize the deferred tax asset.
22.2 Actuarial valuation of the plan was carried out as at June 30, 2025. The calculation for provision of defined benefit plan is as under:
Movement of the present value of defined benefit obligation (PVDBO)
Balance as at start of the year 626,931 570,947
Charge for the year 22.2.1 144,952 131,243
Remeasurement gain (56,454) (38,473)
Payments during the year (41,473) (36,786)
Balance as at end of the year 673,916 626,931
22,2.1 Charge for the year
Current service cost 60,085 44,216
Markup cost 84,867 87,027
144,952 131,243
Allocation are as follows:
Cost of Sales 31.1 73,890 58,601
Distribution and selling costs 32.1 6,029 3,399
Administrative expenses 33.1 65,033 69,243
144,952 131,243
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
Discount rate 12.50% 14.00%
Future salary increase rate 12.50% 14.00%
Withdrawal Rate Moderate Moderate
Mortality Adjusted SLIC Adjusted SLIC 2001-
2001-2005 2005
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22.3

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

Sensitivity Analysis

PVDBO PVDBO
Percentage (Rupees in Percentage

Thousand) Change

(Rupees in
Thousand Change

Current Liability 673,916 - 626,931 -

+ 1% Discount Rate 643,577 (4.50%) 598,781 (4.49%)
- 1% Discount Rate 709,123 5.22% 659,594 5.21%
+ 1% Salary Increase Rate 712,119 5.67% 662,378 5.65%
- 1% Salary Increase Rate 640,575 (4.95%) 595,992 (4.94%)
+ 10% Withdrawal Rates 672,532 (0.21%) 625,644 (0.21%)
- 10% Withdrawal Rates 675,360 0.21% 628,274 0.21%
1 Year Mortality age set back 673,936 0.00% 626,950 0.00%
1 Year Mortality age set forward 673,896 (0.00%) 626,913 (0.00%)

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
Maturity profile Undiscounted payments
Year 1 205,303 202,911
Year 2 26,235 25,879
Year 3 15,378 14,925
Year 4 38,580 38,077
Year 5 32,596 32,158
Year 6 to 10 130,658 128,805
Year 11 and above 472,595 464,973

Risks Associated with Defined Benefit Plan

Longevity Risks:
The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan level over the entire
retiree population.

Salary Increase Risk:
The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises when the actual
increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

Withdrawal Risk:
The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation. The movement of
the liability can go either way.

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess
Balance at start of the year 814,658 791,976
Remeasurement gain on discounting of provision for GIDC 35 (11,008) (118,813)
Un-winding of long term provision for GIDC 36 11,237 141,495
814,887 814,658
Current portion of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 27 (814,887) (814,658)

—

The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan has decided the Appeal against consumers upholding the vires of GIDC Act, 2015 through
its judgement dated August 13, 2020. The Review Petition was filed against the Judgment, wherein the Honorable Court has provided
some relief by increasing the time period for recovery of GIDC from 24 installments to 48 instaliments and also hold that GIDC
relating to period prior to the GIDC Act, 2015 is not recoverable in case the same was not passed on by the Group.

As per judgement of the Honarable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Group has filed a Civil Suit 1369/2020 before the Sindh High Court
against payment of GIDC installments on the ground that the Group has not passed on the burden of Cess, The Honorable Court has
granted stay order to Plaintiffs whereby the Messrs. Sui Southern Gas Company Limited has been restrained to take any coercive
action against non payment of GIDC installments. The Group has recorded the provision at its present value by discounting the future
cash flows at risk free rate.
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22.4

23

23.1
23.2
23.3

23.4

23.5
23.6

23.7
23.8

Deferred Income - Government scheme

This represents the value of benefit of below-market markup rate on the loans obtained under Islamic Temporary Economic
Refinance Scheme (ITERF) disclosed in note 20.3, 20.4, 20.6 & 20.10 to these consolidated financial statements. ITERF scheme is a
‘temporary’ relief measure taken by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in context of COVID-19 related economic situation and with the
objective to provide stimulus to the economy across the board by supporting new investment and BMR of the existing projects in the
country, The difference between the fair value of these loans and proceeds received is recorded as Deferred income - Government
scheme and the reconciliation of carrying amount is as follows:

(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
Opening balance 884,007 1,035,274
Amortization of government scheme (167,256) (151,267)
716,751 884,007
Current portion of government scheme 27 (161,168) (167,256)

555,583 716,751

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 23.1&23.2 1,494,461 1,505,860
Bills payable 23.3 995,241 1,922,650
Accrued expenses 23.4 278,310 445,474
Advance payments from customers - unsecured 23.5& 236 595,519 840,360
Security deposits from contractors 23.7 1,605 1,535
Workers' Welfare Fund 23.8 96 96
Provisions 23.9 1,749,802 1,511,797
Withholding taxes 25,680 19,128
Payable to Provident Fund Trusts 1,345 1,103
Other liabilities 23.10 115,241 110,760
5,257,300 6,358,763

These include Rs.38.425 million (2024: Rs.201.915 million) payable to a related party Messrs. Novatex Limited.
These include Rs.Nil (June 2024: Rs.0.209 million) payable to a related party Messrs. G&T Tyres (Private) Limited.

These include balances payable in foreign currency of USS 3.454 million and Euro:0.042 million (2024: USS 6.735 million and
Euro:0.150 million).

These includes related parties balances are as follows:

These include Rs.6.689 million (2024: Rs.Nil) payable to a related party Messrs. Novatex Limited on account of obtaining of services
and cost sharing expenses.

These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.1.300 million) payable to a related party Messrs. Gani & Tayub (Private) Limited.
These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.0.034 million) payable to a related party Messrs. Nova Mobility (Private) Limited.
These include Rs.0.102 million (2024: Rs.Nil) payable to a related party Messrs. G-Pac Corporation.

These include Rs.Nil (June 2024: Rs.85.556 million) received from a related party Messrs. Novatex Limited.

Advances from customers at the beginning of the year got converted into revenue during the year, to the extent of deliveries made
to those customers.

This represents return-free security deposits from contractors held in separate bank account, refer note 17.1.

Workers' Welfare Fund

Balance as at start of the year 96 22,977

Provision . 96

Reversal of provision - prior year - (16,301)
35 - (16,205)

Adjustment through income tax refund/withholding 28 - (6,676)

Balance as at end of the year 96 96
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(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
23.9 Provisions for:
Enhanced gas rate 23.9.18& 23.9.2 447,171 447,171
Infrastructure Cess on imports 23.9.3 879,634 716,117
Sales tax 23.9.4 284,715 341,723
Others 23.9.5 6,786 6,786
Gas levy 23.9.6 131,496 -

1,749,802 1,511,797

23.9.1 The Qil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) had enhanced gas rate from Rs.488.23 per MMBTU for industrial and Rs.573.28 per
MMBTU for captive power to Rs.600 per MMBTU with effect from September 01, 2015. The Group alongwith several other
companies filed suit in the Honorable Sindh High Court challenging the increase in rate. The Honorable Sindh High Court had initially
granted interim relief, whereby recovery of enhanced rate was restrained. In May 2016, the Single Bench of Honorable Sindh High
Court decided the case in favor of the Petitioners. However, in June 2016, Defendants filed appeal before the Divisional Bench of
Honorable Sindh High Court which was also decided in favor of the Petitioners. Messrs. Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGCL)
then have filed appeal and pending before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan which is still under adjudication, Meanwhile,
OGRA had issued another notification dated December 30, 2016 overriding the previous notification and S5GCL billed @ Rs.600 per
MMBTU. However, on January 19, 2017, the Group alongwith others filed a suit in the Honorable Sindh High Court against OGRA,
SSGCL and others, The Honorable Sindh High Court granted interim relief and instructed SSGCL to revise bills at previous rate against
securing the differential amount with the Nazir of the Court. Accordingly, the Group has provided bankers’ verified cheque to Nazir of
High Court amounting to Rs.316.797 million (2024: Rs.316.797 million). As an abundant precaution, the Group has made total
provision of Rs.159.264 million (2024: Rs.159.264 million). On October 04, 2018, OGRA has issued another notification to increase gas
tariff with effect from September 27, 2018 for different categories which the Group is paying in full as per the notification. In
September 2024, the Single Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court decided the case in favor of the Petitioners. M/s. SSGCL filed an
appeal HCA 391/2024 in October 2024 before the Division Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court against the decision which has been
decided in favour of the petitioners during February 2025. SSGCL has filed an appeal in the Honorable Supreme Court against the
judgment of the Divisional Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court in favor of the petitioners; however, no notices have been issued as
of yet.

23.9.2 In August 2013, OGRA had enhanced gas rate from Rs.488.23 per MMBTU to Rs.573.28 per MMBTU for captive power and
accordingly, SSGCL started charging rate prescribed for captive power to the Group with effect from September 2013. On December
21, 2015, the Group alongwith several other companies filed suit in the Honorable Sindh High Court against OGRA, S5GCL and others
challenging the charging of captive power tariff instead of industrial tariff. The Honorable Sindh High Court has granted interim relief,
whereby recovery of captive power rate has been restrained. Meanwhile, OGRA had issued another notification dated December 30,
2016 overriding the previous notification and 55GCL billed @ Rs.600 per MMBTU. However, on January 19, 2017, the Group
alongwith others filed a suit in the Honorable Sindh High Court against OGRA, 55GCL and others. The Honorable Sindh High Court
granted interim relief and instructed SS5GCL to revise bills at previous rate against securing the differential amount with the Nazir of
the Court. Accordingly, the Group has provided bankers' verified cheque to Nazir of High Court (refer note 23.9.1). As an abundant
precaution, the Group has made provision of Rs.287.907 million (2024: Rs.287.907 million) pertaining to the period of November
2015 to September 2018 and did not create receivable of Rs.240.238 million in respect of period from August 2013 to October 2015.
On October 04, 2018, OGRA has issued another notification to increase gas tariff with effect from September 27, 2018 for different
categories and the Group is paying full amount of the gas bills as per this notification. In February, 2020, the Single Bench of
Honorable Sindh High Court has decided the case in favor of Petitioners. SSGCL has filed appeal HCA, 183/2020 in October 2020
before the Division Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court against the decision and is pending for adjudication.

23.9.3 Movement is as under:

Balance as at start of the year 716,117 514,965
Provision made during the year 163,517 201,152
Balance as at end of the year 879,634 716,117
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23.9.5

The Parent Company had filed a petition in the Honorable Sindh High Court at Karachi on May 25, 2011 against Province of Sindh and
Excise and Taxation Department, challenging the levy of Infrastructure Cess on imports. Through an interim order dated May 31,
2011, the Honorable Sindh High Court ordered to pay 50% in cash of this liability effective from December 28, 2006 and to submit
bank guarantee for the rest of 50% until the final order is passed. In April 2017, the Government of Sindh has promulgated the Sindh
Development and Maintenance of Infrastructure Cess Act, 2017. On October 23, 2017, the Parent Company has also challenged the
new Act in the Honorable Sindh High Court against Province of Sindh and Excise and Taxation Department and similar stay has been
granted by the Honorable Sindh High Court. On June 04, 2021, the Honorable Sindh High Court has passed the judgment in favor of
the Government., The Parent Company has filed an appeal bearing CP. No. 4515/2021 in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan
against the judgment. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, vide interim order dated September 01, 2021, has suspended the
operation of the impugned judgement of the Honorable Sindh High Court and has further directed the Custom Authorities to release
consignments on the basis of bank guarantee equivalent to the amount of levy claimed by the Excise and Taxation Department. Till
reporting date, the Parent Company has provided bank guarantee amounting to Rs.878.365 million (2024: Rs.778.365 million) in favor
of Excise and Taxation Department, in respect of consignments cleared after December 27, 2006 (refer note 29.2). Full provision after
December 27, 2006 has been made in these consolidated financial statements as an abundant precaution.

The Subsidiary Company Messrs. Gatro Power (Private) Limited has filed a petition in the Honorable Sindh High Court on April 13,
2018 against Province of Sindh and others at Karachi challenging the levy of Infrastructure Cess on imports by the Government of
Sindh through Sindh Development and Maintenance of Infrastructure Cess Act, 2017. Stay has been granted by the Honorable Sindh
High Court ordered to pay 50% in cash of this liability and to submit bank guarantee for the rest of 50% until the final order is passed.
On June 04, 2021, the Honorable Sindh High Court has passed the judgment in favor of the Government. The Subsidiary Company has
filed an appeal bearing CP. No. 1699-K/2021 in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan against the judgment. The case of the
Subsidiary Company remains pending as it is omitted by the High Court staff to include in the bunch of cases which have been
decided. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, vide interim order dated September 01, 2021, has suspended the operation of
the impugned judgement of the Honorable Sindh High Court and has further directed the Custom Authorities to release
consignments on the basis of bank guarantee equivalent to the amount of levy claimed by the Excise and Taxation Department. Till
reporting date, the Subsidiary Company has provided bank guarantee amounting to Rs.32.500 million (2024: Rs.32.500 million) in
favor of Excise and Taxation Department, in respect of consignments cleared after April 13, 2018 (refer note 29.2). Full provision after
April 13, 2018 has been made in these consolidated financial statements as an abundant precaution.

The Subsidiary Company Messrs. G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited has filed a petition in the Honorable Sindh High Court at Karachi on
June 24, 2019 against Province of Sindh and others challenging the levy of Infrastructure Cess on imports by the Government of Sindh
through Sindh Development and Maintenance of Infrastructure Cess Act, 2017. Stay has been granted by the Honorable Sindh High
Court ordered to pay 50% in cash of this liability and to submit bank guarantee for the rest of 50% until the final order is passed. On
June 04, 2021, the Honorable Sindh High Court has passed the judgment in favor of the Government. The Subsidiary Company has
filed an appeal bearing CP. No. 4543/2021 in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan against the judgment. The Honorable Supreme
Court of Pakistan, vide interim order dated September 01, 2021, has suspended the operation of the impugned judgement of the
Honaorable Sindh High Court and has further directed the Custom Authorities to release consignments on the basis of bank guarantee
equivalent to the amount of levy claimed by the Excise and Taxation Department. Till reporting date, the Subsidiary Company has
provided bank guarantee amounting to Rs.3.000 million (2024: Rs.2.500 million) in favor of Excise and Taxation Department, in
respect of consignments cleared (refer note 29.2). Full provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements as an
abundant precaution,

The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) vide SRO 491(1)/2016 dated June 30, 2016 made certain amendments in SRO 1125(1)/2011 dated
December 31, 2011 including disallowance of input tax adjustment on packing material of textile products. Consequently, input tax
adjustment on packing material of textile product was not being allowed for adjustment with effect from July 01, 2016 till June 30,
2018, On January 16, 2017, the Parent Company had challenged the disallowance of input tax adjustment on packing material in the
Honorable Sindh High Court against Federation of Pakistan and others. The Honorable Sindh High Court has decided the matter in
favor of Tax Department, against which the Parent Company has filed an appeal before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.
The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan has maintained the High Court decision. Total amount of demand raised by the tax
department is Rs.16.757 million, against which appeal has been filed before CIR(A) which has also been decided against the Parent
Company, however, due to certain apparent mistakes in order, rectification application has been filed, which is pending.

This represents provision of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess amounting to Rs.4.131 million (2024: Rs.4.131 million) and rate
difference of gas tariff Rs.2.655 million (2024: Rs.2.655 million) on account of common expenses payable by the Parent Company to a
related party Messrs. Novatex Limited.
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The Subsidiary Companies Messrs. Gatro Power (Pvt) Limited & Messrs. G-Pac Energy Limited has filed a Writ Petition No. 1185 of
2025 before the Honorable Islamabad High Court on 25.03.2025, challenging the levy imposed on Captive Power consumers through
Notification dated 07.03.2025, issued under Section 3(1) of the Off the Grid (Captive Power Plants) Levy Ordinance, 2025, The
Honorable Islamabad High Court vide its Order dated 26.03.2025 was pleased to suspended the operation of the impugned
Notification. Subsequently, vide Order dated 08.04.2025, the stay was vacated with directions that all amounts collected under the
impugned Ordinance be collected in the Federal Consolidated Fund for its 120-day validity and utilized only for the stated purpose,
with a further condition that, if the Ordinance lapsed without Parliamentary approval, the amounts collected would be refunded in
full to the petitioners and not diverted elsewhere. Thereafter, vide Order dated 31.07.2025, the Writ Petition was dismissed on
technical grounds, the Court holding that since the Ordinance stood repealed upon enactment of the Off the Grid (Captive Power
Plants) Levy Act, 2025, and no challenge had been made to the vires of the subsequently enacted Act, no relief could be granted to
the petitioners. The Subsidiary Companies then filed a Constitutional Petition. No.[k) 98/2025 before the Honorable Balochistan High
Court challenging the impugned Notification dated 23.07.2025 under Section 3(1) of the Off the Grid (Captive Power Plants) Levy Act,
2025, Subsequently, the Honorable Balochistan High Court vide Order dated 04-08-2025 suspended the collection of levy by SSGC
with the direction to the Subsidiary Companies that post-dated cheques equal to the levy amount as imposed through monthly SSGC
gas bills be submitted as surety. The case is currently pending before the Honorable Balochistan High Court and the discussions held
with the legal counsel, the management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Subsidiary Companies.

These include Rs.69.042 million (2024: Rs.65.365 million) received from employees under Group car policy.

UNPAID DIVIDEND

This represents interim dividend for the year ended June 30, 2023, which remained unpaid to non-resident shareholders of the
Parent Company due to pending approval from the State Bank of Pakistan.

(Rupees in Thousand)
Note 2025 2024
ACCRUED MARK UP/PROFIT
Profit on long term financing 320,767 526,623
Mark up/profit on short term borrowings 159,336 16,389

25.1 480,103 543,012

This includes accrued profit of Rs.479.800 million (2024: Rs.542.943 million) under Shariah compliant arrangements.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - Secured
From banking companies under mark up/profit arrangements

Running finance - Under Conventional 763,716 77,733
- Under Shariah compliant 5,838,058 3,337,005

6,601,774 3,414,738

Short term finance - Under Shariah compliant 157,434 14,825
Export re-finance - Under Shariah compliant 150,000 150,000
6,909,208 3,579,563

#=

The Parent Company has aggregate facilities of short term borrowings amounting to Rs.13,594 million (2024: Rs.13,080 million) from
various commercial banks (as listed in Note 26.3) out of which Rs.6,685 million (2024: Rs.9,500 million) remained unutilized at the
year end. The mark up/profit rates during the year for running finance and Musharakah ranges between 9.19% to 22.52%, for short
term finance 11.94% to 19.59% and for export refinance 8.40% to 18.40% per annum. These facilities are renewable annually at
respective maturities.

These arrangements are secured against pari passu hypothecation charge on the stock and book debts of the Parent Company.

The finances have been obtained or are available from Askari Bank Limited, Bank Al-Falah Limited, Bank Al-Habib Limited, Dubai
Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited, Faysal Bank Limited, Habib Bank Limited, Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited, MCB Islamic Bank Limited,
Meezan Bank Limited, Soneri Bank Limited, The Bank of Punjab and United Bank Limited.

CURRENT PORTION OF DEFERRED LIABILITIES AND INCOME

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 22.3 814,887 814,658
Deferred Income - Government scheme 22.4 161,168 167,256
976,055 981,914
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(Rupees in Thousand)

Note 2025 2024
28 PROVISION FOR LEVIES AND INCOME TAX LESS PAYMENTS
Balance as at start of the year 200,330 251,307
Provision - Current 338,103 425,807
- Prior 2,396 (94,553)
340,499 331,254
540,829 582,561
Payments (382,457) (388,907)
Adjustment of income tax refund against tax liability 59,194 -
Adjustment of Workers' Welfare Fund 23.8 - 6,676
(323,263) (382,231)
Balance as at end of the year 217,566 200,330
29 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
29.1 Contingencies

29.1.1 The Subsidiary Company Messrs. Gatro Power (Private) Limited has not made any provision in respect of Workers' Profit Participation
Fund on the ground that there are no workers as defined in The Companies Profits (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968 and accordingly
the said Act does not apply to the Subsidiary Company. The Subsidiary Company is confident that no liability will arise on this
account.

29.1.2 FBR initiated action against few customers of the Parent Company for violating/non compliance of the provisions of SRO 1125 dated
December 31, 2011 and alleging the Parent Company to provide them assistance and illegal facilitation. The dispute relates to the
period of time when supplies were zero rated and as a result of which the Parent Company had to pay Rs.27.762 million and had also
to submit post-dated cheques of Rs.83.287 million under protest in favor of Chief Commissioner Inland Revenue.

However, the Parent Company had challenged the action before the Honorable Sindh High Court on December 23, 2013 through suit
no. D-4630/2013 against Federation of Pakistan and others. Realizing the facts of the case, circumstances and legal position, the
Honorable Sindh High Court has granted interim relief whereby encashment of above mentioned post dated chegues has been
restrained.

By way of abundant precaution, the amount of Rs.27.762 million has been charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss in
previous period in the year 2014. On September 04, 2021, the Special Judge Custom and Taxation Court has decided the case in favor
of the Parent Company. The FBR has filed appeal at Honorable Sindh High Court Karachi against the decision of Special judge which is
pending for adjudication,

29.1.3 In May 2015, the Parliament passed the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act 2015, which seeks to impose GIDC levy since
2011. On July 16, 2015, the Group alongwith several other companies filed suit in the Honorable Sindh High Court against OGRA and
others challenging the validity and promulgation of GIDC Act 2015. The Single Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court had decided the
case in favor of Petitioners. However, in May 2020, Defendants have filed appeal before the Division Bench of Honorable Sindh High
Court. On August 13, 2020, the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan finally in the appeals filed by industries of Khyber
Pakhtunkhwa, passed a judgment in favor of Government declaring the GIDC Act 2015 intra vires and directed all the
Petitioners/Appellants (including industries of all over Pakistan) for payment of Cess liability accrued till July 31, 2020 in 24 equal
monthly installments. The Group has filed Review Petition against the Judgment, wherein the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan
has provided some relief by increasing the time period for recovery of GIDC from 24 installments to 48 installments and also hold that
GIDC relating to period prior to the GIDC Act, 2015 is not recoverable in case the same was not passed on by the Group. As per the
judgement of Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Group has filed a Civil Suit number 1369/2020 dt:01-10-2020 before the
Honorable Sindh High Court against payment of GIDC instalments on the ground that the Group has not passed on the burden of
Cess. The Honorable Sindh High Court has granted stay order to Plaintiffs whereby the Messrs. Sui Southern Gas Company Limited
has been restrained to take any coercive action against non payment of GIDC installments.

Total amount of enhanced GIDC upto July 31, 2020 worked out at Rs.1,169.955 million, however the Group has maintained a
provision for Rs.814.887 million pertaining to the period from June 2015 to July 2020 as an abundant precaution.

29.1.4 The Parent Company along with several other companies has filed a Constitution Petition no. CP 2085/2016 dated April 13, 2016 in
the Sindh High Court against Employment Old Age Benefits Institution (EOBI) and others against a notice issued by the EOBI to the
Parent Company to pay contribution at the revised rate of wages with retrospective effect. The Honorable Sindh High Court has
restrained EOBI from taking any coercive action against the Parent Company. On December 03, 2021, the Honorable Sindh High Court
has dismissed the Petition. However, the Parent Company has filed an appeal at Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan against the
judgment. No provision of the amount involved i.e. Rs.50.468 million (J2024: Rs.42.340 million) has been made in these consolidated
financial statements,
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29.1.5 The Parent Company filed four appeals on 2nd, 9th, 17th May and 20th June 2018 before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
(Appeals) (CIR(A)) — 2, Large Taxpayers Unit, Karachi for the tax periods July 2012 to December 31, 2016 against the assessment
orders by the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), Large Taxpayers Unit, passed under section 11 (2} of the Sales Tax Act,
1990 through which cumulative demand for the aforesaid periods amounting to Rs.55.423 million excluding default surcharge was
created. In the assessment orders, major areas on which impugned demand has been raised relates to disallowance of input tax on
purchases and recovery of sales tax on sales to subsequently suspended / blacklisted persons. The Parent Company has already
deposited Rs.28 million under protest into the Government Treasury for stay against the full recovery (refer note 15). The CIR(A) has
issued judgment in respect of impugned order for tax periods July 2012 to June 2013 wherein the entire order of the Tax Officer has
been held as illegal and unconstitutional. However, the Tax Department has been filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order passed by CIR(A). The CIR(A) has decided the matter for tax periods July 2013 to June 2014,
July 2014 to June 2015 and July 2015 to December 2016 wherein the case has been partially decided in favor for the Parent
Company. However, the Parent Company has filed appeals before the ATIR dated:30-03-2020, 07-04-2020 & 18-08-2020 against
orders passed by CIR{A). No provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements as the Parent Company is confident
that the matter will be decided in favor by the appellate authorities.

29.1.6 Tax Department issued order under section 122(54) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2012 wherein income tax
demand of Rs.37.773 million was raised on various issues. Out of the total amount, the Parent Company paid Rs.3.777 million under
protest. Appeal was filed before the CIR{A) and the CIR{A) had decided the case partially in favor of the Parent Company whereas
major issues were decided in favor of the Tax Department. Based on the judgment of the CIR(A), the revised demand comes out to
Rs.28.2 million. The Parent Company filed an appeal before the ATIR appeal no. ITA No.1452/KB/2018 dated 12-Oct-2018 against the
order of the CIR(A) and the learned ATIR, vide its judement dated January 01, 2019 has decided the case in favor of the Parent
Company. As of now, the Tax Department has not yet filed appeal against the said judgment of ATIR.

29.1.7 Tax Department issued order under section 122{1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2015 wherein income tax
demand of Rs.25.888 million was raised on various issues. Out of the total amount, the Parent Company paid Rs.2.589 million under
protest, Appeal was filed before the CIR{A) and the CIR(A) has decided partially in favor of the Parent Company. Appeal effect in line
with CIR(A) order has been issued by the Tax Department wherein an amount of Rs.3.791 million determined as refundable to the
Parent Company out of which Rs.1.594 million has been adjusted with the income tax demand pertaining to tax year 2019. Appeal
dated 30-May-2019 has been filed by the Parent Company as well as the Tax Department before ATIR, however, no hearing has been
conducted till date. Based on the merits of the case and the discussions held with the legal counsel, the management is confident
that the case will be decided in favor of the Parent Company, hence Rs.2,197 million recorded as refundable,

29.1.8 The Tax Officer alleged the Parent Company for charging sales tax at reduced rate instead of standard rate of 17% during the tax
periods from July 2014 to June 2015 and raised the demand of Rs.1.741 million along with penalty of Rs.0.087 million. The Parent
Company has filed an appeal before CIR(A) against order of the Tax Department on the ground that reduced rate was applicable to
customers as those customers were active and operative at the time of execution of sales transaction. Moreover, the Tax
Department has adjusted the impugned demand with sales tax refunds available with the Parent Company. Appeal was decided in
favor of the Parent Company. Tax Department has issued an appeal effect order in line with aforementioned CIR{A) order resulting in
refund of Rs.1.828 million for which refund application has been filed. Tax Department has filed an appeal before ATIR dated 28-Oct-
2019 against CIR(A) order. Based on the merits of the case and the discussions held with the legal counsel, the management is
confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Parent Company. No provision has been made in these consolidated financial
statements.

29.1.9 The case of the Parent Company was selected for income tax audit for tax year 2013. The return was amended under section
122(1)/(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, however, no income tax demand was raised owing to taxable losses both before and
after amendment of the income tax return. Subsequently, the Tax Department again initiated proceedings for further amendment of
the already amended income tax return and raised demand of Rs.1.178 million. Demand has been raised mainly because of figurative
errors committed by the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ADCIR) against which the Parent Company has moved
rectification application and in response thereto rectified order was issued. Moreover, the Parent Company has also filed an appeal
before CIR(A) to secure its interest in case rectification application is rejected by the concerned Tax Officer. CIR(A) has decided the
matter partially in favor of the Parent Company. Considering that the matter decided against the Parent Company has no material
impact, therefore, the Parent Company had not filed an appeal before the ATIR. The Tax Department filed an appeal no. ITA
No.376/KB/2017 dated 10-04-2017 before the ATIR against order issued by CIR(A), Quetta, which has been decided by ATIR in favour
of Parent Company.

29.1.10 Income tax return of tax year 2014 was amended by the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue, Quetta disallowed expenses of
Rs.60.7 million vide order dated June 29, 2016 against which the Parent Company filed an appeal before the CIR(A), who vide order
dated January 20, 2017 decided the case partially in favor of the Parent Company and partially in favor of Tax Department. The Tax
Department has filed an appeal no. ITA No.377/KB/2017 dated 10-04-2017 before the ATIR which has been decided by ATIR in favour
of Parent Company.
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29.1.11 The Parent Company had filed a petition no. CP No.D-5468 dated August 26, 2019 in Honorable Sindh High Court against 3%
Minimum Value Addition Tax on import of machinery, which has been levied through Finance Act, 2019. Stay has been granted by
the Honorable Sindh High Court against submission of bank guarantee in favor of Nazir of the Court. Till reporting date, the Company
has provided 100% bank guarantee amounting to Rs.15.351 million (2024: Rs.15.351 million), refer note 29.2. Moreover, through
Finance Act, 2020 this levy has been withdrawn from manufacturer w.e.f. July 01, 2020,

29.1.12 The Parent Company had filed a petition no. CP D-573 dated January 26, 2019 before the Honorable Sindh High Court wherein the
Parent Company had challenged the levy and collection of further sales tax on zero rated supplies imposed vide SRO 584(1)/2017 read
with section 3(1A) and section 4 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990. The case has been decided by the Honorable Sindh High Court in favor of
the Parent Company. The Tax Department has filed an appeal dated Mar 22, 2021 before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan
against the judgment of the Honorable Sindh High Court. Based on the merits of the case, the management is confident that the case
will be decided in favor of the Parent Company, however, on a prudent basis Rs.40.395 million has been provided in these
consolidated financial statements.

29.1.13 The Parent Company had filed petition no. D-557 and D-2656 before the Honorable Sindh High Court wherein the Parent Company
had challenged the notice requiring to pay Super Tax for tax year 2018 amounting to Rs.28.187 million and 2019 Rs.31.444 million
respectively. The Honorable Sindh High Court has decided the matter against the Parent Company. The Parent Company has filed
petition no. 2307 of 2020 and 2308 of 2020 before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan against the judgement of the Honorable
Sindh High Court, hearing of which is pending at the moment. The Parent Company also filed appeal dated: October 27, 2020 before
the CIR{A) against the order dated: October 01, 2020 passed by DCIR under section 4B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which has
been concluded in favor of the Tax Department. The Parent Company has filed appeals before the ATIR dated September 07, 2021
against the orders passed by the CIR[A). The Parent Company has also paid 50% of demand for auto stay from recovery (refer note
15). The management is confident that the case will ultimately be decided in favor of the Parent Company. However, as an abundant
precaution, the Parent Company has not reversed the liability in these consolidated financial statements.

29.1.14 Income tax return for tax year 2019 has been amended by the DCIR vide order dated June 29, 2020 creating tax demand of Rs.1.594
million while abolishing refund of Rs.35.819 million as claimed in ITR 2019 against which the Parent Company filed an appeal before
the CIR(A), which has been partially decided in favour of the Parent Company resulting in net tax refundable of Rs.4 million, appeal
effect order is not yet issued by the Tax Department. The Parent Company as well as Tax Department have filed appeals before the
ATIR dated January 13, 2022, which is pending till date. Based on the merits of the case, the management is confident that the case
will be decided in favor of the Parent Company.

29.1.15 Through Finance Act, 2019, section 65B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was amended to disallow credit on investment in plant &
machinery from tax year 2020 and onwards. Consequently, the tax credit in respect of LCs opened on or before 30th June 2019 was
also disallowed amounting to Rs.105.230 million. The Parent Company has challenged the provision of Finance Act, 2019 before the
Honorable Sindh High Court vide CP no. D-8506 of 2019, 6582 of 2020 and 7540 of 2022 and the Court has decided the matter in
favour of the Parent Company to claim 10% tax credit on investment in plant & machinery on the basis of pre-amended position of
section 658 on machinery arrived in tax year 2020 and 2021. The Tax department has challenged the judgement of Honorable Sindh
High Court in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan through petition no. CPLA 649-K/2023 and CPLA 665-K/2023 for TY 2020 & TY
2021 respectively, which is decided in favour of the Parent Company to the extent of that the machinery purchased and installed
both by June 30, 2019, and other than that decided in favour of the Tax Department. The Parent Company has filed review petition
before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan in case of tax years 2020 and 2021.

The ADCIR has passed Assessments Orders for the tax years TY 2020 and TY 2021, raised demand amounting Rs.105.230 million and
Rs.94.804 million respectively. The Parent Company has paid/adjusted tax demands against available income tax refunds under
protest,

29.1.16 The Tax Officer alleged the Parent Company for fake transaction with suspended customer during the tax periods from December
2018 to June 2019 and raised the demand of Rs.1.711 million along with 100% penalty, aggregated demand of Rs.3.421 million. The
Parent Company has paid 10% of demand for auto stay from recovery Rs.0.342 million (refer note 15). CIR(A) has decided the case in
favour of Parent Company. The Tax Department has filed an appeal before ATIR against the said judgment. No provision has been
made in these consoclidated financial statements.

29.1.17 Tax Department issued notices thereby disallowing adjustment of Workers Welfare Fund (WWF) against income tax refund of tax
year 2018, 2019 and 2020 amounting Rs.16.216 million, Rs.20.373 and Rs.3.022 million respectively. The Parent Company filed
petitions against the said notices before the Honorable Sindh High Court vide CP no. D-5247 of 2021, which has been decided in
favour of the Parent Company. However, Tax Department has filed an appeal dated January 24, 2022 before the Honorable Supreme
Court of Pakistan. Based on the merits of the case, the management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Parent
Company. However, full liability of WWEF has been provided in respective years consolidated financial statements.
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Tax Department has raised demand of Rs.21.294 million on the basis of sales tax audit for the tax periods from July 2017 to June
2018. The Parent Company has filed an appeal before the CIR(A). The Parent Company has paid 10% of demand for auto stay from
recovery Rs.2.130 million (refer note 15). The CIR(A) has decided the case partially in favor of the Parent Company and partially in
favor of Tax Department. The order contains significant errors for which Parent Company has filed rectification application before
CIRA.

The Tax Department disallowed expenses of Rs.45.6 million under section 122(54) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year
2016. However, no income tax demand was raised owing to taxable losses both before and after amendment of assessment
proceedings. The Parent Company has filed an appeal before CIR(A), who vide order dated March 16, 2023 decided the case partially
in favor of the Parent Company and partially in favor of Tax Department. The Parent Company as well as Tax Department have filed
appeals dated 13-05-2023 before the ATIR, which is pending till date. Based on the merits of the case, the management is confident
that the case will be decided in favor of the Parent Company.

The Parent Company has filed a petition no. CP No.D-8011/2022 dated December 23, 2022 before the Honorable Sindh High Court
against the levy of Super Tax under section 4C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2022, The Honorable Sindh High
Court held that the Super Tax is not applicable for the tax year 2022. However, the Tax Department has filed petition before the
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan and has issued interim order whereby the Honorable Supreme Court has directed to pay Super
Tax to the extent of 4% in other C.P. no. 3825 and 3909 of 2022. Therefore, the Parent Company has paid the Super Tax of Rs. 13.353
million on the direction of the Honorable Supreme Court and in the compliance of the tax department notice as well (refer note 15).
The management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Parent Company. However, as an abundant precaution,
the Parent Company has not reversed the liability in these consolidated financial statements.

The Parent Company has filed the petition no. CP D-7001/2022 dated November 12, 2022 in Honorable Sindh High Court against
conducting Sales Tax Audit for the tax year 2019. The Honorable Sindh High Court has granted interim relief till the decision of the
case. The management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Parent Company.

The Parent Company has filed the petition no. CP D-7732/2022 dated December 15, 2022 before Honorable Sindh High Court against
conducting post refund Sales Tax Audit pertaining to the tax year 2016, on the ground of time barred proceeding. The Honorable
Sindh High Court has granted interim relief till the decision of the case. Amount is not determined as proceeding not yet initiated.
The management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Parent Company.

The Tax Department disallowed expenses of Rs.52.021 million under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year
2020. However, no income tax demand was raised owing to tax refundable position both before and after amendment of assessment
proceedings. The Parent Company has filed an appeal before CIR(A), which has been decided the case partly in favor of the Parent
Company vide order dated November 15, 2023. The Parent Company has filed appeal before ATIR, which is pending for hearing.

The Tax Department disallowed expenses of Rs.74 million under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year
2022. However, no income tax demand was raised owing to tax refundable position both before and after amendment of assessment
proceedings. The Parent Company's appeal is reserved for order before the CIRA. Based on the merits of the case, the management is
confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Parent Company.

Tax Department has raised demand of Rs.4.684 million by disallowing input sales tax on building material for the tax periods from
July 2019 to June 2020. CIR(A) has decided the case in favour of Tax Department. The Parent Company has filed an appeal dated:
March 30, 2024 before ATIR against the said order.

Income tax return for the Tax Year 2023 was amended by the ADCIR vide order dated October 11, 2024 resulting in reduction of tax
refund of Rs.139.23 million against which the Parent Company filed an appeal dated: November 11, 2024 befare the ATIR.

The DCIR has raised demand of Rs.39.77 million by disallowing input sales tax on building material, vide order dated October 8, 2024,
for the tax period July 2022. The Parent Company has filed an appeal##STA 779/KB 2024 dated:01-11-2024 before ATIR against the
said order. However, the Parent Company has deposited the demanded amount into Government Treasury.

The Commissioner of Balochistan Revenue Authority (BRA) has raised demand of Rs.342.5 million on the basis of short withholding of
Balochistan sales tax payment, vide order dated June 30, 2025, for the tax period July 2018 to June 2019. The Parent Company has
filed an appeal before Balochistan Appellate Tribunal against the said order. Based on the merits of the case and the discussions held
with the legal counsel, the management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Parent Company. No provision has
been made in these consolidated financial statements.,
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29.1.29

29.1.30

29.1.31

29.1.32

29.1.33

29.2

29.3

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

The Tax Officer disallowed input sales tax amounting to Rs.0.042 and Rs.0.109 million, claimed by the Subsidiary Company Messrs.
Gatro Power (Private) Limited on building materials used for installation of plant and machinery for tax period February 2017. Appeal
dated: July 11, 2018 & October 17, 2019 were filed against the said order before the CIR(A). The learned CIR(A) has decided the
matter in favor of the Subsidiary Company in both cases. The Tax Department has filed an appeal before the ATIR against
aforementioned CIR(A) orders. No provision has been made as the management is hopeful for a favorable outcome.

Tax Department initiated monitoring of withhelding proceedings for tax year 2011 wherein demand of Rs.47.408 million including
default surcharge and penalty was raised on account of intercorporate dividend paid to Parent Company. The Subsidiary Company
Messrs. Gatro Power (Private) Limited had filed an appeal dated: January 22, 2019 before CIR(A) against order of the Tax Department
which was decided in favor of the Subsidiary Company on ground of the order being time barred whereas on other grounds the
appeal was dismissed. Accordingly, both the Subsidiary Company as well as the Tax Department have filed an appeal dated:April 15,
2019 before the ATIR, which is pending. Based on the merits of the case and the discussions held with the legal counsel, the
management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Subsidiary Company. No provision has been made in these
consolidated financial statements.

Tax Department raised demand of Rs.53.194 million, Rs.57.522 million, 64.803 million, Rs.14.101 million and Rs.103.346 million on
the basis of order passed for monitoring of tax withholding for tax years 2011 to 2015 respectively. Appeal was filed before the
CIR(A), which was decided in favor of the Subsidiary Company Messrs. Gatro Power (Private) Limited. However, Tax Department has
filed appeals before ATIR. Appeal against TY 2011 to 2014 have been decided in favour of the Subsidiary Company vide order no. ITA
No. 910 to 914/KB//2016 dated October 12, 2024, however hearing of TY 2015 is pending. Based on the merits of the case and the
discussions held with the legal counsel, the management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Subsidiary
Company. No provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

Tax Department has raised demand of Rs.1.8 million on the basis of sales tax audit for the tax periods from July 2017 to June 2018.
The Subsidiary Company Messrs, Gatro Power (Private) Limited has filed an appeal before the CIR(A). CIR(A) has decided the case in
favour of Subsidiary Company. The Tax Department has filed appeal dated: March 18, 2022 before ATIR against CIR(A) order, which
is pending for hearing. No provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements,

The Subsidiary Company Messrs. Gatro Power (Private) Limited has filed the petition no. CP D-7002/2022 in Honorable Sindh High
Court against conducting Sales Tax Audit for the tax year 2019 vide notice dated: November 15, 2021. The Honorable Sindh High
Court has granted interim relief till the decision of the case. Amount is not determined as proceeding not yet initiated. The
management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Subsidiary Company.

(Rupees in Thousand)
Note 2025 2024
Guarantees
Bank Guarantees in favour of:
The Director Excise & Taxation, Karachi 23.9.3 913,865 813,365

The Electric Inspector, President Licencing Board, Quetta 10 10

Pakistan State Qil Company Limited 41,500 70,000
K-Electric Limited 18,496 18,496
Nazir of the High Court of Sindh, Karachi 29.1.11 15,351 15,351

Revolving Letter of Credit in favour of;
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited for Gas 1,572,480 1,106,709
2,561,702 2,023,931

Commitments
The Group's commitments, against which the banks have opened Letters of Credit, in favor of different suppliers, are as follows:

Foreign currency:

Property, plant and equipment 399,047 576,401
Raw and packing material 1,051,555 838,897
Spare parts and others 55,752 161,027
1,506,354 1,576,325
Local currency:

Property, plant and equipment 2,366 53,509
Raw material - 1,426,605
Spare parts and others - 11,156
2,366 1,491,270

IES’DEETZH SEDETEEES
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29.3.1 The Parent Company has made an agreement for purchase of land amounting to Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.133.150 million), out of which Rs.Nil
(2024: Rs.17.225 million) paid as advance (refer note 5).

Note 2025 2024
30 SALES

Gross local sales 26,438,717 36,719,513
Processing charges 4,123,067 2,196,818

30,561,784 38,916,331
Less: Sales tax 4,670,300 5,718,233

25,891,484 33,198,008
Export sales 436,556 815,483

26,328,040 34,013,581

31 COST OF SALES

Raw and packing material consumed 15,641,914 22,603,658
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 853,002 587,114
Qutsource processing charges - 174,745
Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits 31.1 2,134,272 2,204,898
Power, fuel and gas 5,306,916 5,137,671
Rent, rates and taxes 12,579 35,554
Insurance 259,675 244,278
Cartage and transportation 245,065 326,766
Repairs and maintenance 111,496 224,216
Communications and Computer 3,405 8,822
Water supply 18,023 16,161
Travelling 10,228 16,275
Sundry expense 45,958 56,031
Depreciation 5.2 1,692,497 1,006,231

26,335,030 32,642,420
Scrap sales 31.2 (202,169) (182,947)

26,132,861 32,459,473
Opening stock of goods-in-process 1,392,301 429,650
Opening stock of unfinished goods held for sale 32,744 280,595
Closing stock of goods-in-process (1,993,722) (1,392,301)
Closing stock of unfinished goods held for sale (1,206) (32,744)
Cost of goods manufactured 25,562,978 31,744,673
Opening stock of finished goods 3,818,775 4,097,889
Closing stock of finished goods (3,893,080) (3,818,775)

25,488,673 32,023,787

(Rupees in Thousand)

31.1 These include Rs.7.094 million (2024: Rs.6.578 million) and Rs.73.890 million (2024: Rs.58.601 million) respectively, representing

contribution to defined contribution plan by the Group and expenditure on defined benefit plan.

31.2 Net off sales tax amounting to Rs.40.730 million (2024: Rs.35.392 million).
32 DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING COSTS
Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits 32.1 68,330 47,840
Insurance 2,549 5,992
Rent, rates and taxes 17,515 14,431
Handling, freight and transportation 315,708 200,317
Advertisement and sales promotion 292 599
Communications 869 918
Travelling 2,225 1,380
Legal and professional fee - 182
sundry expense 27,512 22,607
Depreciation 5.2 2,749 2,151
Depreciation right of use assets 5.6.1 8,368 5,579
446,117 301,996

32.1 These include Rs.6.029 million (2024: Rs.3.399 million) representing expenditure on defined benefit plan.

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
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33

33.1

34.1

34.2

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits
Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance
Travelling

Communications

Legal and professional fees
Utilities

Printing and stationery
Transportation

Sundry expense

Depreciation

Depreciation right of use assets
Amortization of intangible asset

Note

33.1

5.2
5.6.1

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
361,665 380,332
4,220 2,510
9,197 11,772
2,971 40,318
5,498 10,718
8,901 9,059
13,535 19,789
15,608 2,123
879 330
21,421 25,377
23,056 35,100
9,098 12,021
16,271 18,141
10,025 10,025
502,345 577,615

These include Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.0.018 million) and Rs.65.033 million (2024: Rs.69.243 million) respectively, representing contribution to

defined contribution plan by the Group and expenditure on defined benefit plan.

OTHER EXPENSES

Impairment allowance for ECL - net

Impairment allowance for slow moving stores, spare parts

and loose tools - net
Financial assets written off
Exchange loss - net
Corporate social responsibility
Auditors’ remuneration

11.5

9.1

34.1
34.2

45,761 52,641
21,411 28,755
- 102,808
44,321 :
: 4,954
9,608 4,620
121,101 193,778

This includes donations of Rs.Nil (2024: Rs.3.954 million) to a related party Messrs. Gatron Foundation in which Chief Executive and four
directors of the Parent Company are governors and a donation of Rs.Nil (2024 Rs.1 million to Messrs. Memon Health and Education
Foundation). No Donations amounting to Rs 1,000,000 or 10% of total donation to single donee. None of the directors or their spouses

has any interest in any other donee fund, so far as other donations are concerned.

Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee - Annual financial statements

Parent Company - Gatron (Industries) Limited
Subsidiary Company - Gatro Power (Private) Limited
Subsidiary Company - Global Synthetics Limited
Subsidiary Company - G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited

Audit fee - Special purpose financial statements
Parent Company - Gatron (Industries) Limited
Subsidiary Company - Gatro Power (Private) Limited
Subsidiary Company - Global Synthetics Limited
Subsidiary Company - G-Pac Energy (Private) Limited

Audit fee - Special purpose consolidated financial statements
Limited review, audit of annual consolidated
financial statements and certification fee

Sindh Sales Tax on services
Dut of pocket expenses

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

3,200 2,750
800 800
22 22
175 25
2,750 i
800 .
23 -
25 -
200 -
435 470
675 326
503 227
9,608 4,620
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36

36.1

37

38

38.1

39

39.1

40.1

41

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on deposits

Income from non - financial assets & others

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Liabilities no more payable written back

Amortization of Government Scheme

Exchange gain - net

Remeasurement gain on discounting of provision for GIDC
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund
Miscellaneous income

FINANCE COST

Profit on long term financing

Interest on lease liability against right of use assets
Mark up/profit on short term borrowings
Un-winding of long term provision for GIDC

Bank charges and guarantee commission

Note

5.3

22.3
23.8

22.3

36.1

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025

2024

36,170 124,969
23,758 22,774
7,369 30,965
24,378 12,559
. 42,828
11,008 118,813
. 16,205
4,227 359
70,740 244,503
106,910 369,472
828,485 209,266
14,366 22,495
690,624 1,238,763
11,237 141,495
6,184 10,237
1,550,896 1,622,256

It includes finance costs under Shariah Complaint arrangement amounting to Rs.1,519.172 million (2024: Rs.1,217.784 million).

INVESTMENT INCOME - DIVIDEND

Dividend income from investment in mutual fund

LEVIES

Final tax - current
Final tax - prior year
Minimum tax

39.1

E 8,538

- 9,435
1,833 -

328,009 414,976

3292312 424,411

This represent final tax under section 113 and 154 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levies in terms of requirements of

IFRIC 21/1AS 37.

INCOME TAX

For the current year
For the prior year

Deferred

22.1.1

39.1

10,094 1,396
563 (94,553)

10,657 (93,157)

. (219,047)

10,657 (312,204)

The Group is subject to Minimum Tax/Levies under section 113 and 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for local and export sales.
Accordingly, the relationship between tax expense accounting profit has not been presented in these consolidated financial

statement.

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Loss for the year

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue during the year

Loss per share - Basic and diluted

There is no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share of the Group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Short term borrowings - Running finance

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

17
26

(2,014,681)

(440,048)

( Number of Shares )

108,728,960

86,718,699

(18.53)

5.07

(Rupees in Thousand)

132,179 340,660
(6,601,774) (3,414,738)
(6,469,595) (3,074,078)
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(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets as per statement of financial position

- Measured at amortized cost
Loans and advances 25,539 27,260
Deposits 15,501 85,677
Trade debts 4,662,811 3,516,225
Other receivables 120,488 175,513
Cash and bank balances 132,179 340,660

4,956,518 4,145,335

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

- Measured at amortized cost
Long term financing 9,116,830 9,703,216
Lease liability against right of use assets 94,988 122,769
Trade and other payables 2,817,161 3,922,017
Unclaimed dividend 853 8,219
Unpaid dividend 20,801 20,801
Accrued mark up/profit 480,103 543,012
Short term borrowings 6,909,208 3,579,563

19,439,944 17,899,597

The effective interest/markup rates for the monetary financial assets and liabilities are mentioned in respective notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

42.1 MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The Group’s certain accounting policies and disclosure requires use of fair value measurement and
the Group while assessing fair value maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
establishing a fair value hierarchy, i.e,, input used in fair value measurement is categorized into following three levels:
Level 1 Inputs are the quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be assessed at measurement.
Level 2 Inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly.

Level 3 Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
As at reporting date, the fair value of all the assets and liabilities approximates to their carrying values except property, plant and
equipment, The property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment if any, except free-hold
land, lease-hold land and capital work in progress which are stated at cost, The Group does not expect that unobservable inputs may have
significant effect on fair values.

42.2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focusses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.
Risk Management is carried out under policies and principles approved by the Board. All treasury related transactions are carried out
within the parameters of these policies and principles.

42.2.1 Market Risk

A Foreign exchange risk

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

Foreign exchange risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risks arises mainly from future economic transactions or receivables and payables that exist
due to transactions in foreign currencies,

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency value fluctuations, primarily with respect to the USD, Euro and CHF,
The Group's Exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:
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Trade creditors
Bills Payable

Trade Debts
Receivable from suppliers
Cash at bank in foreign currency accounts

Commitments - Outstanding letters of credit
Net exposure

The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Buying

UsD to PKR
Euro to PKR
CHF to PKR

Selling

USD to PKR
Euro to PKR
CHF to PKR

( Rupees in Thousand )

2025 2024
179,786 122,322
995,241 1,922,650

1,175,027 2,044,972

(60,777) (38,146)
(106,956) (119,265)
(36,865) (204,337)
(204,598) (361,748)
970,429 1,683,224

1,506,354 1,576,325

2,476,783 3,259,549

Rupees
Reporting date rate
2025 2024
278.85 282.40 283.60 278.30
303.38 305.42 332.29 297.98
- 318.29 - 309.16
279.35 282.90 284.10 278.80
303.97 305.97 332.87 298.54
= 318.84 - 309.71

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the USD, Euro and CHF with all other variables held constant, pre
tax profit for the period would have been higher/lower by the amount shown below, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain or net

foreign currency exposure at reporting date.

Effect on statement of profit or loss
USD to PKR
Euro to PKR
CHF to PKR

238,406 299,334 242,477 295,063
4,752 30,950 5,202 30,197

- T15 - b95
243,158 330,999 247,679 325,955

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on consolidated profit for the period and assets / liabilities of the

Group.

B Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

prices (other than those arising from interest or currency rate risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Group is not exposed to equity price risk since there are no investment in listed equity securities.

c Interest [/ Markup rate risk

Interest / Markup rate risk arises from the possibility of changes in Interest / Markup rates which may effect the value of financial
instruments. The Parent Company has short term borrowings at variable rates. At the reporting date, the interest profile of the Parent

Company interest-bearing iinancial instrument is:

Financial Assets
Variable rate instruments
Bank balance

Financial Liabilities
Variable rate instruments

Long term financing
Short term borrowings

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024 2025 2024

Effective rate (in %) Carrying amount

5.00-19.26  6.60-20.67 1,711 1,574
11.73-22.25 1B.54-2453 (4,540,597)  (4,576,414)
8.40-2252 16.40-23.43 (6,909,208) (3,579,563)
(11,448,094) (8,154,403)
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42.2.2

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest/markup rates at the reporting date would have decreased/(increased) profit for the year by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variable, In particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. This analysis Is
performed on the same basis for June 2024.

Statement of profit or loss
before tax

100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease

As at June 30, 2025

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate !114!431! 114,481

As at June 30, 2024
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate (81,544 81,544

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the period and assets / liabilities of the Parent
Company.,

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities. Therefore, a change in markup rate at the reporting date
would not effect consolidated statement of profit or loss of the Group.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation. The Parent Company manages credit risk interalia by setting credit limits in relation to individual customers and by obtaining
advance against sales and also obtains collaterals, where considered necessary. Also the Parent Company does not have significant
exposure in relation to individual customer. Consequently, the Group believes that it is not exposed to any major concentration of credit
risk.

Exposure to credit

The carrying amount of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure befare any credit enhancements. Out of total financial
assets of Rs.4,956.518 million (2024: Rs.4,145.235 million), financial assets of Rs.4,953.790 million (2024: Rs.4,141.474 million) are subject
to credit risk. The carrying amounts of financial assets exposed to credit risk at reporting date are as under:

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
Loans and advances 25,539 27,260
Deposits 15,501 85,677
Trade debts 4,662,811 3,516,225
Other receivables 120,488 175,513
4,783,299 3,691,738
Bank balances 129,451 336,799
4,953,790 4,141,474

Loans and advances

These represents loan and advances to employees are recovered on monthly basis. Retirement balances are also available for these
employees against which balance can be adjusted incase of default. The Group actively pursues for the recovery of these loans and the
Group does not expect that these employees will fail to meet their obligations, hence the management believes no impairment allowance
is required there against.

Deposits

Deposits includes utilities deposits and bank margin and others which are neither past due nor impaired with the counter parties, Group
believes that based on past relationship, credit rating and financial soundness of the counter parties chances of default are remote and
also there is no material impact of changes in credit risks. The management does not expect to incur credit loss there against.

The aging of trade debts and other receivables at the reporting date:

Not past due 1,558,335 1,000,834
Past due 1-30 days 1,409,991 947,476
Past due 31-90 days 059,941 1,013,221
Past due 91-180 days 293,325 513,934
Past due 180 days 778,288 387,093

4,599,880 3,862,558
Allowance for ECL - local (216,581) (170,820)

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

4,783,299 3,691,738
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42.2.3

42.3

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

The credit quality of Group's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit rating as follows:

Rating

[Rupees in Thousand)
2025 2024

Rating

Banks Short term Long term

Agency

Askari Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+ 45 -
Bank Al-Falah Limited PACRA Al+ AAA 23,522 18,894
Bank Al-Habib Limited PACRA Al+ AAA 5,224 8,138
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited VIS A-1+ AA 2,480 2,367
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AL 5,156 4,907
Habib Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA 1,295 1,698
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+ 51,331 169,896
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA 6,736 31,170
Meezan Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA 25,879 34,642
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al+ AAA 2,208 1,891
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA- 559 2,523
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA Al+ AAN 4,403 60,238
The Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AL+ 136 118
United Bank Limited VIS A-1+4 AAA 477 317
129,451 336,799

Above ratings are updated from website of State Bank of Pakistan.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk represents where an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The Parent Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and ensuring the fund availability through adequate credit
facilities. At June 30, 2025, the Parent Company has Rs.13,594 million available borrowing limit from financial institutions. The Parent
Company has unutilized borrowing facilities of Rs.6,685 million in addition to balances at banks of Rs.129 million. Based on the above,
management believes the liquidity risk to be insignificant. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
interest/mark up payments,

(Rupees in Thousand)
Carrying  Contractual Six months Sixtotwelve One totwo
Amount Cash Flow or less months years

2025
Long term financing 9,116,830 11,223,530 929,048 1,309,684 3,145,484 5,531,001 308,313
Lease liahility against

right of use assets 94,988 123,748 18,244 18,649 39,387 47,468 -
Trade and other payables 2,817,161 2,817,161 2,817,161 - - - -
Unclaimed dividend 853 853 853 - - - -
Unpaid dividend 20,801 20,801 20,801
Accrued mark up/profit 480,103 480,103 480,103 - - - -
Short term borrowings 6,209,208 7,107,948 7,107,948 - - - -

19,439,944 21,774,144 11,374,158 1,328,333 3,184,871 5,578,469 308,313

2024
Long term financing 9,703,216 16,871,666 1,485,352 1,343,365 2,677,720 6,855,494 4,509,731
Lease liability against

right of use assets 122,769 182,551 18,502 19,270 41,988 102,351 -
Traade and other payables 3,922,017 3,922,017 3,922,017 -
Unclaimed dividend 8,219 8,215 8,215 - - - -
Unpaid dividend 20,801 20,801 20,801 - - - -
Accrued mark up/profit 543,012 543,012 543,012 - - - -
Short term borrowings 3,579,563 3,782,929 3,782,929 -

17,899,597 25,331,195 9,781,232 1,362,639 2,719,708 6,957,885 4,509,731

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives in managing capital is to ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns to shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Certain loan facilities of the Parent Company require compliance with loan covenants (common being current ratio, gearing ratio, and debt
service coverage ratio) during the respective tenures of the facilities. Breach of covenants may require the Parent Company to repay the
loan earlier than agreed upon repayment dates in case upon intimation of the lender the default is not rectified. The Parent Company
monitors the compliance with covenants on a regular basis. There are no indications that the Parent Company would have difficulties
complying with these covenants.
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42.4

42.4.1

The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024 were as follows:

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024

Total borrowings 16,026,038 13,282,779
Cash and bank balances (132,179) (340,660)
Net debt 15,893,859 12,942,119
Total equity 12,848,929 14,807,116
Total capital 28,742,788 27,749,235
Gearing ratio 55% 47%

The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total
capital is calculated as 'equity’ as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net debt.

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintaining an
appropriate mix amongst various sources of finance to minimize risk and cost.

The Group is not exposed to any externally imposed capital requirement,

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Balance as at July 1, 2024

Changes from financing cash flows
Repayment of long term loan

Proceeds from long term loan

Effect of lease modification during the year
Lease rentals paid

Accretion of interest

Dividend paid

Total changes from financing activities

Other changes

Interest expense

Interest paid

Deferred government grant recognized
Changes in short term borrowings
Total loan related other changes

Total equity related other changes
Balance as at June 30, 2025

Balance as at July 1, 2023

Changes from financing cash flows

Repayment of long term loan

Proceeds from long term loan

Lease rentals paid

Accretion of interest

Addition / re-assessment / termination of leases
Dividend paid

Total changes from financing activities

Other changes

Interest expense

Interest paid

Deferred government grant recognized
Changes in short term borrowings
Total loan related other changes

Total equity related other changes
Balance as at June 30, 2024

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025
Long term Short Term Lease

loans Borrowings Dividend Liability
9,703,216 3,579,563 29,020 122,769 13,434,568
{LDag.ﬁgEl] s = - [1|E391ﬁ951
286,053 - - 286,053
2 = - (7,479) (7,479)
: - (34,668) (34,668)
- - - 14,366 14,366
- (7,366 - (7,366
(753,642) - (7,366) (27,781) (788,789)
205,856 (142,947) - - 62,909
828,485 690,624 - 14,366 1,533,475
(1,034,341) (547,677) - (14,366) (1,596,384)
167,256 - - - 167,256
- 3,329,645 - - 3,329,645
167,256 3,329,645 - 3,496,901
9,116,830 6,909,208 21,654 94,988 16,142,680

2024
Long term Short Term Lease

loans Borrowings Dividend Liability
8911,8/3 8,474,415 41,856 - 17,428,144
(780,620) : : (780,620)
1,420,696 - - 1,420,696
) . ; (32,271) (32,271)
- - 22,495 22,495
. - 132,545 132,545
. (12,836) - (12,836)
640,076 - (12,836) 122,769 750,009
126,378 213,006 - - 339,384
209,266 1,238,763 - 22,495 1,470,524
(335,644)  (1,451,769) . (22,495)  (1,809,908)
151,267 - - - 151,267
- (4,894,852) (4,894,852)
151,267  (4,894,852) - - (4,743,585)
9,703,216 3,579,563 29,020 122,769 13,434,568

The figures of interest expenses and interest paid has not include interest capitalized in property, plant & equipment.

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
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43 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss for remuneration, including all benefits to the Chief Executive, Directors and
Executives of the Group are as follows:

particulars | 2025|2008

(Rupees in Thousand)

Directors

Managerial

remuneration 14,148 14,148 9,036 9036 572,612 419,395 595,796 442,579

Post Employment

benefits 71,874 71,927 1,724 1,462 63,907 46,159 73,505 55,548

Other benefits - - - - 87,257 69,181 87,257 69,181

Reimbursement 16 - 13 - 10,140 3,915 10,165 3,915
22,038 22,075 10,773 10,498 733,916 538,650 766,727 571,223

Number of persons 1 1 1 1 179 110 181 112

for remuneration

43.1 Aggregate amount of meeting fee to 7 non-executive directors (2024: 9 non-executive Directors) was Rs.1.600 million (2024: Rs.2.150 million).

43.2 In addition, the Chief Executive and working directors are provided with Company maintained car and certain executives are provided with
household furniture and cars under Group policies, the monetary impact where of is not quantifiable.

43.3 During the year, a related party Messrs. Novatex Limited reimbursed Rs.188.724 million (2024: Rs.122.253 million) in respect of shared
resources of certain directors and executives.

ANNUAL REPORT 2025

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED



uoii §S6"AP6'S'SH PZOZ) VO 856 TTS 1 SH sem anuasal s, dnols ayl 1o %01 eyl 10w 10; Jupunodde Ajlenpiapul J2woisns solew woly anusnay p'ob
‘adoing pue eaually |0 ales pajupn

Ul S13LU01SND O} sajes sjuasaldas sajes Lodya sealaym ueIsijed Ul SI9WOISND |BUJaiND SnOleA ©] sajes siuasaudal sajes jeao| s Auedwor Juaied "uejsied u pajedo| alde §z07 ‘0 aunf je se dnoun ayl Jo S195Se JuaUnd-uou ||y £'vt H
: . -~ 1
€0Z'6LL2 690'S8PT [T -]
£V LG 8v6'sk0’l 1eah ayl duunp paunaul aanppuadxs jeudes palecojjeur ™~
OFEL'TRZ'Z F T BST'S0T'2Z EZ8'8 SEE9R0'Z T1Z1'6EY PITTHE LDO86T - LO0'86T deaA ayy duunp paunoul saanypuadya jejde’ _Dln
£0K'020'T 655651 ar8 €98 WL TL 1 6L e OL'T s L8T OB 9151 595°19 SEZ'SSE'T juzwdinba pue uepd ‘Ausdosd uo vopepaidag m
SMO||OL SE S1 UONE WO ju) Juawdas 1ayln “
=—————————————— 1 y ﬂ
G9Z'Z9R'TT GHE G99 LE E0Z'EQEVE ZET 251 LE uoyisod [epueuY JO JUDLIRIEIS pajepljosucD Jad se |Bjo | -
lsrt'8it) (z1£'566) (LZE'EVE) (S69°v6L) saouejeq dnoid edjul jo uogEUILILF m
976'879'9 BET'ETE'S ZES'S00'01 S68'01E9 paledo||euy) =
88/ ‘TTL9T GEY'TSE'EE 866 0r9'vT CEG'SE9TE siualudas ajqewodal Joy |e10) =
seRgen s1a5s5y sapiiqen sjRssYyf <<
SMOYI0) S8 SEUo Isod [BRuBdly O IUSWSLEIS PAIERIOSUOD SYI U] [B101 Yiim SALIGE)| PUE 513558 SIuawdas Lo uouel|ouaiay
88/ 12’97 916"'8EQ"2 TLBTRS'YT VOT'SLY 80/ /02T 866 00a’'vT S12Z8L 1 €8/ BSB ZI BLLTYT SO0'LIL'ZT saigel uawdag
GAP'TSE EF 985 5/0'F €16 5.7 6L 855 P18 SGE T9K'8T ZEG'SEQ'TE ZZ8'60L'E oT1'9Z6°LZ 887 vLT'T b W CTAL T4 s1as5e Juswdag

smojjo) se aue sluawidas Aq salljigel| pue sjassy

(b8 Lzg) (Z21'pL0'1) ¥E] 2LU0IU| PUB S3|A3] 310 jaq S50
LSESE TL8'ES uoysesuen dnosd eijul jo uoeu g
{861 '99€) [00972L2) 186G €6] (eso8zL'T) [o8z'L8] [£9L70va7T]

BES'S ; BES'S - - - PUSPIAK] - 303U 1USLUSAAU]
\RIG'ES9'T) (TEE'E9T) (L8S'VEE'T) (Le€'009'T) (D01 9) (£9z'6EST) 51500 aouEul
TZTETY TLV'ETT 0S9'687T 1SE'951 1t9'vi OTLTTIT SLUCOW JaYl0
(Ze0'vee) [LFE'ETT) (s12'021) (zL6'wLT) (SETR) (Leg‘991) sasuadxa Byip
€9T°0TT T (EEEETT) 9TS'€ELET (S60'60T] (zzLz9) [ELEap) Siualudas syqeliodsal Jof sinsad (2o |
THS'ETOVE Or0'BZE'9Z S9|ES
(0pE"eLE'?) [ELETROY) satuedwos Adepisqns woldj $3jes Jualdass-Ja1ul {0 uolEu Wi
188°686 '0¢ EIvOIY'0E sjuawdas ajqenodal 10, Sajes |B10 L

[XE] LU0 PUE S3IA3| 310)30 S507 PUE S3JES L1IM S Nsad puUe sajes juawdas |0 uoyeljouciay

ERTOTT'T EEEELT 9TS ECL 1 ELEOFL EVL EBY [s60760T] [czLz9] [ELE DY) 6ST'T18 [zes’Ls8) uoueaidap Jaye ynsad Juawdag

lEov'0Ta T) {555'95T) (8r8'£98) 0L TL) (1264 ) (ttre‘vOL'T) (rs'L81) loog‘at1sT) (s95'T9) ([SEZ'SSt'T) awdinba pue juejd ‘Auadoid uo uoyepaidaq (553

985 0ET'T wTEr VOE'[80°'T LEQ'ZTS I8T'SLTT 6YZ'S65'T ZZB'PZ1 LZr'oLpT vZL'zi8 EOL'LBS ucueisasdap ajojaq ynsal uawdag
- - - - - - - - - - 1 1 1

T88'G86'9€ DOE'9L6'T 185 €£10'VE ZG8'ETL'E 6CL 687 0F ETF OIY 0 ELEZRO'Y OVOBZE 92 05008 066'EZS'EL sajeg

: UoPERUED jod Wioeid 134 uiE) JuaLLE||4 : UoEJBURD wuogeld 134 § uie, usuiej)
Jamog iaadiod Jesahjod Jaiehiod Jamod Jameh|od Jasahjod
jo [ejo)

{puesnoy | w saadmny)

SMON0L SE I SZ0T "0OE 2unf papua 1eak ayl Joi sluawdas ajqeuodad ayl 104 Uo JeWIoUl TuBLLEas ay )
'sjnsad juawidas  Z'pi

‘l2na) dnoig 1B padeusil ale UOLEXE] PUE 51500 AJuURUY “3wodul Jaio ‘sasuadxa Funelado jayip

AW (31eAald) Adsau] Deg-9 SISSalA pue paliug (aieald) Jlemod oajen sissay seiwedwod Aegpisqns jo suopesado saspdwod i) - uojelauad emod e -

“MEp ||u suogesado
511 PAJUSLUILUIOT Jad 10U SEY LRIYM ‘palp) sagayuds (ego|n sassay Auedwiol MBIPISQNS O S)NS31 3y SpNPRU) SIY| C[BUS1EW MED S1I PUR LUOaLY | 3d J915aA|od Jo Juunpenuenl sasudiuod 3 - waoaid |34 1aisakjod -
JELS1EL MED ST PUE WIEA TUSLWEJ 181584|04 JO Buuniseinuell sasudwiod 1 - WE A Jua ey 1a1sak|og -

SMOJ|0 ) S aUe siuadas ajgqenodal s dnol 9 eyl
sjuawsas ajgepoday  1'pi

=
Ll
—
=
-
n
—
oc
—
v
=
=
<
Z
O
=
<
O

OSNILYHOd3 Y LNIWSIS ti




(Metric Tons)
Note 2025 2024
45 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION
Polyester Filament Yarn 45.1
Annual capacity-75 denier 51,044 43,424
Annual capacity-150 denier 101,324 86,280
Actual production 47,424 52,517
Polyester P.E.T. Preforms 45.2
Annual capacity-27 gms 31,512 31,512
Actual production 18,808 12,676
Knitted Fabrics 45.3
Annual capacity 1,636 1,090
Actual production 871 699
(KWH in Thousand)
Electric Power 45.4
Annual operating capacity 319,392 276,865
Actual production 114,382 95,382

45.1 The capacity is determined based on 75 denier and 24 filaments/150 denier and 48 filaments. Actual production represents
production of various deniers.

45.2 The capacity is determined based on 27 gms production. Actual production represents production of various grammage. The actual
production versus annual capacity is lower on account of the Parent Company is lacking the sizes of preforms, which are in demand.
The actual production of preforms (various grammage] in pieces was 739.278 million (2024: 462.150 million) against annual
capacity (based on 27 gms) of 1,167 million pieces.

45.3 The actual production versus annual capacity is lower on account of market demand of the Parent Company's product, moreover
the production is increasing gradually.

45.4 The actual production versus annual capacity is lower on account of plant operations of Subsidiary Company Messrs. G-Pac Energy
started in January 2025 and annual capacity includes capacities of standby gas generators as well as spare HFO generators and
requirement of well optimum running load on gas engines.

46 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year, details of transactions with related parties are as follows:

Nature of ET (Rupees in Thousand)
relationship relationship Mature of transaction 2025 2024
Novatex Limited Related Party Common  Sales of goeds and other material 1,102,112 4,097,801
directorship Rendering of services 3,442,098 1,850,154
Purchase of raw and other material 1,204,725 1,273,202
Obtaining of services - 170,861
Rent 22,777 23,976
Reimbursement of expenses 328,514 414,935
Krystalite Product Related Party Common key Sales of goods and other material 5,001 173,981
(Private) Limited management Sale of property, plant and equipment . 2,450
Reimbursement of expenses 1,656 2,585
Mustagim Dyeing & Related Party = Common  Sale of goods 222,540 391,261
Printing Ind directorship Rendering of services 37,354 -
(Private) Limited Reimbursement of expenses 730 -
Gani & Tayub Related Party Common Rent 7,800 7,800
(Private) Limited directorship
MNova Frontiers Related Party Common  Issuance of Right Shares - 5,581,649
Limited directorship Reimbursement of expenses 80 -

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED
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Nature of Basis of (Rupees in Thousand)
relationship relationship MNature of transaction 2025 2024

Gatron Foundation Related Party Common Payment of donation - 3,954
directorship

Pharmnova Related Party Common key Reimbursement of expenses 9,971 -
(Private) Limited management

G-Pac Corporation Related Party Common  Sale of goods 207,096 415

directorship Reimbursement of expenses 101 -

G&T Tyres Related Party = Common  Purchase of other material 824 544
(Private) Limited directorship

Nova Mobility Related Party Common key Purchase of other material 32
(Private) Limited management Reimbursement of expenses 214 B4

Krystosoft Related Party Common  Acquisition of services 57 -
(Private) Limited directorship

Gatron (Ind) Limited Retirement Employees Provident fund contribution 7,094 6,596
Workers benefit fund fund

Provident Fund

- The above figures are exclusive of sales tax, where applicable.
- Qutstanding balances, as at reporting date, are disclosed in their respective notes.

Transactions and outstanding balances, as applicable in relation to Key Management Personnel (KMP) have been disclosed in note
43 of KMP and note 5.3 of disposal of property, plant and equipment. KMP are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity directly or indirectly, The Group considers its Chief Executive,
Executive Directors and other executives to be KMP,

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025 2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)

a7 PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The Following information is based on latest financial statements of the Funds.

Size of the Funds - Total Assets 158,048 150,977
Cost of Investments made 155,543 150,208
Fair value of investments 155!?[!3 149 868
Percentage of investments made (Fair value to size of the fund) 99.15% 99.27%

(Rupees in Thousand)

2025
Amount % Amount

47.1 The Break-up of cost of investments is:

Bank Deposits 155,543 100.00% 150,208 100.00%

47.2 Investments out of the provident funds have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act,
2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

(Number of employees)

2025 2024
48 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Total number of employees as at June 30 749 772
Average number of employees during the year 767 824

GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2025



49 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISS5UE

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on October 04, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Parent
Company.

50 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.

SHABBIR DIWAN MUHAMMAD IQBAL BILWANI MUHAMMAD NAEEM
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED

Proxy Form
FORTY FIVE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I'WVe, of

being a Shareholder of Gatron (Industries) Limited and holding

Ordinary Shares as per Register Folio No. or "CDC" Participant's
.D. No. Afc No. hereby appoint
Mr. / Ms

of or failing him/her Mr. / Ms. of

as my/our Proxy in my/our absence 1o attend and vote for me/us

and on my/our behalf at the 45'" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
on Monday, October 27, 2025, at 03:30 p.m., at Makran Hall, Serana Hotel Quetta,
Zarghun Road Quetta, and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of , 2025.
Witness:
. Signature
1. Signature on Revenue
Name Stamp of Rs.5/-
Address
CNIC No.
2 Signature
Name
Address
CNIC
Notes:

1. The proxy form in arder to be valid must be signed across five rupees revenue stamp and should be
deposited with the company not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. The proxy must be a member of the company.
3. Signature should agree with the specimen signature, ragisterad with the company.

4. CDC shareholders and their proxies must attach either an attested photocopy of their Computerized
National ldentity Card or Passport with this proxy tform.

5. Incase of corporate entity, the Board of Director’s Resolution / Power of Attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted along with Proxy Form.
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